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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B E
2011 2012 2013
—T——% —E--F —E-=F
(RMB million) (RMB million) ~ (RMB million)
(NREBETL) (AR¥EFET) (AR¥EHER)
Revenue g A 38,597 36,122 32,517
Gross Profit EF 2,602 1,164 1,004
EBITDA' MBRAEEE - IR -
WEREHATEF 3,294 1,595 1,615
Profit before income tax MRS R AR A 1,932 326 249
Profit for the year FEREF 1,418 146 63
Profit attributable to owners of NRRERFEE
the Company i epanil 1,242 126 102
Basic earnings per Share (RMB) FREARZ(ARET) 0.42 0.04 0.03
Net Assets FEER 9,511 9,555 9,711
Total Assets 1R E 22,930 24,752 23,751
Net Assets value per Share SRFEEB(RBRIETE
(excluding non-controlling interests) H )
(RMB) (ARET) 3.03 3.09 3.14
1 The Company defines EBITDA as profit for the year before finance 1 A FIE EBITDARE 2 &b B 7155

costs-net, income tax expense, amortisation of intangible assets,
amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights, depreciation, non-
recurring items and share-based payments. Non-recurring items for
the year ended 31 December 2013 included RMB 50.0 million as
gain on disposal of an associate, RMB 79.1 million as impairment
of property, plant and equipment, RMB 23.8 million as impairment
of available-for-sale financial assets and RMB 234.2 million as
impairment provision of prepayments for purchase of property, plant

and equipment.
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Financial Highlights B #E <<///>>>>>

AVERAGE SELLING PRICE AND GROSS PROFIT PER BITEENREEREH T HYHEEEE
TONNE OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL PRODUCTS HEEF
2011 2012 2013
=F——% ZFT-F ZB-=F
(RMB) (RVMB) (RMB)

(AR#ETT) (AR®T) (AR#¥T)

Average Selling Price per Tonne FWEFEHEEE 4,022 3,327 3,054
Gross Profit/(Loss) per Tonne BWEEF(EE)
H-section steel products H 7Y 8 2= 5 386 170 152
Strips and strip products A i) K A AR 2 S 233 113 111
Billets Eiiiha 119 (16) 29
Cold rolled sheets and R BLIR I 8 R
galvanised sheets 179 (138) (154)
Rebar R LU 232 81 6
Combined a 267 99 100
Average Selling Price per Tonne Gross Profit per Tonne
B FIHEEE BWEF
RMB RMB
AR AR
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SALES VOLUME OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL

BITEENRSERZERERE S 2

PRODUCTS AND CLASSIFIED BY PRODUCTS HEE
2011 2012 2013
—ET—fF —T——fF —E-=F
('000 tonnes)  ('000 tonnes) (000 tonnes)
(Fm8) (Fmg) (Fmg)
H-section steel products H AU 372 G 3,336 3,288 3,084
Strips and strip products A5 i) K A e KR 2 3,627 3,800 3,752
Billets S 1,482 1,424 926

Cold rolled sheets and R ELR M IE SR

galvanised sheets 477 484 316
Rebar SR A 422 422 587
Combined ZE 9,344 9,418 8,665

4.5%

Sales Volume of Self-manufactured Steel Products

BITEENRSERNHEER

51% 4.5%

35.7%

15.1%

l H-section steel products H B #ff 2 & I Billets ff #&

I Strips and strip products # i % % i 48 & @

I Rebar 12 4U8H

] 4 China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun
(Executive Deputy General Manager and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
(Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(resigned on 15 duly 2013)
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Mr. Liu Lei
(resigned on 31 duly 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
(resigned on 30 April 2013)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping

COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
(resigned on 30 April 2013)
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho

(resigned on 30 April 2013)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
(resigned on 30 April 2013)
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7

REZEE®

BAUREE(EE)

REERAE
(R=ZF—=FPI [ =+ HEHT)

HIMREE

FRESAE

BB &

FMEES

BENRAE(EE)

BRRIGR ST

REERAE
(R=ZF—=FPIH =+ HEHT)

FREEAE

BB e A

REAR
REFRE
BRI ESE A

NEAME
BRI ESE A

T EE
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda



Corporate Information 2 7% <<///>>>>>

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre

23 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited (formerly known as
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited)

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaorientalgroup.com

LIST OF PRINCIPAL BANKERS (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDERS)
Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank

Pingan Bank

Rabobank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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(BT #EButterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda)
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<<///>>>>> Chairman’s Statement £ E#{ &

costs

REVIEW OF YEAR 2013

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2013, the global economy remained volatile and the Mainland
China domestic economic growth rate declined as compared with
that of the previous year. The weak demand for steel in Mainland
China led to a significant decrease in the price of steel products
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 as compared
with the previous year. On the other hand, the sluggish steel market
resulted in the impairment and provisions to be made against certain
assets of the Group. As a result, the Group recorded revenue and
net profit of approximately RMB 32.5 billion and approximately RMB
63.0 million respectively in 2013, a decrease of 10.0% and 57.0%
as compared with those of the prior year respectively. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMB 101.6
million, a decrease of 19.4% as compared with that of prior year.

With respect to the steel business, the Group has been actively
taking measures to enhance our competitiveness in this sector. With
our endeavor to the research and development of new products,
the Group has successfully launched the steel pile sheet products

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B 3% B A FR A 7

3=

The Group will be dedicated to
maintaining our competitivenessthrough
continuous improvement of our product
mix and reduction of various production
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Chairman’s Statement =E®R%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

by end of 2013 and applied the products to the major projects along
the coastal area of certain provinces of the PRC. Such product was
received a high appraisal with its application to the projects. It is
believed that such new products will contribute a significant revenue
to the Group in 2014. In addition, the Group has sold approximately
3,084,000 tonnes of self-manufactured H-section steels products in
2013 and continued to be a market leader in the PRC for H-section
steels. The Development Plan for the Steel Industry of the PRC
clearly stipulates that steel plates and H-section steel with high
intensity, shock resistance, fire resistance and weather-proof as well
as the high-intensity rebar would be the major elements contributing
to the improvement of construction sector, which in turn provided

a favorable opportunity for the product development of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement =E {4

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Furthermore, after upgrading the production facilities of the Group by
Oriental Green Energy-Saving Environmental Protection Engineering
Co. Ltd., an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
which has obtained high recognition in the industry in terms of
energy-saving and environmental protection technologies, the self-
generated electricity of the Group has reached 30% in 2013 which
highly improved our operational efficiency. After the change of the
senior management of Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet
Company Limited (“Jinxi Jinlan”) and further enhancing its internal
control, the operating performance of Jinxi Jinlan has improved
slightly as compared with that of 2012. Jinxi Jinlan is now undergoing
a series of upgrading work which the Group believed that Jinxi Jinlan
will achieve better performance soon.

In view of the current tough operating environment in the steel
making industry, the Group considers that cautious involvement in
other industries will support the return to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”). Therefore, the Group started to
explore other potential business opportunities in order to promote
the long-term growth of the Group’s results.

With respect to the real estate business, the Group had completed
gross floor area (“GFA”) of 19,646 m? of the second phase of the
property development project namely “Donghu Bay” which is located
in Tangshan City, Hebei Province, the PRC and recorded revenue
and operating profit from real estate business of approximately RMB
112.9 milion and RMB 3.4 million respectively for the year ended
31 December 2013. The whole of the second phase of the Donghu
Bay project is expected to be completed in 2014. In addition, the
Group had commenced the preliminary development of the parcels
of land namely “Xintiandi” which are located in Suzhou City, the
PRC with total construction GFA of approximately 105,000 m?. The
residential and basement part and the commercial and office part of
the Xintiandi project is expected to be completed in October 2015
and December 2016 respectively.

The Group will also actively promote the usage of environmental
friendly construction and to develop, introduce and utilise the
upgraded H-section steel which can be used in the property
development.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B 3% B A FR A 7
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Chairman’s Statement =E#{%

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the revenue and gross
profit arising from trading of steel products and iron ore were
approximately RMB 5,735.9 million (2012: approximately RMB
4,131.2 million) and approximately RMB 100.2 million (2012:
approximately RMB 79.1 million) respectively.

The Group also engages in financing industry through its
subsidiaries, Oriental Evertrust Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Oriental
Evertrust”) and Tianjin Oriental Huitong Microcredit Company Limited
(“Oriental Huitong”). As at 31 December 2013, Oriental Evertrust
and Oriental Huitong provided loans amounting RMB 404.5 million
to independent third parties at interest rates ranged from 12.0% to
24.0% per annum.

Since the Group introduced the world’s largest steel corporation
ArcelorMittal as its strategic shareholder in 2008, collaboration
between the Group and ArcelorMittal has grown considerably.
ArcelorMittal not only appointed experienced executives to the
Board of the Group to participate in decision making for the Group’s
business development but also sent technicians and management
staff to our production sites to inspect our operations and provide
professional advice.

On 6 November 2013, the Company was informed by Wellbeing
Holdings Limited, Chingford Holdings Limited and Mr. HAN Jingyuan
(together, the “Plaintiffs”) that a Writ of Summons has been issued
by the Plaintiffs against ArcelorMittal, pursuant to which, the
Plaintiffs sought an order that ArcelorMittal procure that ArcelorMittal
Holdings AG (formerly known as Mittal Steel Holdings AG) (“AM
Holdings AG”) sell a sufficient number of shares of the Company
such that the Company’s 25% minimum public float requirement
pursuant to Rule 8.08 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
(the “Minimum Public Float”) is restored. Further details of the above
have been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7
November 2013.

Based on the current information available, the Company is of the
view that the Writ of Summons should not have any material adverse
impact on the Company’s operation or financial position.

RERIE @)

Bz Z—=F+-_A=+—HIt#
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—ZF: HARBE A 312 LA
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;o FFENT12.0% E24.0% °
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<<</// >>>>> Management Discussion and Analysis BBk 24

BUSINESS REVIEW ¥EOE

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products HERTTAEMNEE R ZHEDNT
Sales Volume HEZE

In 2013, the total sales volume was 8,665,000 tonnes (2012:
9,418,000 tonnes), representing a decrease of approximately 8.0%.

T - FAHE E 58,665,000 —
LT —_4:9,418,000lF) © TP&E#718.0% o

I (2

The sales volume breakdown during the year was as follows: NEBEZHESHMAWT
2013 2012
—8-= “E-—F Changes in
Sales volume Sales volume Sales volume
HEE HEE HEEE(
Increase/
('000 tonnes) (000 tonnes) (Decrease)
(1) (Fug) gm/ (A)
H-section steel products HAHE @ 3,084 35.6% 3,288 35.0% (6.2%)
Strips and strip products AR ER 3,752 43.3% 3,800 40.3% (1.3%)
Billets S 926 10.7% 1,424 15.1% (35.0%)
Cold rolled sheets and RERREFR
galvanised sheets 316 3.6% 484 5.1% (34.7%)
Rebar B 587 6.8% 422 4.5% 39.1%
Total At 8,665 100% 9,418 100% (8.0%)

During the year of 2013, the Group’s production capacity is 11

million tonnes per annum.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E & & 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products
(continued)

Revenue
Revenue in 2013 was RMB 26,466.2 million (2012: RMB 31,329.9

million), representing a decrease of approximately 15.5%.

The sales breakdown and average selling price by product (excluding

¥EOE®)

HEBTEENMBER 2 HED @)

WA

—E-ZFRABARB264.6621E7T
(ZZB——F: AR313.2001ET) "

F£#915.5% °

FREMNFEERHAN FHEEE(T

value added tax) during the year were as follows: SER)INT -
2013 2012 Changes
—B-=F —T-CF g1
Average Average Average
selling selling selling
Revenue price Revenue price Revenue price
KA HEEE WA HEEE WA HEEBE
(RMB million) (RMB/tonne) (RMB million) (RMB/tonne) Increase/(Decrease)
(A\R¥EER) (AR%T/H) (AREEER) (ARET/B) g/ (a)
H-section steel products HAY S & 9,897 3,209 11,404 3,469 (13.2%) (7.5%)
Strips and strip products il R R E 10,993 2,930 12,233 3,219 (10.1%) (9.0%)
Billets ST 2,540 2,743 4,236 2,974 (40.0%) (7.8%)
Cold rolled sheets and RO RIEFER
galvanised shests 1,326 4,196 2,069 4,275 (35.9%) (1.8%)
Rebar 24 1,710 2,913 1,388 3,290 23.2% (11.5%)
Total/combined A&t/ 28 26,466 3,054 31,330 3,327 (15.5%) (8.2%)

The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the slowdown of the
investment in steel related industries and the imbalance between the
demand and the supply of the steel production capacity in Mainland
China which led to a decrease in the Group’s average selling price by
8.2% to RMB 3,054 per tonne in 2013 from RMB 3,327 per tonne in
2012.

W AT B = B 2 A B 7 b 8l S AR B 1T 3
Wi E AR B S E e e sk ok - B
FARENFTHHEEEER - —=F
RSN RE3327 T T R82%E - F
—=FHEEARKE 3,054 T °
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B |4

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products

(continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The consolidated gross profit in 2013 was RMB 867.8 million (2012:

RMB 932.5 million), representing a decrease of 6.9%.

Average unit cost per tonne, gross profit per tonne and gross profit

margin during the year were as follows:

H-section steel products

Strips and strip products

Billets

Cold rolled sheets and
galvanised sheets

Rebar

Total

The gross profit per tonne in 2013 was RMB 100 representing an
increase of approximately 1.0% as compared to that of RMB 99
in 2012. Gross profit margin increased to 3.3% in 2013 from 3.0%
in 2012. Increase in gross profit margin was primarily because the
Group produced more percentage of high gross margin products in

¥EOE®)

HEBTEENMBEER ZHES @)

HEKRARETF]

—E-ZEMEHEFNAARES8.6781E
T(ZE——F : AREQS3251ETL) ' T
[%6.9% °

FASWTHRARERE  SEENRE
S

2013 2012
—E-=F —Z-C_F
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Average profit/(loss) profit/(loss) Average  profit/(loss)  profit/(loss)
unit cost  per tonne margin unit cost per tonne margin
¥ =11 R/ 5 BHBEN/ 5/
BAEE EF/(EF) (EB)E  KAEE (£8) (EB)%
(RMB/tonne) (RMB) (RMB/tonne) (RMB)
(AR%7n,/H)  (AR¥%) (\RET/®)  (ARETL)
H A 2 mm 3,057 152 4.7% 3,298 170 4.9%
Tl K AR E 2,819 11 3.8% 3,107 113 3.5%
S 2,714 29 1.1% 2,990 (16) (0.5%)
RERRIFEFR
4,350 (154) (3.7%) 4,413 (138) (3.2%)
2 2,907 6 0.2% 3,209 81 2.5%
At 2,954 100 3.3% 3,228 99 3.0%

2018 as compared with that of 2012.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis & &5t & 27 <// >>>>>

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥EEREe)
Property Development EHEE BT
In 2013, the Group had completed GFA of 19,646 m2. The status of RZE—=F AEEECRIREEAER

the completed GFA by project is set out in the following table. 19,646 F H K« TREIZSHEEND R
TREmmEBR -

No. City Property project Phase of project Total GFA

FFi% W MEEE HEMER RELER

(m?)

(FH5%)

1 Tangshan Donghu Bay Phase 2 Villa 19,646
L RO —HARIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the revenue from real estate HE-_Z—=F+=ZHA=+—H &%
business of the Group amounted to approximately RMB 112.9 B EHEEBRANARK112918T

million. The GFA of properties delivered was 17,481 m2. The average ERMYIERREEIE17,481F K -

selling price of properties delivered was approximately RMB 6,458 ERXMMENFTHEBREBEAROA
per m2, R 6,458 7T °

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had the following projects RZEBE—=F+-A=+—8 ' ~%£E
under construction with a GFA of approximately 240,000 m?: ETIERER  EENEEEBRLY
240,000 F 75 :

GFA under Estimate time

No. City Property project Phase of project Construction of completion
R H® YEEE HE R EENEEEE FE T TRERS
(m?)
(FFF7K)
1 Tangshan Donghu Bay Phase 2 135,226  December 2014
FE L HE —HA —E-NF+=A
2 Suzhou Xintiandi Residential and basement 39,691 October 2015
#RM Eripai) FERMTE —E—haF+A
3 Suzhou Xintiandi Commercial and office 65,670  December 2016
#RM R RERRAE —E-RF+=A
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Development (continued)

The above projects are expected to be completed from 2014 to
2016 and will contribute stable revenue and profits to our Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In order to sustain a stable financial status, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity and financial resources.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
of approximately RMB 12.5 billion (2012: RMB 10.5 billion).

As at 31 December 2013, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.5
(2012: 1.3) and the gearing ratio, representing total liabilities divided
by total assets, was 59.1% (2012: 61.4%).

As at 31 December 2013, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB 968.1 million (2012:
approximately RMB 879.0 million).

After considering its cash and cash equivalents as well as the
banking facilities currently available to the Group, it is believed that
the Group has sufficient capital to fund its future business operations
and for general business expansion and development.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7
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MRS E(RBEERURSDEE) A
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2013, borrowings of RMB 6,249.8 million of the
Group bore fixed interest rates ranged from 1.2% to 8.0% per annum
and borrowings of RMB 1,469.7 million of the Group bore floating
rates ranged from 1.5% to 7.7% per annum. The Group’s exposure
to changes in market interest rates was considered to be limited. The
Group did not use any derivatives to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk for the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Moreover, majority of the borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2013 were non-current borrowings.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the debt-to-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes current and non-current borrowings, finance
lease obligations and borrowings from related parties. The Group
regards its non-current borrowings, non-current portion of its finance
lease obligations and borrowings from related parties and its equity
attributable to owners of the Company as its total capital. As at 31
December 2013, the debt-to-capital ratio of the Group was 58.9%
(2012: 83.2%).

The consolidated interest expenses and capitalised interest in 2013
amounted to RMB 495.3 million (2012: RMB 571.3 million). The
interest coverage (divide profit for the year before finance cost — net,
income tax expenses, non-recurring item and share-based payment
by total interest expenses) was 1.1 times (2012: 1.1 times).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had capital commitments
of RMB 743.5 million (2012: RMB 563.0 million). It is estimated
the capital commitments will be financed by the Group’s internal
resources and unutilised banking facilities.

g B 1))
BARGERE

R-ZZE—=F+-_A=+—H &%8
HEFIENT1.2% 2= 8.0% W E EFI R 15
HEBANREEE24981ET ° MAEENSE
FIRNTFA 5% E7.7%RZBFIRER 5
AR14.69718 7T - NEEEH ST X
BILORBRERAEBER - AKBEHZE
—E=FRZFEZF+ZR=+—
HItFEWEFERITAET A RERER
JEai7a

o R=F—=F+=-A=1t—8"
AREARIDOERRIERED B -

REBRBEREEEA L RERENRK
Mo R ERBBEEHBERABRER - M
EIHABBEERRIERDER  BE
HEARERBETER - NEBGEIE
TWEER  REHSAERBER T EX
HIERB BN REBR ARG ERITE
ENESZRATNEBNBEER - RZF
—=F+ZA=+—H ' AEENHE
THEE ALK AS89%(—F— —4F:
63.2%) °

T =FEHMNEZHEERERMEFE
HARBABIEBT(ZE—=F: AR
5.713187T) ° F BB FE S (KR )%
BRA - FIEHER  FELEERHENTEE
KBRS H AT 2 F 25 FIBR AR T &
TH)BIARG(ZE——F  1.115) -

BN AYE

R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—H A58
MEAMEEBARE7ABEBL(ZE
——4F: AR¥5.630187T) ° R A
SEAFESRAARITREEEES
BE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Guarantee and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s contingent liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB 21.2 million (2012: RMB 30.0
million), which was the provision of guarantee for bank borrowings in
favor of a third party.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 20183, the net book value of the Group’s
inventories amounting to approximately RMB 283.2 million (2012:
approximately RMB 122.0 million), notes receivable amounting
to approximately RMB 1,297.4 million (2012: approximately
RMB 2,200.3 million) and restricted bank balances amounting to
approximately RMB 1,582.8 million (2012: approximately RMB
1,087.0 million) had been pledged as security for issuing notes
payable of the Group and the Group’s banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2013, the net book value of the Group’s
inventories amounting to approximately RMB 40.5 million (2012: nil)
and restricted bank balances amounting to approximately RMB 33.2
million (2012: RMB 22.8 million) were withheld by and in custody of
the courts.

Exchange Risks

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers and
the Group’s senior notes, which is denominated and settled in USD.
Foreign exchange rates fluctuates in reaction to the macro-economic
performance of different countries and fund flows between countries
arising from trade or capital commitments. The Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

lron Ore Swaps

In view of the significant fluctuation of iron ore price in 2013, the
Group has entered into iron ore swap contracts so as to reduce the
impact of the volatility of the iron ore price on the Group. The Group
uses a combination of iron ore derivatives to achieve the above
purpose.

Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Save as disclosed in this report, there are no events to cause material
impact on the Group from the balance sheet date to the date of this
report.

ACCREDITATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Hebei Jinxi Iron and
Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”), the subsidiary of
the Company, was awarded as “PRC Famous Trademark”, and
awarded as “Standard Research and Development Base of Section
Steel” by National Technical Committee for Steel Standardization.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company plans to distribute not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit as dividend after its listing. However, the actual
amount of dividend and as a percentage to profit will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend upon the Company’s future
operation and earnings, capital requirement and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions, and other factors that the
Board considers relevant. In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
laws, the distributable profit of the PRC respective subsidiaries of the
Company should not be higher than its net profit, after appropriation
to the statutory reserve as determined by the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC.
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I ()

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintained close contact with its investors during the
year of 2013. The Company not only made timely disclosures of the
Company’s information through the website of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for increasing the
transparency of the Company, but also held meetings with investors,
updating them on the Group’s business development and industrial
trend.

This helped to promote investors’ understanding of the Group while
allowing us to understand more about the opinions and expectations
of investors. In future, the Group will further its effort to maintain close
contact and effective interactive communication with investors.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 13,700 and temporary staff of approximately 4,100.
The staff cost included basic salaries and benefits. Staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance plans, pension
scheme, unemployment insurance plan, maternity insurance plan
and the fair value of the share options, etc.. Effective from July 2008,
the Group implemented a workers’ injury insurance scheme and
contributed 1.5% of the workers’ wages to the Social Insurance
Bureau. According to the Group’s remuneration policy, employees’
package is based on productivity and/or sales performance, and is
consistent with the Group’s quality control and cost control targets.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2014, it is expected that the economic policies of the PRC
government will remain in the same direction and focus on the stable
growth. Following the strict national restrictions on environmental
protection and safety policy, the obsolete steel and iron production
capacity will be eliminated and the excess production of steel
and iron will be reduced in the near future. As the Group has
previously invested substantial resources to work on upgrading its
production facilities with the targets to reduce energy consumption
and emission, this will provide a favorable condition for the future
development of the Group. The Group will be dedicated to
maintaining our competitiveness through continuous improvement
of its production efficiency, adjustments made to the steel and iron
product mix and reduction of various production costs.

With the contributions of increased income from new developed
business sectors, the Directors believe that the past strategy of
developing new business is on the right track and the Group will
continue to increase its resources allocated to these new developed
business prudently in order to maintain its competitiveness and
increase its profit margin.

The Directors are also optimistic that the demand of steel products
will stabilise in 2014 along with the growth in the construction
projects by the PRC government such as the low-income housing
and urbanisation planning. The Group will continue to tackle the
challenges amidst uncertain economic environment and optimise its
efficiency and profit margins through effective management and the
continued collaboration of its customers.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Since its listing in 2004, the Group has continued to expand
its business, diversify its steel product categories and business
portfolio. During the last ten years (since being listed), the Group’s
overall crude steel production capacity has reached 11.0 million
tonnes per annum from 3.1 million tonnes per annum at the time
of the listing. Its product portfolio has grown from billets to a
variety of steel product series — each in a comprehensive range of
products and is available in different specifications. These product
series include H-section steel products, steel pile sheet products,
strips and strip products, billets, cold rolled sheets and galvanised
sheets and rebar. Moreover, the H-section steel products of the
Group commands a leading position in China. The Group has
been gradually diversifying its business. In addition to expanding
its supply chain through upstream and downstream integration,
the Group has also expanded horizontally by tapping into other
business sectors. The Group will strive to take full advantage of the
current solid financial condition and efficient management to intensify
the continuous development of the Group and to maximise the
Shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION
The Board would like to extend its heartfelt gratitude to all of our

staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and to our
Shareholders for their continuous support and trust in the Company.

By order of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

HAN Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Jingyuan, aged 57, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company (appointed on 13 November 2003), and
also serves as chairman of the board of Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”), Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold
Rolled Sheet Company Limited (“Jinxi Jinlan”), Hebei Jinxi Iron and
Steel Group Zhengda Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Zhengda
Iron and Steel”) and Oriental Fullhero Leasing Company Limited
(“Fullhero Leasing”). Mr. Han graduated from the People’s University
in 1994 with a degree in management. Mr. Han began his career
in Metallurgy in 1984 when he was employed as a deputy mine
manager and mine manager of Han’erzhuang Iron Mine. Mr. Han has
in-depth industry knowledge and 28 years of extensive operational
and managerial experience in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Han
was awarded the honorary title of “Hebei Metallurgy Top Ten Man”,
“Outstanding Entrepreneur of Hebei Province”, “Excellent Privately-
owned Enterprises Entrepreneur in Hebei Province” and “Economic
Top Ten Men of Honesty and Credibility in China” etc.. Mr. Han is
the Vice Chairman of the Metallurgy Chamber of All-China Federation
of Industry and Commerce, the Honorary Chairman of Hong
Kong Tong San Chamber of Commerce and the Vice Chairman
of Tangshan Charity Federation. Mr. Han was also the 9" and 11"
representative of the People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC.
Mr. Han is the director and the controlling shareholder of Wellbeing
Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Han Jingyuan is the father of Mr. Han Li, the Executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. Zhu Jun, aged 50, is an Executive Director (appointed on
23 December 2003), Executive Deputy General Manager of the
Company, and also serves as the Chief Operating Officer of the
Company and the executive director of Jinxi Limited. Mr. Zhu
graduated in 2001 from a graduate programme of the Communist
Party School in Hebei Province with a diploma in management. Prior
to working in the steel industry, Mr. Zhu worked for 10 years as
deputy director of Qianxi County Chemical Fertilizer Factory which
was based in Qianxi County, Hebei Province. Mr. Zhu joined Jinxi
Iron Factory in 1992 and later served as deputy director. Mr. Zhu has
had 20 years of working experience in the iron and steel industry.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shen Xiaoling, aged 53, is an Executive Director (appointed on
1 July 2005), Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company and also serves as an executive director of Jinxi
Limited. He obtained a diploma in management from the Hebei
Province Communist Party School in 2001. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Shen was the head of China Construction Bank Luanxian Sub-
branch. Mr. Shen also had 5 years experience acting as the Head
of China Construction Bank Qianxi Sub-branch and more than 6
years of experience as the deputy head of Bank of China Qianxi
Sub-branch. Mr. Shen has been the deputy general manager of Jinxi
Limited since January 2002.

Mr. Zhu Hao, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 21 November 2007). Mr. Zhu graduated at Tianjin
Nankai University and obtained his Master degree in accounting from
the University of New South Wales in Australia. Mr. Zhu is a senior
economist in China. Mr. Zhu was a non-executive director of Jinxi
Limited from December 2002 to early 2004.

Mr. Han Li, aged 26, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 7 February 2012). Mr. Han joined the Group in 2009
as the assistant to the Financial Controller of the Company. He is
currently the executive assistant to Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, the director and legal representative of Jinxi Limited. He
is also the directors and legal representatives of certain subsidiaries
of Jinxi Limited. He assists the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company managing the daily operations
of the Group. Currently, Mr. Han is the 12th representative of the
People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC and 17th representative
of People’s Congress of the Communist Youth League of China;
he was awarded 1% MmEEFRSFHREBIAY (Enterprise Brand
Special Contribution Character) and fz&H 2012 FEFE N A
Y - P EIETREIR IR GBI T REIFTIE L (The Harmonious China 2012
Influential People’s Award in Energy Saving). Mr. Han is the son of
Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
the substantial shareholders (within the meaning of the Part XV of
the SFO) (holding approximately 46.03% of the shareholding of the
Company) of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FEMITESF

Mr. Ondra Otradovec, aged 45, was a Non-executive Director Ondra Otradovec %4 ' I+ AR
of the Company (appointed on 2 January 2009). Mr. Otradovec BRANRNIEHITEES(R_EENF—
graduated from Stony Brook State University of New York with B - HEZT) -Otradovec Jc A= FA 4R 49N
Bachelor degree of Finance. Previously, he worked at HSBC, HEEMmMEmdLNT KESHE+
responsible for financing, IPO, privatization in Central and Eastern BEE X BYTEREZRET
European markets. During that period, he provided advisory service BETHMNEETERE - B AM%
for the acquisition of Nova Hut in Czech Republic and other steel REMFBEIL e EELRIT T/EHIM -
companies. Since 2003, Mr. Otradovec is responsible for mergers Otradovec 5t 4 AU iEHE 72 A B A Nova
and acquisitions activities at ArcelorMittal. He is now the vice Hut (B8 FLM %) A EL b 3088 1 RlHR (75 +A
president of Global Merger & Acquisition at ArcelorMittal. AR - B ZZTZ =4 - Otradovec St
B & ArcelorMittal H) & BRI EE T1E - 1%
I8R5 & ArcelorMittal IRERIEE FN A BRI 2l
HE o

Mr. Ondra Otradovec resigned as a Non-executive Director of the Ondra Otradovec £ =ZE—=F+ H
Company on 15 July 2013, THABEARGNIERTES -

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar, aged 66, is a Non-executive Director Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 5t /<1<
of the Company (appointed on 24 February 2012). Mr. Bhatnagar o OARNBINIERTES(RN_E—=
holds a bachelor's degree in Metallurgical Engineering and is an F-H-+V/MBEZLE) - Bhatnagarit
alumnus of AMP of Harvard Business School. He is currently the ER¥BE R TIRELEN  KAWKHEE

executive vice president and member of management committee of BEaMEEER 2R EK - HIRTE
ArcelorMittal (a substantial shareholder of the Company, a company ArcelorMittal (A AEIHIEERE » —
listed on the stock exchange of Amsterdam, Paris, Luxembourg, R EN B EHRE FER

Madrid and New York) and the chief executive officer of ArcelorMittal MBS ETE AR BTS2
in India and China. Prior to his current assignment, he was the chief HEEBZEeMKE  BLEHEMAE
executive officer of ArcelorMittal Eastern Europe (Poland, Czech B [2 i) ArcelorMittal I B TEHITE © &
Republic and Romania). Previously, he served as the chief executive PEFIRRSE 2 Al - 12 5,2 ArcelorMittal
officer of Mittal Steel Poland and the chief operating officer of Mittal HRE(BIENE  EnEMBEREEE
Steel Temirtau, Kazakhstan and the managing director of Mittal TN EERTE « 8L B ZEEXK
Steel Lazaro Cardenas, Mexico. Mr. Bhatnagar has over 37 years ERIMEIENaRaITE M KE R
of experience in line and staff functions in aluminum and electronics HBELHEE AR ENEFEEST -
industries in India. Mr. Bhatnagar was also appointed as a director G KE RS2 iE R R EMNET
of Hunan Valin Iron and Steel Company Limited a listed company in RIE E4R4CI8 - Bhatnagar o £ EIEH)
the PRC, since January 2011. WITEMEFITEMNEEMANERE
HEBBR=T+FNER BT ——
% — A# - Bhatnagar L £ I T A E
EZEMBRMNABRAF(—ERPRE LT
BWARDHES -
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Liu Lei, aged 58, was a Non-executive Director of the
Company (appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on
29 September 2004, and re-designated as Non-executive Director
of the Company on 7 February 2012) and director of Jinxi Jinlan.
Mr. Liu was the Executive Director and Deputy General Manager of
the Company from June 2004 to February 2012. Mr. Liu has over
25 years of experience in management and industrial fields. Mr. Liu
graduated in the area of Industrial Electrical Automation of Electrical
Engineering Faculty of ya[ 1t TE2fiE (Hebei Industrial Academy) in July
1978. Mr. Liu was awarded the title of jilit& Bz H EEIHH F &
HER T A (Professional Technological Talent with Outstanding
Contribution in Hebei Province) by Government of Hebei Province
in April 1987. Mr. Liu was also granted the qualification of research
fellow by JA/1E& B AR S AT Z € (Senior Appraisal Committee
of Zi Ran Yan Jiu of Hebei Province) in December 2000. Before
joining the Group in June 2004, Mr. Liu was the vice chancellor of
LB FIEBT (Hebei Academy of Sciences) from October 1999 to
June 2004.

Mr. Liu Lei resigned as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
31 July 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Tung Ho, aged 67, was an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 23 December 2003).
He currently serves as senior vice president of Phoenix Satellite
Television Company Limited. Mr. Yu is a senior influential media
professional in Hong Kong and China and has been in broadcasting
for more than 40 years. Mr. Yu was a director and the chief operation
officer of Asia Television Limited, the executive vice president
of Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited and served as
chairman of the 12th and 13th Hong Kong Advertising Industry
Association. Mr. Yu has also served as the deputy general manager
of China Radio & TV Corporation for International Techno-Economic
Cooperation and the chief of Radio Guangdong and an independent
non-executive director of Gome Electrical Appliance Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yu Tung Ho resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 30 April 2013.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis, aged 49, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company (appointed on 25 August
2004). He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has
over 25 years of experience in auditing, taxation, management
and financial advisory. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-
executive director of Digital China Holdings Limited, Integrated
Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited and Wai Kee Holdings
Limited whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He was once the independent non-executive director
of Sys Solutions Holdings Limited, a company listed on the growth
enterprise market of the Stock Exchange, the independent non-
executive director of Yardway Group Limited and eForce Holdings
Limited, companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and the independent non-executive director of Lightscape
Technologies Inc., a company with its shares listed and traded in
the OTC Bulletin Board of the United States of America. Mr. Wong
is a director of both Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited and Union Alpha
CAAP Certified Public Accountants Limited, both are professional
accounting firms. He is also a founding director and member of
Francis M.C. Wong Charitable Foundation Limited, a charitable
institution. Previously, Mr. Wong worked for KPMG, an international
accounting firm for 6 years and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited for 2 years. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, a Certified
Tax Advisor of Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is also an
associate member of Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants
& Auditors, Hong Kong. Mr. Wong holds a Master Degree in
Management conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Tianyi, aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 7 February 2012). He is
currently the executive vice president of The Chinese Society For
Metals. Mr. Wang has over 40 years of extensive experience in
the steel industry. Mr. Wang studied metallurgical machinery in 1t
FIMEERT (Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering) (now
known as 3t R EHE AEZ: University of Science and Technology of
Beijing) from 1965 and graduated in 1970. He then worked at HB S
3l #5155 R & {T A 7] (Handan Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited) (“Handan IS Group”) from 1970 to 1995 and held various
management and professional positions, included the position of a
technician, deputy factory manager and executive deputy general
manager. From 1995 to 2008, Mr. Wang re-designated and worked
at EILMEEBE AR E (T2 5] (Tangshan Iron and Steel Group
Company Limited) (“Tangshan IS Group”) as the chairman and
managing director. From 2005 to 2011, he was also the deputy
chairman and managing director of & i R/E RSB A BRETA
7] (Shougang Jingtang Iron and Steel Company Limited). From July
2008 to August 2011, he acted as the vice chairman of JA 1t $
EBEERET AR (Hebei Iron and Steel Group Company Limited)
(“HBIS Group”). HBIS Group was established after the merger of
Tangshan IS Group and Handan IS Group on 30 June 2008.

Mr. Zhou Guoping, aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 30 November 2012). Mr.
Zhou graduated from China University of Political Science and Law
(former known as The Peking College of Political Science and Law)
in 1969. Mr. Zhou started his career since 1970, he had been acted
as the Deputy Director of Public Security Bureau of Jilin City, Jilin
Province of China (FEIEMEFT MM AL BEIFK), and the
Deputy Director of the State Security Bureau in Jilin City (&5 #kT
BlxX %% @&IHK). He had also been in charge of the Jilin City
Forestry Security Bureau (F M MMEALER). Mr. Zhou was the
Deputy Director of Municipal Justice Bureau of Changchun City,
Jilin Province of China (Bl & #& K& alA/BEIHK), and the
Deputy Director of Public Security Bureau of Changchun City (&
EmALRBEIBE) and the Deputy Secretary of Politics and Law
Committee of Changchun City (R&ETMEUAZ IER) from 1994
to December 1997. During the period, Mr. Zhou was awarded the
title of Police Commissioner, Class Il (Deputy Bureau Level)( — #t &
LT (BB #A)). Since December 1997, Mr. Zhou was appointed
as the Deputy Director and the Secretary of Committee for Discipline
Inspection of Beijing Traffic Management Bureau (1t R AL 2 8
EEREIBRFAZEZER) il his retirement in 2006.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Lifeng, aged 37, is the general manager of Jinxi Limited. Mr.
Yu began his career in 1995 when he was employed as the sales
supervisor of Han’s erzhuang Iron Mine, and joined the Group in
1996. Mr. Yu has been awarded the honorary title of Workers’ Model
in Qianxi Country (BFI% &5 E)E#), Ten Outstanding Youths in
Tangshan City (FEILTTREFFF), Success New Entrepreneur

of Hebei Province (A1t A BIZETIE).

Mr. Yu Jianshui, aged 46, is a general manager of Zhengda Iron
and Steel. Mr. Yu was graduated at Hebei Polytechnic University
in steel metallurgy and obtained a MBA from University of Northern
Virginia in June 2009. He joined the Group after graduation until May
2005 and was employed as the deputy general executive manager
of Shanxi Province Xiaoyi City Chengcai Iron and Steel Company in
May 2005. He then re-joined the Group in April 2006. He has been
awarded County Technological Selected Talent (E2FHT AL
), Ten Outstanding Youths in the County (T A#EHH4E),
Outstanding Youth in Post of Tangshan City (LU & G rERIEE
F), Workers’ Model in Hebei Province Grldb& S Eh1EE) | The
First Class Honour of Technological Improvement in Tangshan City
(B LU R £ —2548), The Third Class Honour of Technological
Improvement in Hebei Province ()i 3b& BT 0 = £ 4%).

Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei, aged 38, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Au Yeung is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a fellow member and Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Au
Yeung holds a bachelor degree in professional accounting from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Au Yeung has over 15 years
of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
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The Company is committed to sound corporate governance
practices designed to promote greater transparency, investor
confidence and the continued development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) with the best long term interest of the
Group and value enhancement for all shareholders as our ultimate
goal. The Company also believes that sound corporate governance
practices benefit the Group’s employees and the community in
which the Group operates.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(“CG CODE”)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied the
Principles and Code Provisions with the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2013, except for the deviation with explanation disclosed
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)

During the year under review, the Board comprised the following
Directors and the composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun (Executive Deputy General Manager

and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling

(Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ondra Otradovec (resigned on 15 July 2013)

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Mr. Liu Lei (resigned on 31 July 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yu Tung Ho (resigned on 30 April 2013)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

Mr. Wang Tianyi

Mr. Zhou Guoping
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the day
to day operations of the Company whereas the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of financial and management reporting to the Board
and shareholders of the Company as well as to provide a balanced
composition in the Board so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 23 to 28.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

»  Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

Approval of dividends;

Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;
Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance;
Monitoring the performance of the management;

Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and disposal
of assets and other material transactions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Except for Mr. Han Li, who is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family relationship among the other Directors. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgments.

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year under review, six
Board meetings were held and the principal business transacted
included approving interim and annual results and reports,
assessing business development and business performance and
implementation. The attendance record of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is set out as follows:

Board

BER

Mr. Han Jingyuan BRUR A

Mr. Zhu Jun KELE

Mr. Shen Xiaoling LRI A

Mr. Zhu Hao K&k E

Mr. Han Li Bh%E

Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec %t 4

(resigned on 15 July 2013)
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Mr. Liu Lei

(resigned on 31 July 2013)
Mr. Yu Tung Ho

(resigned on 30 April 2013)

e

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXREE
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRESEE
Mr. Zhou Guoping BB E

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director.

A.  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Board has Chairman to provide leadership to the Board
in terms of establishing policies and business directions and
monitor the daily operation of the Group.

Mr. Han Jingyuan currently serves as the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes
that there is no immediate need to separate the roles of
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
because the role of chief executive officer/general manager of
the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are performed by
other persons.

The Board will consider the segregation of the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
light of the future development of the operating activities or
businesses of the Group.

B.  Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Company had four
Independent Non-executive Directors for the period from 1
January 2013 to 29 April 2013 and had three Independent
Non-executive Directors for the period from 30 April 2013 to
31 December 2013 of whom Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
financial matters in compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

B.

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company should
appoint Independent Non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board. On 30 April 2013, Mr. Yu Tung
Ho (“Mr. Yu”) has resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Following the resignation of Mr.
Yu, the number of Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company has fallen below the minimum number
required under Rule 3.10A. Following the resignation of Mr.
Ondra Otradovec and Mr. Liu Lei who resigned as the Non-
executive Directors of the Company on 15 July 2013 and 31
July 2013 respectively, the Board now consists of 9 members
comprising 5 Executive Directors, 1 Non-executive Director
and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors, with the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors representing one-
third of the Board. Hence, the requirement under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules has been complied with.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election. At each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time (or if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman and/
or the Managing Director of the Company shall not, whilst
holding such office, be subject to the retirement by rotation
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

or be taken into account in determining the number of the
Directors to retire in each year and the Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall not be
taken into account in determining which particular Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation. The
Company will consider amending the Bye-laws to comply with
the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code in the future.

All the Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. Currently, Mr. Han Jingyuan,
Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Zhu Hao and Mr. Han Li
being the Executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term
of three years. Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar being the Non-
executive Directors is appointed for a fixed term of two years.
All Independent Non-executive Directors, including, Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Gouping
are appointed for a fixed term of one year. All the Directors
are still subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.

Except for the change in the Board as mentioned above,
during the year under review, no Director was appointed to fill
any causal vacancy or otherwise.

Responsibilities of Directors and Company Secretary

All Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s major
business activities, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

E.

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors and Officers’
liabilities has been provided by the Company to cover potential
legal actions against Directors and Officers.

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary

Each newly appointed Director will be received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in
which the Group conducts its business to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant for the year ended
31 December 2013. The Company will arrange internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has
provided reading materials on corporate governance matters
and update on the Listing Rules to all Directors for their
reference and studying. Besides, Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
and Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis also attended other
seminars and training sessions arranged by other professional
firms/institutions. Record of training each Director has received
for the year ended 31 December 2013 were kept by the
Company.

During the year under review, Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei, the
Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company,
undertook 45 hours of professional training to update his skills
and knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year
under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H. Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees whose authorities
and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has been established since 2005 with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee (which was available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company) have included those specific duties as set
out in the Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary. Pursuant to
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget, and to
consider any findings of major investigation of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response. The Audit
Committee should meet at least twice each year and
when the need arises.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit
Committee comprised four Independent Non-executive
Directors for the period from 1 January 2013 to 29 April
2013 and comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors for the period from 30 April 2013 to 31
December 2013, namely Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
as the Chairman of the Audit Committee during the year
under review and Mr. Yu Tung Ho (resigned on 30 April
2013), Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping as the
members of the Audit Committee, in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

(7)

Audit Committee (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, two meetings of
Audit Committee were held. The attendance record for
each member is set out as follows:

EER(ES=R D@
H ZEXZ88®
(1) FEZEZ@)
BE_Z—=F+=-R=+—

Elﬂiir %*yéz\a/\$'fj—
MR - BB 2 HF Lk

URNE
Number of Audit
Committee Meeting
Audit Attended/
Committee members Eligible Attended
ERZEgERLE
EREEENE BEREERH
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis \mXORAAE 2/2
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REIESE 1/1
(resigned on 30 April 2013) (R=ZF—=FH =1 HFHF)
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRESESE 1/2
Mr. Zhou Guoping BRI S 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 and has also discussed the
internal control, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard, the Listing Rules and the statutory
requirements and that adquate disclosures have been
made in the annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

&

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established
since 2005 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which was available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company) have included the duties
which are set out in the Code Provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee was amended on 23 March 2012 in order to
comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is required, amongst other things, (i) to
determine, with delegated responsibility from the
Board, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors; (jii) to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; (iv) to review and approve the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and (v) to ensure
that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee should
meet at least once a year and when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD?”) (continued) EER(EER])@®
H.  Board Committees (continued) H ZEELZEg®W
(2)  Remuneration Committee (continued) Q) FHZEZ )

During the year under review, the Remuneration REBEFEN FWEZESR
Committee comprised Independent Non-executive FEARRRBIYIFRITEFTEX
Director of the Company, Mr. Wong Man Chung, FhEE(EHMWNEESTE) &
Francis, as the chairman of the Remuneration NREEZERTIEFERFHITE
Committee, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of BRRUR S MR AT H BRI
the Company, Mr. Han Jingyuan and the remaining NIFRITES  AIRGELEE
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company (RZZE—=FA=1+H&H
namely, Mr. Yu Tung Ho (resigned on 30 April 2013), ) TRELEMRARFL
Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping as the members £ YRFEMEEEKE &
of the Remuneration Committee in compliance with the & FTRBIEI 2B EZRTE -

Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, two meetings 2 E—=F+_-_fA=1+—
of Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance BIEFE @ HFMEZ e L8217
record of each member is set out as follow: MR B o KB Z HELek
wm
Number of

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Meeting Attended/
Committee members Eligilbe Attended
FMZEeeRLE

FMZESENE BERHERH
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXCRGE 2/2
Mr. Han Jingyuan BERIUR o 2/2
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REVERE 1/1

(resigned on 30 April 2013) (R=ZF—=FPH=—1HEFHF)
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELE 2/2
Mr. Zhou Guoping A& 2/2
Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year BEERNEBE-_T—=F+=
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the Note 32(b) RA=1T—HLFE Z2HMNFE
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual FH YRR ERE O SRR M
report. ¥ 32(b) °
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.

Board Committees (continued)

@

)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The biographies of members of the senior management
team at the date of this annual report are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographical Information” in this annual report. Pursuant
to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
emoluments of the senior management (excluding
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
within the following bands:

ARBATEARE1,000,000TC
(B1ETE1 25234875 7T)

RMB¥1 - RMB¥1,000,000
(approximately HK$1 to HK$1,252,348)
RMB¥1,000,001 - RMBY¥2,000,000
(approximately HK$1,252,349 to HK$2,504,696)
RMBY2,000,001 - RMB¥3,000,000
(approximately HK$2,504,697 to HK$3,757,044)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established on 23
March 2012 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee (which
was available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company) have included the duties which are
set out in the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly
to (i) review the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of directors; (i) make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning
of directors; (jii) assess the independence of independent
non-executive directors; and (iv) recommend the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity of the
Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

S

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee, will take into consideration
a candidate’s qualification, experience, expertise and
knowledge, the requirements applicable to the Company
and the structure and composition of the Board,
identifies, reviews and nominates with diligence and care
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before
making recommendations to the Board for their final
appointment.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
comprised Mr. Han Jingyuan, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee and the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Yu Tung Ho (resigned on 30
April 2018), Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping
as the members of the Nomination Committee in
compliance with Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, one meeting of
Nomination Committee was held. The attendance record
of each member is set out as follows:

Nomination
Committee members

EER(EERD®

H ZES=ZE2@w)

(3

HEBZ

/Hl][l
)
&

REZEENRNEZRANES
ZEREEEEHERR - BE
BIREAZERE - &8 - BR
Ko HGE ~ AN R 8 R ARTE A
NEZERZRERAEK - FIR
#hl - BELIRRAGAEE
RABTEZRKE ZRE
Ao

REBFEEAN REEZEER
BARREZREFRFAERE
NTERMRLE(REEZES
FF)RARBRE L IERTT

B% 0 AIESCGRELE - RIS
FEMNZZT—=FHA=1
BEHE) TRBLALERAEAR

FRAE ARG EESKE
BRFEEERBRR 2 SFANK
XEALNIEZIEE o

E-T-=H A=t
AR - REERERT—
REH - BRAZ RS
Bl :

Number of
Nomination Committee
Meeting Attended/
Eligible Attended

REZEGERLHE

REZEEHE BEREERE
Mr. Han Jingyuan BRI A 1/1

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXCORAEA 1/1

Mr. Yu Tung Ho RGVETRAE N/A 713 FA

(resigned on 30 April 2013) (R=ZF—=FPH =1 HEFHF)
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELE 1/1
Mr. Zhou Guoping A& 11

Annual Report 2013 —F—=44EH

43



>

44

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8 &

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 30 August 2013 with a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development of the Group. The Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy annually. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board’s composition
(including the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service) which has been disclosed on pages 23 to 28 in this report
and considered the current Board’s composition is appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and review the compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Internal Controls

The Board recognises that constant changes taking place in the
business environment call for periodical reviews of the system of
internal controls. Well-managed internal controls enable effective
and efficient operations, ensure the reliability of internal and external
reporting and assist in the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board recognises that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is primarily
responsible for designing and implementing the policies and
procedures of the internal controls, which the Board and the Audit
Committee oversee the actions of senior management and monitor
the effectiveness of the controls previously established.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (continued)

The Company’s internal audit function is performed by the internal
audit department of the Group which reports to the Chief Operating
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer and has direct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Chief Operating Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer report directly to the Chief Executive
Officer. The internal audit functions include (i) review and report on
internal and operational controls; (i) follow-up on the suggestions
made by external auditors; (i) ongoing monitoring and reviews on
different operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of concern
identified by senior management.

However, internal control can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against errors or deliberate attempt to defraud
the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee devote to
closely monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group. Periodical meetings will be held and
guidance notes and training will be issued and provided to the senior
management where appropriate, to ensure an efficient and effective
system of internal control is in place.

External Auditor

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this
report, the external auditor of the Group is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services (including interim
review and taxation services) provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms of the same international network for the year
ended 31 December 2013 were RMB 5.1 million and RMB 0.18
million respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditor (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this
report, PricewaterhouseCoopers and its member firms of the same
international network provided non-audit services mainly on interim
review and taxation services. These non-audit services are engaged
only as they are more effective or economical than those available
from other service providers and will not constitute adverse impact
on the independence of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of
annual fees to external auditor for non-audit services and for audit
services in 2013 have been scrutinized by the Audit Committee.

Risk Management

The Group’s business, financial conditions and results of operation
may be affected by risk and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
business. The factors set out below are those that the Company
believes could result in the Group’s financial conditions or results
of operations differing materially from expected or historical results.
There may be other risks in addition to those mentioned below which
are unknown to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Operation Risk

The Group’s results are affected by trends in the industry in which
it operates. Income from the operations is dependent upon the
conditions in global iron and steel market and the real estate
business in the PRC. Therefore there can be no assurance that
changes in these conditions will not adversely affect the Group’s
financial conditions and results of operations.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Market Risk

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the Mainland China. The Group operates in
highly competitive and rapidly changing market. The intensification
of price competition by existing competitors, product innovation or
technical advancement could adversely affect the Group’s financial
conditions and results operations.

Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

Credit risk arises from a number of areas. These include the
possibility that a counter-party in a transaction may default during the
settlement process. It also arises from lending, settlement, treasury,
transaction and other activities undertaken by the Group. During the
year under review, the Group entered into iron ore swap contracts
S0 as to reduce the impact of the volatility of the iron ore price on
the Group. The Group uses a combination of iron ore derivatives to
achieve the above purpose. The day-to-day credit management is
performed by the management of the respective subsidiaries with
reference to the creditworthiness, the type and value of collateral
available, the length of business relationship with the counter-parties
and the receipt of bank acceptance notes from customers.

Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers and
the Group’s Senior Notes, which is denominated and settled in USD.
Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to the macro-economic
performance of different countries and fund flows between countries
arising from trade or capital commitments. The Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong
for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. The written requisition must state the
purposes of the SGM, signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed
by one or more of those Shareholders. If the requisition is in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a
SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested. Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the Company’s registered office and its principal office
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less
than six weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition. If the written request
is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (j) to include
the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s)
concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined
by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM
or the statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post to the Hong Kong office.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

As mentioned before, over 90% of the operations of the Group
are carried in the Mainland China. Any change in the policy and
procedure in the Mainland China may have adverse effects on the
Group’s operation and results.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, Securities and Futures Commission and other regulatory
bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes in market
conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating results of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Shareholders of the Company. A Shareholders Communication
Policy was adopted on 23 March 2012 to ensure that Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company. The policy is
posed on the Company’s website. The Company has established
various channels of communications with its Shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a
timely manner. To promote effective communications, the Company
also maintains a website at www.chinaorientalgroup.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any).

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for exchange
of views between the Shareholders of the Company and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) and senior management of the Group and
where applicable are available to answer questions at the general
meeting of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The rights of the Shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such right to demand a
poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
Shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at general
meeting will be voted by poll. The poll voting results will be posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.chinaorientalgroup.com) immediately after the
relevant general meetings.

Under the Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The attendance records of the 2013 AGM and the special general
meeting of the Company (the “2013 SGM”) both held on 15 May 2013
for each of the individual Director were as follows:
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Board
EER

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Han Jingyuan BEURESE
Mr. Zhu Jun RELAE
Mr. Shen Xiaoling LR A
Mr. Zhu Hao apiras
Mr. Han Li BNEE

Non-executive Directors

FHTES
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec 5t &
(resigned on 15 July 2013) (R=F—=F+A+HAFF)
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 5t 4
Mr. Liu Lei - Eray e
(resigned on 30 July 2013) (R=F—=F+A=1HFF)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REESLE
(resigned on 30 April 2013) (R=F—=FlF=1HEHF)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXREE
Mr. Wang Tianyi FTRESE
Mr. Zhou Guoping [SIER

The Company will continue to enhance communication and
relationship with its Shareholders. Enquiries from the Shareholders of
the Company are dealt with in a informative and timely manner.
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The Board presents their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013.

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability on 3 November 2003 under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 2 March 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s principal activities are
investment holding and trading of iron and steel products. The
principal activities of the Group are manufacture and sales of iron and
steel products, trading of steel products and iron ore and real estate
business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the PRC and mainly from the production
and sales of iron and steel products and real estate business for
the year ended 31 December 2013 and are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2013 and its consolidated balance sheet as at that date,
together with the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December
2013, are set out in the financial statements on pages 81 to 86.

At a Board meeting held on 21 March 2014, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
13 June 2014 to Tuesday, 17 June 2014 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company may
be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting.
The record date for the annual general meeting shall be 17 June
2014. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share register in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. Thursday, on 12 June
2014,

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated financial results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, is set out on page 244.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s accumulated losses
amounted to RMB 792 million (2012: RMB 578 million) and the
Company did not have distributable reserves.

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s retained earnings amounted to
RMB 5,100 million (2012: RMB 5,045 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Han Li
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(resigned on 15 July 2013)
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Mr. Liu Lei
(resigned on 30 July 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Tung Ho
(resigned on 30 April 2013)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping

In accordance to the Bye-laws 87 of the Company, Mr. Shen
Xiaoling, Mr. Han Li and Mr. Wang Tianyi will retire from office by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Directors’ fee specified in each of the existing service contracts
of Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Han Li and Mr. Wang Tianyi is HK$400,000.
The basis of determining the Directors’ fee was based on the mutual
negotiation between level of the Directors with reference to the range
of prevailing directors’ fee for directors of listed companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Han Li is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and the substantial shareholder (within
the meaning of the Part XV of the SFO) (holding approximately
46.01% of the shareholding of the Company) of the Company.
Save as disclosed in this annual report, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and
Mr. Wang Tianyi do not have any relationships with any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No Director had a material interest in any contract of significance

to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B 3% B A FR A 7

EMITES

Ondra Otradovec %4
(R=ZF—=F+H+HHAFF)

Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 5t 4

EilFaitas
(R=ZF—=F+H="1HFHTF)

B IEMITES

REERAE
(R-F—=F/ A=+ HEFIT)

BEXREE

TR&ERAE

AR A4

BEARTHATERESTE - LEE
G BARERTRELEBRER
WEBEAE FHERET BELFE
ERMEEREERRAFASEIRE
£

MR EE BARERTRERLES
BONREARBENNESTERERI08E
T BEEHEMNEENZAZESTHAF
ERYA2ERELTAREEEMNZ
EEMEKIMEE - BHXRERAR
RAEFERIFERAFATE MRIEES
KB GRAIEXVEBAR A E EEER
BYRTE(EBAEARBBRAER L
46.01%)E 52T ° BRANFIRATREE D -
MEREEREIRBRREMEERQE
HMEE SREEAR  T2RRH
R R AR R

BIE ETARAE3A3K - AARIEEE
BB FNTEFHFERERLNER
HIBYM - ARBIRBABELIFTT
B RBEY -

EENaNER
EENFAMERNR R AT

RBIR] L8 A R B 75 B B AR E
BRAREAE A



Directors’ Report EE k&

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 23 to 29 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Five Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years, one Non-executive Director has
service contract with the Company for a fixed term of two years. All
the Independent Non-executive Directors have service contracts
with the Company for a fixed term of one year. All the service
contracts with the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors
may be terminated by either party giving not less than three months’
notice in writing.

Apart from the Director service contracts, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr.
Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and Mr. Han Li also have other service
contracts with the Company and its subsidiaries. The emoluments
specified in other service contracts with them are determined by
the remuneration committee of the Company with reference to
their respective qualification and experience, responsibilities to be
undertaken, and the prevailing market level of remuneration of similar
position.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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BORROWINGS WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Pursuant to the covenants of the 2015 Senior Notes and 2017
Senior Notes of the Company, there are specific performance
obligations imposed on the Company’s controlling shareholders
which require that each of Mr. Han Jingyuan and ArcelorMittal
should directly or indirectly retain at least 20% of the total voting
power of the voting stock of the Company. As at 31 December
2013, the outstanding aggregate principal of the 2015 Senior Notes
and the 2017 Senior Notes amounting to US$490,183,000 and
US$212,760,000 respectively will be expired on 18 August 2015 and
17 November 2017 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the interest and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SECURITIES (continued)

M
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Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

Mr. Han Jingyuan (Notes 1)
SR A ()

Mr. Zhu Jun
KERE

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
ioEp it

Mr. Zhu Hao
ERE

Mr. Han Li
BNRE

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar & &£

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
BEXREL

Mr. Wang Tianyi
IRERLE

Mr. Zhou Guoping
AEFE

Interests in Shares

g $5
Corporate Personal
Interest Interest
DEER B AR

1,317,502,849

2,800,000

2,400,000

2,400,000

EENIBENESRAE @

)

AR B AR R B4 S -

Interests in
underlying
shares
pursuant to
share
options
RIBBRE
EHBERG
i} 3

28,500,000

7,800,000

7,800,000

7,800,000

5,400,000

2,000,000

6,600,000

2,000,000

Percentage
of the
Company’s
issued share
capital
AR
ERTRA
NEAL

44.94%
1.07%

0.35%

0.35%

0.27%

0.18%

0.07%

0.23%

0.07%

Long/Short
position

%/ %R

Long (#F)
Long (4F)

Long ()

Long ()

Long ()

Long ()

Long ()

Long ()

Long ()
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

U

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

(continued)

Note:

At 31 December 2013, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially
owned 63.15% of the issued share capital of Wellbeing
Holdings Limited (“Wellbeing Holdings”) and held 16.09%
of the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings on trust
for the benefit of certain employees of the subsidiary of
the Company. Wellbeing Holdings beneficially owned
1,255,849,124 Shares, representing approximately 42.84%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Han also
beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of
Chingford Holdings Limited (“Chingford Holdings”) which
beneficially owned 61,653,725 Shares, representing
approximately 2.10% of the issued Shares.

At 31 December 2013, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owns
2,800,000 Shares, representing approximately 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled
Share Option Scheme” below, at 31 December 2013, none
of the Directors, chief executives and their associates of the

Company had any interest and short positions in the Shares,

underlying shares and Senior Notes of the Company or any

of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted three share option schemes approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 17 May
2006 (“2006 Share Option Scheme”), approved by the Shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 20 December 2010 (“2010
Share Option Scheme”) and approved by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 15 May 2013 (“2013 Share Option
Scheme”) respectively (collectively referred to as “Share Option
Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who are regarded as valuable human resources
of the Group or who have contributed to the growth and success
of the Group with their performance and other factors (e.g. their
years of service with the Company and/or work experience and/or
knowledge in the industry etc.) to contribute further to the Company.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise of
an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Scheme. The
Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting of an
option on a case by case basis taking into account of the relevant
factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers appropriate.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the Share Option
Schemes to each eligible participant within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders
approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years from their respective dates of adoption.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (a)
the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The consideration payable on acceptance of the options granted to
an grantee under the respective Share Option Schemes is HK$1.00.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Schemes upon exercising of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised is 298,620,000 Shares, representing
approximately 10.19% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2013.

Pursuant to the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2006
Share Option Scheme are 290,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.91% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2013. Eligible participants of the 2006 Share Option
Scheme includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive
and whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-
time or part-time) of any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether
on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid). Details of the share options outstanding
under 2006 Share Option Scheme were as follows:
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of  the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options duringthe lapsed during  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  yearended the year ended t inthe share
Exercisable Exercise before the t 31December 31 December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2013 2013 2013 2013 the Company
REE
REE -B-zf% B

it 3 tzf Z%-=f%
“E-cF t-f  =t-At T2 BRERE
2 -f-B  Zt-AL EBREFE/ =t-8B RGERLT
RFRAMN AEEN  EEART BEE/ANY A RAmRE
B¥R  OUfTEHE TEE SRUTE BREHE NEREZE BREEE  BREZE  #HEAM
HKS HKS$
BT BT

Mr. Han Jingyuan 2000224 20092124 139 124 2900000 - - 2800000 0.10%
BHRE to

E2

2019/2/23

20101126 201012720 3.00 3.00 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.20%

to

E2

2016/5/16

Mr. Zhu Jun 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 124 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE fo

ES

2019/2/23

Mr. Shen Yaoiing 20092024 20092124 139 124 2600000 - - 2600000 0.08%
Yy o

oy
==

2019/2/23

Mr. Zhu Hao 20002024 2000/2/24 19 124 2,600,000 - - 2600000 009%
Bk fo

ay
==

2019/2/23
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENBRESTE @)
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options during the lapsed during  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  year ended the year ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise hefore the at 31December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2013 2013 2013 2013 the Company
REE
REE C-%-= R

R ZB-ZF tZh  ZE-Zf
8-z tZA  Zt-At T2 EREEE
g%  -B-B  Zt-AL FEREAE/  =t-B RGERLAT
RTEAN  ROEN  FEART EB/XMN AGEN  RANRE
RFR  AARHE fiffE SRUTE BREME NBREHE BREME  BREME  HNEAM

HKS$ HKS
B BT
Mr. Hen Li 2009/12/29 2010329 284 217 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 0.06%
Bk o
Y
2019/12/28
Mr. Wong Man 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
Chung, Francis to
Y G z
2019/2/23
Employess 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.04%
EE to
E
2019/2/23
Employess 2009/12/29 20101329 2.84 277 140,050,000 - - 140,060,000 4.78%
[E8 fo
S
2019/12/28
Other Participants 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 6,600,000 - 2,000,000) 4,600,000 0.16%
HpEz o (Note 7 and 2)
3 (BiF142)
2019/2/23
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

IR R B IRER &)

Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No.of the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options duringthe lapsed during  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  yearended the year ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise before the at 31December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2013 2013 2013 2013 the Company
REZE
REE C-E-= B
R ZB-ZF tZh 2%z
g-zf t=F  =t-AL t2A  BRERE
g%  -A-B  Zt-AL FEREAE/  =t-B RGERLAT
RTEAN  AOEN  EEART EB/XMN AGEN  RANRE
RFR  AORER EE SRUTE BREHE NEBREHE BREHE BRE¥E  H0ESH
HKS HKS$
AR BT
Qther Participants 2009/5/11 2009/5/11 1.50 149 4,600,000 - (2,600,000 2,000,000 0.07%
28z fo (Note 2
3 (fit2)
20195510
Total
&it 172,750,000 - (4,600,000 168,150,000 5.74%

Note 1: During the year ended 31 December 2013, 1,000,000 options
were exercised at HK$1.39 and the weighted average closing
price of the Shares immediately before the dates on which the

Bt REZE-—T—=#+=-A=+—H
IEEE A - 1,000,000 A% 5 B HE B 3%
1.398 T 2 BRI - Iy Z hniE

FHRmEREZERETFE A
BRI A1.62 87T °

options were exercised was HK$1.62.

Bl REZE-—T—=%+=-A=+—H
IEEE A - 3,600,000 A% B IS <
B o

Note 2: During the year ended 31 December 2013, 3,600,000 options
were lapsed.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the Company can issue
options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme are 146,486,250 Shares, representing approximately 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2013.
Eligible participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme includes
all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and whether
independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of any company in the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an employment
or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid
or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors to have
contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest. Details of the share
options outstanding under 2010 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

Closing
price No. of
per Share options
immediately  outstanding
Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at 1 January
Date of grant period price  date of grant 2013
RZ8-Z%
g% -A-8
RTRAG  ROREN
&FE  UHKEHR € SRUmE BREHA
HK$ HKS
AR B
Mr. Han Jingyuan 20110328 2011/04/27 3.08 3.08 9,800,000
B o
Y
2021/03/27
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8 5146,486,250 ILAX1D - 16
ARBIR - ZE—=F+_A=1+—HHW
DEITRARL) 5% o — B —BEREMET
EMEER2HEREARREZBES
(BERPTESIERTESTRERES
i) AEEEAKE ARSI AEE T
K B RRFERAES TR E S
ERES (EmEBaER) C(TmEER
A AONEERHMEERRER
FINESRAYAEBEEMAKNE T
REETRKEARFERAERSOET
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FRERETS THRITENBRESS

TTEVRLD

e

No. of
options
granted

during the
year ended
31 December
2013

REE
ZE-ck
2R
=t-AL
EERET
MERESR

No. of
options
exercised/
cancelled/
lapsed during
the year
ended

31 December
2013

REZE
ZE-cF
t2A
=t-At
EER
Bt/
i/ K
BREHA

No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2013

R-g-zE
28
=t+-H
RTEH
EREZE

9,800,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERR
RiERAT
BAfkE
CHER

0.33%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No. of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share

Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2013 2013 2013 2013 the Company
REE
ZE-=f
3K t=A

“E-ZF C-AE RoE-=E
R=8-=F +2R EER T2 BRERE
g -A-B =t-At  BfE/  Zt-B RHERLR
RYAAG  KOBEN  FERET HE/AMN KON RANRE

B¥R  UEHE FE SRUTE EREZE MERERE ERERE  BREHE  #E
HKS$ HKS$

B B

Mr. Han Jingyuan 2012/03/30  2012/05/30 203 201 9,800,000 - - 9,800,000 0.33%
BiEnt o

oy
T

202012119

Mr. Zhu Jun 20101224 2010/12/24 3.182 317 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
KERE fo

ES

202012119

20120330 2012/03/30 2.0 201 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%

to

ey
=i

20201219

Mr. Shen Xiaoling 2010/12/24 2010/12/24 3.182 317 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
BRLE fo

ES

202012119

20120330 2012/03/30 2.0 201 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%

to

E2

20201219
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Date of grant

il

Mr. Zhu Hao 201012/24
RERE

2012/03/30

Mr. Han Li 201012/24
Lyt

2012/03/30

Mr. Viiay Kumar 2012/03/30

Bhatnagar
Viiay Kumar Bhatnagar 72

Exercisable
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No. of
options
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at 1 January
2013
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No. of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Date of grant
il
Employes 2011/01/14
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No. of Approximate
options shareholding
No.of  exercised/ percentage of
options  cancelled/ No. of the underlying
No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for
options during the theyear  outstanding  the options
outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share
at1January 31 December 31December 31 December capital of
2013 2013 2013 2013 the Company
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BEEHE HBREHE BRESE BREHE  #AEoH
800,000 - - 800,000 0.03%
48,470,000 - - 48470000 1.65%
9,636,000 - (3,036,000) 6,600,000 0.23%

(Note 3)

(##3)
7,560,000 - (2,760,000) 4,800,000 0.16%

(Note 3)

(#it3)
136,266,000 - (6,796,000 130,470,000 4.45%

HiE3 REE-F—=F+=-A=+—8

Note 3: 5,796,000 options were lapsed during the year ended 31

December 2013.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme are 146,571,250 Shares, representing 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
20183. Eligible participants of the 2013 Share Option Scheme
includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and
whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time
or parttime) of any company in the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an
employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors
to have contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest. As at 31
December 2013, no options were granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme.

The accounting policy for equity-settled share option is stated in the
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or were the Company or any of
its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Company’s Directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and the transactions as disclosed in
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries have any contract of
significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company,
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
are as follows:

Number of
Name shares held
=% FrRHEE
Wellbeing Holdings 1,255,849,124
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG 867,711,151
(“AM Holdings AG”) (Note 1) 509,780,740
([ AM Holdings AG ) (#&5E 1)
ING Bank N.V. (Note 2) (f&zF2) 289,990,800
289,990,800
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft (Note 3) 220,934,306
EELRIT(HE3) 219,801,940
Notes:

(1) At 31 December 2013, Mr. Lakshmi Niwas Mittal and Mrs. Usha
Mittal beneficially own 39.39% of the issued share capital of
ArcelorMittal which indirectly holds the entire equity interest in
AM Holdings AG, which beneficially owns 867,711,151 Shares,
representing approximately 29.60% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

On 30 April 2008, ArcelorMittal entered into a put option
agreement with ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft, pursuant to which ArcelorMittal granted an
option to ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
over an aggregate of 509,780,740 Shares, representing
approximately 17.39% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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Percentage

of the Company’s
issued share Long/Short
capital Position

HERATE
BITREAESL %/ KE
42.84% Long (%F)
29.60% Long (&f)
17.39% Long (%)
9.89% Long (&)
9.89% Short (%)
7.54% Long (%F)
7.50% Short (%)

CrEa

(1) MZZE—=F+=-A=+—H -Lakshmi
Niwas Mittal 4t 4= 1 Usha Mittal A K& 28
8 ArcelorMittal B 27778 39.39% °
il ArcelorMittal %% 48 AM Holdings
AGZE RS © AM Holdings AGE
@A 867,711,151 A AR R RIARD -
HEAR R B BB TIRZARAY29.60% 1 5

RZZTZE)N\FMA=+H - ArcelorMittal
2 B EING Bank N.V. Al 1= & & iR
TEFT —HRAHERE B
ArcelorMittal 7 B F ING Bank N.V.
MEZERT—EREHE 4%
509,780,740 IR FY AR 2 RIAR 7+ &9Mh A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

On 25 March 2011, ArcelorMittal entered into the extended put
option agreements with each of ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche
Bank Aktiengesellschaft by extending the aforesaid put option
agreements for a further term of 36 months from 30 April 2011.

On 30 April 2008, ArcelorMittal and ING Bank N.V. entered into
a put option agreement, pursuant to which ArcelorMittal granted
an option to ING Bank N.V. to sell 289,990,800 Shares. As at
31 December 2013, ING Bank N.V. owned 289,990,800 Shares,
representing approximately 9.89% of the issued shares capital of
the Company.

On 25 March 2011, ArcelorMittal entered into an extended put
option agreement with ING Bank N.V. by extending the aforesaid
put option agreement for a further term of 36 months from 30 April
2011.

On 30 April 2008, ArcelorMittal and Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft entered into a put option agreement in
which ArcelorMittal granted an option to Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft to sell 219,789,940 Shares. As at 31 December
2013, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft owned 220,934,306
Shares, representing approximately 7.54% of the issued shares
capital of the Company.

On 25 March 2011, ArcelorMittal entered into an extended put
option agreement with Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft by
extending the aforesaid put option agreement for a further term of
36 months from 30 April 2011.

Saved as disclosed above and in Directors’ Interests and Short

Positions in Securities sections, at 31 December 2013, no person,

other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, had

interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had conducted a review of the related
party transactions of the Group and is satisfied that all connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions have been
properly reported and complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into and/or
are ongoing for which relevant announcements and independent
shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been made and obtained
by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and disclosed in the Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Company where applicable.

Continuing connected transactions

On 17 November 2010, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Jinxin Mining Company Limited
(“Jinxin Mining”), an associate of a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company, for the purchase of iron powder and
related products from Jinxin Mining by Jinxi Limited for the three
years ended 31 December 2013. The annual cap for this transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB 1,268 million. The
total amount of the aforesaid transaction incurred by Jinxi Limited
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB
8.32 million (excluding VAT).

On 22 January 2011, Jinxi Limited entered into the iron and steel
framework agreement with Luxembourg Steel (Sichuan) Company
Limited (“Luxembourg Steel”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of ArcelorMittal, a substantial shareholder of the Company, in which
Jinxi Limited would sell steel products to Luxembourg Steel at
prevailing market prices for a period of approximately three years
from 22 January 2011 to 31 December 2013. The annual cap for
this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB
80 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was nil (excluding VAT) (Note 42(b)(i)).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 22 January 2011, Hebei Jinxi Section Steel Company Limited
(“Jinxi Section Steel”) entered into the iron and steel framework
agreement with Luxembourg Steel, in which Jinxi Section Steel
would sell steel products to Luxembourg Steel at prevailing market
prices for a period of approximately three years from 22 January
2011 to 31 December 2013. The annual cap for this transaction for
the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB 80 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2013 was nil (excluding VAT) (Note 42(b)(i)).

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Longba Charging Company Limited
(“Longba Charging”), an associate of a substantial shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Company, for the purchase of lime products
and related products from Longba Charging by Jinxi Limited for
the three years ending 31 December 2015. The annual cap for this
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB 180
million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was RMB 104.78 million (excluding VAT).

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Pingguan County Jinyin Charging Company Limited
(“Pingguan County Jinyin”), a company established in the PRC
and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
an associate of a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company, for the purchase of lime products and related products
from Pingquan County Jinyin by Jinxi Limited for the three years
ending 31 December 2015. The annual cap for this transaction for
the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB 7.5 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2013 was RMB 448,000 (excluding VAT).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Han’erzhuang Village Wang Zhihong
Iron Ore Mill (“Qianxi Iron Ore Mill”), a connected person of the
Group, in which Jinxi Limited would purchase iron powder from
Qianxi Iron Ore Mill at prevailing market prices for the three years
ending 31 December 2015. The annual cap for this transaction for
the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB 182 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2013 was nil (excluding VAT) (Note 42(bj(ii)).

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.
The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into (a)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) either
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its letter containing his findings
and unqualified conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 74 to 76 of the Annual
Report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the best knowledge of the Board, there was 25% or more
of the listed issued share capital of the Company being held in public
hands as at 22 April 2014, being the latest practicable date prior to
printing of this report.

However, on 23 December 2013, the Board of the Company
received a letter from the Stock Exchange (the “Letter”) pursuant to
which, it was stated, inter alia, that the Stock Exchange expressed
its views on the pubic shareholding issue of the Company as follows:

(i) the current put option structure between ArcelorMittal, ING
Bank N.V. (“ING”) and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
(“Deutsche Bank”) would, after its expiry on 30 April 2014, no
longer be acceptable as a measure to restore the Company’s
public float; and

(i) the Company should engage its Shareholders and explore
alternative mechanisms to restore its public float at its earliest
opportunity.

In the Letter, the Stock Exchange further stated that it has reviewed
the current put option structure between ArcelorMittal, ING and
Deutsche Bank and taken the view that such put option structure
cannot address the issue of restoring the Minimum Public Float
of the Company as a permanent measure. The current put option
arrangement will expire on 30 April 2014. The Stock Exchange
reiterates its position that, after 30 April 2014, it will no longer
accept any arrangement similar to that of the current put option as
a measure to restore the Company’s public float. If the existing put
options are exercised by ING and Deutsche Bank on 30 April 2014,
the public float of the Company will revert to approximately 7.9% and
the Stock Exchange would normally require trading suspension.

Meetings have been convened between Mr. Han Jingyuan (the
substantial shareholder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, “Mr.
Han”) and the representatives from ArcelorMittal in exploring all
reasonable options to solve the public float issue of the Company
but no agreeable solution was reached by both parties as at 22 April
2014, being the latest practicable date prior to printing of this report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT (continued)

The Board will continue to monitor the progress of the above
conditions and matters, and will continue to take such action and step
as appropriate with a view to be in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Company will make further announcement to inform its
shareholders and potential investors for the development as and
when appropriate pursuant to the Listing Rules and/or the SFO.

If the public float issue cannot be resolved before 30 April
2014, it is possible that the shares of the Company would be
suspended for trading. Shareholders of the Company and
potential investors are advised to exercise caution when
dealing in the securities of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

HAN Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ef ik &

_
pwc

To the Shareholders of China Oriental Group Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 243,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

P
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AAZEED (AT 78 [ 3 ) B ET5H
RESIE243EFBHERE ST EEZERE
RARIATEREAR ) REMBA
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WK A ESEHRLAHBESR
EX URFESHBEMEREMZE
FRIEER -

EESHaMBRRARENEE

BERREFAREARBEEESTNAS
MBI EREER REB(R B
FERERERBEHHBEEHREK - UL
EHMBERRFELEEM R FRRER -
REBERBR/WEECHUBRRALE
HIABES - EAHBBHRE T FE
A EREF S AR T G B B KA AR R A

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

FRLT K Bt T T - AR B K
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Hat# : +852 2289 8888 ¢ K : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ef ik &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheet §3f&EE& &R

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2013

>

(BRBEEHIN TELEHUARB(ARE]) FrhaEM) R-Z—=F+-A=+—H
As at 31 December
R+=ZHA=+—H
Note 2013 2012
B = —B-—=F —T——f
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE £ ith N £ {55 A 6 130,318 133,723
Property, plant and equipment s - BB LG 7 9,160,405 9,039,970
Investment properties KEY 8 14,372 15,178
Intangible assets A E 9 8,760 8,629
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESpEE 15 149,701 157,280
Trade receivables FEUE Z R 17 - 576,155
Prepayments, deposits and TANFIE ~ e REM
other receivables FEURBR X 18 - 456,058
Loan receivable FEUE TR 19 - 300,000
Long-term bank deposits KHISRTTER 20 52,000 =
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSIRE E 28 285,894 201,090
9,801,450 10,888,083
Current assets REEE
Properties under development BRP RIFELEME
and held for sale 14 880,568 388,013
Inventories VEXY 16 3,689,967 3,192,558
Trade receivables TEUNE SRR 17 1,110,753 547,758
Prepayments, deposits and TANFIE ~ e REM
other receivables FEURBR X 18 1,799,770 1,787,922
Amounts due from related parties JE U B BSE 77 78 42(c) 4,996 90,107
Prepaid current income tax B E BRI E 66,607 86,307
Loan receivables FEUE TR 19 363,232 79,700
Notes receivable — FEUREEE — SR1THCL
bank acceptance notes [ES= 17 3,449,103 5,702,736
Restricted bank balances R HIRITAEER 20 1,616,022 1,109,794
Cash and cash equivalents B RINESEBEY 20 968,132 879,005
13,949,150 13,863,900
Total assets HBEE 23,750,600 24,751,983
EQUITY fE=
Equity attributable to owners BERAATER
of the Company ¥EE
Ordinary shares LB 21 311,853 311,772
Share premium vyl 21 2,192,131 2,191,087
Other reserves Hub 22 1,587,224 1,493,880
Retained earnings Bl 5,099,996 5,045,030
9,191,204 9,041,769
Non-controlling interests eI MR AR 519,698 513,247
Total equity EREE 9,710,902 9,555,016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet continued) EHEEEER &)

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREEAMN  FESEANARE [ARE])) FrhEl)

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Other long-term payables
Deferred revenue
Amounts due to related parties

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Accruals, advances and
other current liabilities
Amounts due to related parties
Current income tax liabilities
Other long-term payables —
current portion
Borrowings
Dividends payable

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

afE
FRBEE

=L

Hi REIRE K
RIEWA
FEAS BB 07 IR

RBRE
e 8 2 RK

BIRER - FAWFUR

REMTRBEE
FEAS BB 07 IR
EHMEHRAE
HAi KRR —

e

fe %

AR

mEfE
BEREESH
REBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE

Han Jingyuan

BYE

Chairman

The notes on pages 90 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

1

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7

As at 31 December 2013
RZE-—=F+=-A=+—8°

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
Note 2013 2012
Btk —E—= —E——fF
25 4,283,962 4,501,105
26 26,129 26,129
27 57,674 47,293
42(c) 89,263 89,263
4,457,028 4,663,790
23 3,521,390 3,678,585
24 2,341,023 2,773,751
42(c) 181,716 54,046
66,930 53,314
26 - 115,007
25 3,435,497 3,853,899
36,114 4,575
9,582,670 10,533,177
14,039,698 15,196,967
23,750,600 24,751,983
4,366,480 3,330,723
14,167,930 14,218,806
Shen Xiaoling
R
Director
3
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Company Balance Sheet AR EE&BER <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2013
(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) R-Z—=5+"HA=1+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
Note 2013 2012
MI5E —E-=F =—ZT—=F
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRR 7 724 660
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIEE 10(a) 602,699 589,566
Loans to subsidiaries B ARER 11 4,231,587 4,521,138
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE 15 40,096 47,675
4,875,106 5,159,039
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables TEUNE SRR 17 2,183,580 2,736,279
Prepayments, deposits and JEREIE e R
other receivables Hfh fE IR BR TX 18 1,539 2,560
Restricted bank balances IR HIERTT 458 20 39,325 201,685
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEYD 20 41,433 39,866
2,265,877 2,980,390
Total assets HMEE 7,140,983 8,139,429
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BERAAT
of the Company EEEEE
Share capital A& 2N 21 311,853 311,772
Share premium &5 imE 21 2,192,131 2,191,087
Other reserves Hi 22 425,385 376,531
Accumulated losses Bt EE (792,354) (578,460)
Total equity EEas 2,137,015 2,300,930
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<// Company Balance Sheet (continued) A B EEEER #)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2013
(BRBEAN MESEINARBTIREN) R-T—=F+"A=1—H

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
Note 2013 2012
MI5E —E—=F —ZT——F
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings =k 25 4,258,962 4,376,105
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables T E Z AR 23 9,211 160,974
Accruals and other current liabilities TERRERAREMRBEE 24 113,843 123,257
Borrowings =% 25 621,820 1,178,028
Dividends payable FERR B 132 135
745,006 1,462,394
Total liabilities AR 5,003,968 5,838,499
Total equity and liabilities ERRkE8EaT 7,140,983 8,139,429
Net current assets REEEFRE 1,520,871 1,517,996
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAE 6,395,977 6,677,035
Han Jingyuan Shen Xiaoling
BaE TCREES
Chairman Director
EY o

The notes on pages 90 to 243 are an integral part of these financial FOOE243BE Mz A% M fS ik fy =R a2
statements. — 25 o
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Other (losses)/gains-net

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income/(costs)-net
Share of result of an associate

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit

attributable to owners of the

Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)

— Basic earnings per share

— Diluted earnings per share

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

YA
HEMRA
E5
HAb WA
7 HHAAS
TTHREM

HA % A
Hi (B518), s — 58

TR
LUELT N
FATERR AN

B (BRA) — B8
FE(H— IS A RIEE

BR P 1§55 AE

FEHER
FEERF

R (R BER
ARG REE
TR IR as

FRAXARRSRFEE
FEAE SR 892 IR W 2k
(BAR%TT)

— AR AU S
— SRR

The notes on pages 90 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Dividends

RE

Note
MI5E

31

30
31
31
31
29

33
33

34

37
37

SOES

_ng/\

7]

H

38

Consolidated Income Statement &6t @R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_Z-—-F+-A=1TBILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
32,516,937 36,122,358
(31,513,169)  (34,958,840)
1,003,768 1,163,518
90,918 35,958
(116,241) (97,583)
(620,841) (525,680)
(43,276) (47,615)
(68,539) 164,149
245,789 692,747
185,278 145,179
(181,726) (499,173)
3,552 (353,994)

- (12,697)
249,341 326,056
(186,313) (179,579)
63,028 146,477
101,609 126,062
(38,581) 20,415
63,028 146,477

AR¥0.03t AR¥E0.047TC
AR®0.03Tt AR¥0.047C

243 B MR ez FR TS MR R

o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income & #f&=& @&

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
IS EIUARE T RER)

(=B

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Item that may be reclassi>ed
subsequently to pro>t or loss

Transfer of fair value losses previously
taken to reserve to income
statement upon impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets

Fair value gains/(losses) on available-
for-sale financial assets

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FEEF
HfttAR & Was

HEHEDEE
Rar & H)H A
RABHESREE
IR 1 SEATETA
RN AR EEBR
BElaER

AR ESREEN
NnEEkE(ER)

FEFEWEEF

REBR
AARESFHEE
FEoE ) R RS

The notes on pages 90 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—=-F+-A=T—HILLFE

Note
MI5E

15

15

H

_%zB/\

7]

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
63,028 146,477
3,892 -
12,374 (10,696)
16,266 (10,696)
79,294 135,781
117,875 115,366
(38,581) 20,415
79,294 135,781

o

90Z 243 H HPH it Aax F M T R B 2



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &t =2 8*

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

Balance at 1 January 2012

Comprehensive income
Proft for the year

Other comprehensive income

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to proft or loss

Fair value losses on available-
for-sale financial assets

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Employee share options scheme:
- Proceeds from shares issued
- Value of employee services
Profit appropriation to
statutory reserves
Changes in ownership interests in a
subsidliary without change of control
Dividends to non-controlling interests

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2012

>

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

RZB-Z%-F-BHLe

B
FREH

Afetrati
EKABNRERER
HBA
TRHESHAE
WAL ERER

FRlEA

RERREENRS
EERERET:
~B{IRAMETE
-EERENER
WEERHBELD
EEpa 2
EARE ISR ER TS
REBARMAAEER  10Q)
BT RE

REHRRENRASH

R=%-ZFt=Az1-f
itk

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRARERRERD

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controling Total
captal  premium  reserves  eamings Total interests equity
FRbIE
Bx BRORE AtEE  ERkE it s ERA

3,5 2190201 1,370287 4991327 8863620 647,730 9,511,350

= = - 126062 126,002 20415 146477

- - (1063 - (1069%)

(10,696)

= - (106%) 126062 115366 20415 135,781

57 7% = = 863 = 863
= = 72,205 72,225 = 72,206

- - DB (1239 - - -

- - (102%) - (02 (83349 (93649
i § B, - - e (7150

57 79 134289 (72359 62783 (164898  (92,119)

3,72 2,191,087 1493880 5045030 9,041,769 513247 9,565,016
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) &R EEI* #)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

P ERAUARE T ITRER)

bR AR

Balance at 1 January 2013

Comprehensive income
Proft/{loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Transfer of fair value losses
previously taken to reserve o
income statement upon impaiment
of avallable-for-sale financial assets
Fair value gains on available-for-
sale financial assets

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Employee share options scheme:

- Proceeds from shares issued

- Value of employee services
Proft appropriation to

tatutory reserves

Establishment of a subsioliary
Changes in ownership interests in @

Subsidliary without change of control
Dividends to non-controling interests

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2013

The notes on pages 90 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

R-2-=F-A-RNER

Faka
FREH/(BR)
Afptral
EKIBNRERER
HBE
RUBHESHEERES
RAEAEARBRAA
BEBRBEHER

Ui eHAE
WAL EEkE

GalEA

HERKAENRS
EEERET
~BROMETE
-EERBNER
REE G E(ELN
bl 2
—FHEAR 10/
ETHEEENERTEE
REBARNMEREER 100
BTFHEEERRE

REHEREORAA

RZB-ZF+ZA=1-H
e

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E_E-=F T _A=T—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARRREEEL
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
FRM
kx  RiaE EtRE ERkE fazt B:  EHEeH
31,772 2,191,087 1,493,880 5045030 9,041,769 513247 9,555,016
- - - 101,609 101,609  (38,581) 63,028
- - 3,892 - 3,892 - 3,892
- - 12,374 - 12,374 - 12,374
- - 16,266 101,609 117875  (38581) 79,204
81 1,044 - - 1,125 - 1,125
- - 32,588 - 32,588 - 32,588
- - 46,643 (46,643 - - -
- - - - - 52,000 52,000
- - (2,153) - (2,153 24574 241
- - - - - (3154 (31,542
81 1,044 77,078 (46,643) 31,560 45,032 76,592
311,853 2192131 1,587,224 5099996 9,191,204 519,698 9,710,902
FI0E243AHM T RELEMBMA LR
—&k5 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement §3#R&£RER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_Z-—-F+-A=1TBILFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBPN  AESEINARETTRER)

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Changes in ownership interests in a
subsidiary without change of control
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property,
plant and equipment
Investment income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Investment income from loan receivables
Increase in loan receivables
Increase in long-term bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary
in previous year
Proceeds from disposal of an associate
Decrease/(increase) in amount due
from related parties

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Capital injection by non-controlling interests
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
Cash paid relating to sales and
leaseback transaction
Increase in amounts due to related parties
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank
balances pledged as security for
current bank borrowings

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

The notes on pages 90 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Note
Mzt

RECEZHNRALTHE
EfERENRS 39
BUkFI 2
BERFIE
BRAEH

EER/ (AR BEED
MRS HE

RERETBNESTRE
ETREEGENERATEE
R EARR A s 10
BENE  BERESE
HEME - BERRE
MFER 39
REBARBEFEEEEH
AEGRNEHEENRE R 30
REABKEFATE bz
FEMERE AN
RERITEFIEM
REFEHERBARMN
FSE
HEBENFNAEZE 29
FEMBRE A FOE R D/ (480

BRRE BT EFE
REMEEBNATRE

BRAE5R

[BEMER

AARARRXA ZBE

[DEZELEE S g Pl es)

IR T 10

BTEBRMENE

FHERDRRHE
MRS

FE AT BBy SORIE A

{ERRERITENERE
SR BRI
(2m),/ o

(BR)/ELAREEDNREFE
ReRRLEENEN/ (D) I8
HEEXEHNTE

R RASEEN 20
FREERATEEN 20

Year ended 31 December

HETZA=1T-HLEFE

2013 2012
—E-=F “T-—F
1,703,532 637,613
108,458 84,395
(437,482) (562,742)
(237,801) (414,040)
1,136,707 (254,774)
- (93,643)
(567,154) (474,265)
404 195
50,419 =
54,389 42,679
(24,501) (60,000)
(52,000) =

- 40,000
50,000 =
86,188 (13,720)
(402,255) (558,754)
6,390,442 7,849,055
(6,810,540) (6,923,610)
= (13)

- (71,550)
52,000 =
1,125 853
(122,334) (261,243
128,000 34,555
(273,467) 100,407
(634,774) 728,454
99,678 (85,074)
(10,551) (1,003)
879,005 965,082
968,132 879,005
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREEBAMN FESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as a result of a group reorganisation.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

Following the completion of the global offering, the Company’s
shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 2 March 2004.

The Company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Group. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of iron and steel
products, trading of steel products and iron ore and real
estate business. The Group has manufacturing plants in Hebei
Province and Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and sells mainly to customers located in the
PRC. The Group engages in real estate business in the PRC.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 21 March
2014,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2013

—REHR

FERAEEZERBERAA(AR
ADR-_FZF=F+—A=HAKTK
—REEFEARREBEIRE-NN—
FRRFEARETEMAILRERR
BEREERA -

KA B R % EE M 4 A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

RRIRB B - AR TRBR=
TEMFE= A= REEAHARSH
BRAF L -

RRAREMBRBR T X HE AR
SE - AEBTERFLEENHEN
HEM NEERMEROEZ AR
FHERY - AEEEFEARKM
BB mitE MERERALE
BE - W EEHBURNPENTPE
TTHE - AERERFREEFMESR
% o

BRBEBIN - NAGFHBFREAA
RETIT25 - AEHMBEHRREL
HEFR(EERDR-_F—RF=
A= +—BH#ETIZ -

ERSHBREE

REARE G BRREANTIESS
BRENR T - BRARBIERIN - UFE
BREMEINMEFERNERE
% o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which
are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@) New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The following new and amended standards,
and interpretations have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2013 and have
a material impact to the Group:

° Amendment to HKAS 1, ‘Financial
statements presentation’ regarding
other comprehensive income. The
main change resulting from these
amendments is a requirement for
entities to group items presented in
‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI)
on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or
loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments).

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEERAN  MERFEIUARBTLAREN) HE_Z—=F+_A=t+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

° HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial
statements’ builds on existing
principles by identifying the concept
of control as the determining factor in
whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company.
The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination
of control where this is difficult to
assess.

° HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of interests in
other entities’. HKFRS 12 includes the
disclosure requirements for all forms
of interests in other entities, including
joint arrangements, associates, special
purpose vehicles and other off balance
sheet vehicles.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 # Rk 3% M 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REBEE(E)

QA1 B BERBENEt

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued) (#&)
(@) New and amended standards adopted (a) AEBEHRMAEH
by the Group (continued) T M B 15 5T £ 8l
(&)

HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurements’.
HKFRS 13 aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a precise definition of
fair value and a single source of fair
value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs.
The requirements, which are largely
aligned between HKFRSs and US
GAAP, do not extend the use of fair
value accounting but provide guidance
on how it should be applied where its
use is already required or permitted by
other standards within HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEERAN  MERFEIUARBTLAREN) HE_Z—=F+_A=t+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

The following new and amended standards,
and interpretations have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2013 but not
currently relevant or do not have material
impact to the Group (although they may
affect the accounting for future transactions
and events):

o Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘First time
adoption’, on government loans.

° Amendment to HKFRSs 10, 11 and
12, on transition guidance.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

° HKFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’.

° Amendment to HKAS 19, ‘Employee
benefits’.

° Amendments to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’ on asset and
liability offsetting.

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 20, ‘Stripping costs
in the production phase of a surface
mine’.

New standard and interpretation not yet
adopted

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are
effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2013, and have not been applied
in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except the
following set out below:

° Amendment to HKAS 36, ‘Impairment
of assets’, on recoverable amount
of disclosures. This amendment
addresses the disclosure of
information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that
amount is based on fair value less
costs of disposal.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
A RBEAUARBTIAEN)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New standard and interpretation not yet
adopted (continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’,
addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.
HKFRS 9 was issued in November
2009 and October 2010. It replaces
the parts of HKAS 39 that relate to
the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS
9 requires financial assets to be
classified into two measurement
categories: those measured as at
fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination
is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing
its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of
the instrument. For financial liabilities,
the standard retains most of the HKAS
39 requirements. The main change
is that, in cases where the fair value
option is taken for financial liabilities,
the part of a fair value change due to
an entity’s own credit risk is recorded
in other comprehensive income rather
than the income statement, unless this
creates an accounting mismatch. The
Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9’s fulll
impact. The Group will also consider
the impact of the remaining phases
of HKFRS 9 when completed by the
Board.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 # Rk 3% M 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REBEE(E)

QA1 B BERBENEt

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued) (#&)

(b) New standard and interpretation not yet (b) ARz HE]E
adopted (continued) AR (E)
e HK(FRIC) - Int 21, ‘Levies’, sets out o HHE(BEBRMBRE

ZEZEg ) RE
F2o1% - [BE -
B3I B TS B LA
obligating event is that gives rise to pay INAFRBEERNEE
a levy and when should a liability be HEe ZRrER

the accounting for an obligation to
pay a levy that is not income tax. The
interpretation addresses what the

recognised. The Group is not currently EXBBEANS

subjected to significant levies so the 14 B 5 ] B i 3R

impact on the Group is not material. BMEMF- AKEE
Al 1 78 &I B K1

B OHAEEY
BYTERX o

There are no other HKFRSs or 1BE A H th &) oK A8 3K
HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are not N B

yet effective that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

AII amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
MR ERERI - ESHEISAARE T TREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations except
where business combinations involving
entities or businesses under common
control. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
1o the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  ESEIUARE T RER)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-F-=AT-A=T-ALEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@) Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,

the amount of any non-controlling interest

in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair

value of any previous equity interest in the

acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable

net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

If the total of consideration transferred,

non-controlling interest recognised and

previously held interest measured is less

than the fair value of the net assets of the

subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain

purchase, the difference is recognised

directly in the income statement (Note 2.9).

Intra-group transactions, balances and

unrealised gains on transactions between

group companies are eliminated. Unrealised

losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s

accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Business combinations (continued)

The Group applies the merger accounting
for common control business combination.
The consideration is that no acquisition has
occurred and there has been a continuation
of the risks and benefits to the controlling
party (or parties) that existed prior to the
combination. Use of merger accounting
recognises this by accounting for the
combining entities or businesses as though
the separate entities or businesses were
continuing as before.

The combined entity recognises the assets,
liabilities and equity of the combining entities
or businesses at the carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements
of the controlling party or parties prior
to the common control combination. If
consolidated financial statements were not
previously prepared by the controlling party
or parties, the carrying amounts are included
as if such consolidated financial statements
had been prepared, including adjustments
required for conforming the combined
entity’s accounting policies and applying
those policies to all periods presented.
These carrying amounts are referred to
below as existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  ESEIUARE T RER)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_ZT-—=F+-"F=1—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@) Business combinations (continued)

There is no recognition of any additional

goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest

in the net fair value of the acquiree’s

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities over cost at the time of the

common control combination to the

extent of the continuation of the controlling

party or parties’ interests. Similarly, in
accordance with HKAS 27, the effects of all
transactions between the combining entities

or businesses, whether occurring before

or after the combination, are eliminated

in preparing the consolidated financial

statements of the combined entity.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 7[5 5 5 48 [ ¥ i FR 2 7]

BEESHEERE(E)

2.2

BT (E)

2.21 §6t8RE (&)

(@)

XA 6t (&)

BT e mREME
ENEEEA DN
5 U2 05 B AT 3% R
BE BBERIA
BEAREBEFE
Z BB R
e A B 2 AR AR
Z BUEE MDA
FRRENABESE
AR BEEESG
FFERIZE 275 - A
HERBEZIAR
5 TWIES B
H&EIT HRE
BEHBERBZAH
BR84S o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

()

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

AII amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
FrESBINARE T TREN)

2.

B3I -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group

has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are

accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased

or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the

profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.

The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill,

if any, identified on acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 # Rk 3% M 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

AII amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BRBRAN - A SREAARE T AERL)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the management committee (Note
5(b)) that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

2.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
IS BANARE T T RER)

(B =B -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘Other
(losses)/gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 # Rk 3% Mt 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREN) HE_Z—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 M - BWEKZME

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings,
machinery, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, leasehold
improvements and finance leased machinery are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Estimated useful life

Buildings 10-20 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Vehicles 4-10 years
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years

Finance leased machinery Shorter of remaining

lease term or useful life

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other (losses)/gains — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at historical cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes the costs of construction, acquisition and
borrowing. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
available for intended use. When the assets concerned
are ready for their intended use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned.
There is no individual land ownership right. The Group
acquired the right to use certain land. The premiums
paid for such right and the improvements related to the
land are treated as prepayment for operating lease and
recorded as leasehold land and land use rights, which
are amortised over the lease periods using the straight-
line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Investment property

The property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the entities in the Group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs. After
initial recognition, investment property is carried at
depreciated cost less accumulated impairment.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
the transfer does not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred, nor does it change the cost of that
property for measurement or disclosure purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

2.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in the

acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or
groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at

the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Computer software

Computer software costs recognised as assets
are amortised using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives of 3 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

AII amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
BREERI - ESEISAARE T TREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

(@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading because
the financial assets do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months, otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘loan receivables’, ‘trade receivables’, ‘notes
receivable — bank acceptance notes’, ‘other
receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’
in the balance sheet (Notes 2.15 and 2.16
respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 # Rk 3% Mt 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHEEHEE(E)

POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 ©RMEE (&)

2.11.1 Classification (continued) 2111 2 (&)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets

© HAHELENTEHE
=

Available-for-sale financial assets are non- AtEENSRmE
derivatives that are either designated in this ERFTETA:
category or not classified in any of the other 5 7€ A It 38 Bl gk I
categories. They are included in non-current moHEBE AEME
assets unless the investment matures or HAB R - 1% 5 B 1
management intends to dispose of it within RIERBDEENRA -
12 months of the end of the reporting period. B IEDEKRE
SEEERENR
HEHREF 1218 A

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Available-
for-sale assets of the Group include investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured, which are measured at cost
less provision for impairment, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (continuead)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘Other
(losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which they
arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement as ‘Other
(losses)/gains-net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continuead)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN  MESREIRARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and the net

realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted

average method. The cost of finished goods and work-

in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other

direct costs and related production overheads (based

on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing

costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in

the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREEAMN FESEINARETIREN) BE-_T-=F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

Properties under development and held for sale

Properties under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties comprises cost of
land use rights, construction costs and borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period. Upon
completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle.

Trade, notes and other receivables

Trade and notes receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, notes and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade, notes and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESREIRARBETTREN)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.16

217

2.18

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREEAMN FESEINARETIREN) BE-_T-=F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

income statement, except to the extent that it relates

to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

2.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

2.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liabilities where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place that
gives the group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt &8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEERAN  MERFEIUARBTLAREN) HBE_Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERRBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits 2.22 EERA

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”). Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
Hong Kong employees make monthly contributions to
the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
subject to a cap per person per month and any excess
contributions are voluntary (if any).

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group has arranged for its PRC employees to join a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan organised by
PRC government. The PRC government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees payable under the plan
as set out in Note 32. The assets of this plan are held
separately from those of the Group in an independent
fund managed by the PRC government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plan are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BrmBEERIN  AESEINARETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity's share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement
period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

TS —

BE-_T-=F1+-A=t—HLHFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

2.24

2.25

i

REBEE BERUARERER
ENBEIR : ARERE#
EMEHMARBEEREER
£ JRRAENERRHBEZ
REE: REEN SRR E
fHET A TIAER - B TABER
RAE L B IR o

WmEZEBLEE  BIETZ
FRERKTEREERA
REUEDERREREAREEN
BRI TUERE - MEERR
—HEREERNER-BEED
B e e e ERIE - MDA
FER AR -

BRiERATAATRMEEZEA
BEENMBERAXNHRENE
W RER T35 B A S 5 6 B ]
BEIER TR ENRE R T
ity o 188 5 [ B 8] 7R 4 0 38 75
ERRNEER -

B RG

EAEER S EEREGE KD
Rt BAKEBITEMEN
R RS ATRAR
BB T ARER

B BB B BT 8 BRE E A

AR WIRARREE KA S T
FHRNAMBRP R

Annual Report 2013 —F—=4F4EH

>

129



7

I |30

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

\M%E%Eﬂ?\ CBTRIIUARBTIAEMN) BE-T-—=FT_A=1T—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.26 Revenue recognition

(@) Sales of goods

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

(c)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
when the risks and rewards of the properties
are transferred to the purchasers, which is
when the construction of relevant properties
has been completed and the properties have
been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to
the sales agreement and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated balance sheet under current
liabilities.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is
probable that the contract will be profitable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of the reporting period.
When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included
in contract revenue to the extent that may have
been agreed with the customer and are capable
of being reliably measured. The group uses the
percentage-of-completion method to determine
the appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to the
end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred
in the year in connection with future activity on
a contract are excluded from contract costs in
determining the stage of completion.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

(d)

(e)

U]

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Lease income
Lease income from operating leases is recognised

in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—-F+-A=T—HLLFE

2.

EREHBERBE(E)

2.26 WAER (&)

(d)

(e)

U]

FEWA

M EW AR R BB X
HERR o fid B SR e R M R R
HIRRE - RAEES K
SREEREHIRZE R
MREBERFEREER
RHTIRIR S IR E MR E B
AIM Bl R - AR A AR R
PRERFIEIA - BB
BEEFREF BUA KW
BRER R R E B R R R

=7
o

BRE WA

P B M A W ER S B E A
I HEST IR HERR,

HE®RA
REHENHEERA - #

HERRREREERR
WA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 # Rk 3% Mt 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Leases 227 HHE

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance
lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28

2.29

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
by weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted
average number of shares assumed to have been
issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

2.31 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require

the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due, in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees

are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of third parties to secure loans.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREEAMN FESEINARETIREN) BE-_T-=F+_A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.31 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for the
future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required
1o settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history
of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. Any increase in the liability relating to
guarantees is reported in the consolidated income
statement within other operating expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2013

EREHBERBE(E)

2.31 HBRERAEK (E)

MBERERHYBRERT
TRERERBAN DA EE
R ARMARREIARF
&SRB TE - 1 P 175 7€ B0 )i (B (B
BEEZERETNEETERT
HUt M B ERN BT R AR
BEAT - T SER R G
Eey U KR - NV R
% AERERNZFEFRNEE
B BERRBR LG E
A 18 RN E AH - &
FREHEEZERBENRER
AAMENESEE - thEfh
AREBEEAUR S MBERKN
KRBT YMABEENH
B - REREENABENTM
EINREHNEREBEER
XARE2H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant float interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s interest rate
risk mainly arises from Senior Notes and
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. Senior Notes and loan
receivables issued at fixed rates exposed
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
maximum exposures to the interest rate risk
have been disclosed in Notes 19 and 25
respectively.

The Group has not used any derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_Z-—=F+-"F=1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Directors do not consider the exposure

to foreign exchange risk is significant to

the Group’s operation as the Group mainly

operates in the PRC with most of the

transactions denominated and settled in

RMB. Therefore, the Group has not used

any derivatives to hedge its exposure to

foreign exchange risk for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

The major foreign exchange risk exposure

arises from the Group’s importing and

exporting activities and the Group’s

borrowings, which are mostly denominated
in United States Dollars (the “US$”). The
Group also has certain bank deposits,

financial assets and financial liabilities that
are denominated in foreign currencies,
mainly US$ and HK$, which are exposed to

foreign currency translation risk. The foreign
exchange risk is reduced where the Group
is in a position of receiving and paying the

same currency. The Directors believe that
the Group does not expose to significant
foreign exchange risks. The maximum

exposures to the foreign exchange risks
are disclosed in Notes 17, 20, 23 and 25

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

(BABEAN  MESREIRARBETTREN)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Summarised sensitivity analysis

The following table summarised the impact
of increases/decreases of cash flow interest
rate and foreign exchange rate on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The sensitivity analysis for the cash flow
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk is
based on the assumption that:

(@ Interest rate had been 15% lower/
higher from the year end rates with
all other variables held constant (for
example, 11.5% or 8.5% instead of
10%);

(o) RMB had weakened/strengthened by
10% against US$ and HK$ (pegged
with US$) with all other variables held
constant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

31 December 2013

Financial assets at
floating interest rates

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted bank balances

Financial liabilities at
floating interest rates
Bank and other borrowings
Amounts due to related parties
Other long-term payables

Total increase/(decrease)

31 December 2013

Monetary assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank balances
Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables

Monetary liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Borrowings

Total (decrease)/increase

=g-z£t=fz1-A

EIBRIETEN
THAE

e RREEEY
SRBIRTER

EIBRETRN
THER

FITREMER
FE B 3R
Rl RAEMR

atEm/ (8)

“E2-ZEtZA=t-H
EhEE

R RReEEY
RRHIRI T

EWE SR

e REMEIER

Lt
ERESER
EMENER

AR

B (HS)/ B

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [H 4 A FR 2 7]

BE-T-=Ft-A=T-ALER

3. UBERERE)

3.1 HBEBREEE)
(@) TEERE)
(i) BREIMEHE(E)
Cash flow interest rate risk
RERENERE
-15% +15%
Carrying
amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity
REE il i e B
968,132  (2,204)  (2,204) 2,204 2,204
1,616,022 (3,679  (3,679) 3,679 3,679
(1,469,652) 11,951 11,951  (11,951) (11,951)
(270,979) 468 468 (468) (468)
(26,129) 1,099 1,099 (1,099 (1,099
7,635 7635 (7,635 (7,639
Foreign exchange risk
SME BB
-10% +10%
Carrying
amount  Profit Equity Profit Equity
BEE Al s Al G
968,132 23,862 23,862 (23,862) (23,862
1,616,022 5,333 5333  (5,333)  (5,333)
1,110,753 40,844 40,844  (40,844)  (40,844)
476,204 163 163 (163) (163)
(3,521,390)  (29,696) (29,696) 29,696 29,696
(460,437)  (10,150)  (10,150) 10,150 10,150
(7,719,459) (770,363) (770,363) 770,363 770,363
(740,007) (740,007) 740,007 740,007




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2013
=+ ZA=+—HILFE

3.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

31 December 2012

Financial assets at

floating interest rates
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank balances
Amounts due from related parties

Financial liabilities at
floating interest rates
Bank and other borrowings
Amounts due to related parties
Other long-term payables

Total increase/(decrease)

“EZ-"F+ZA=t-H

o]
£

MEsTEM
&E

e RREEEY

gL
fe e
&39

£
/TR
A1
Ak

N

RA7N°RA

|ITHER
B 58

MR
8

R
BsR
L ANES

i/ (85)

3. BXERRERE(Z)

T — T
BE_—=

3.1 HMBERBEZRGE)
(@ m™WHEERE)
(i) SPRELINTHEE)
Cash flow interest rate risk
RenE =k
-15% +15%
Carrying

amount Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE el & it 1
879,005 (2375 (2,379 2,375 2,375
1,109,794 2999 (2,999 2,999 2,999
90,107 (1,199 (1,199 1,199 1,199
(3978,899) 11,945 11,945  (11,948) (11,945
(143,309) 468 468 (468) (468)
(141,136) 5,655 5,655 (6,655)  (5,699)
11,495 11,495  (11,495) (11,499
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

31 December 2012 ZE-“E+ZA=t-H
Monetary assets EREE

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN
Restricted bank balances RRHRTES
Trade receivables B S8R
Deposits and other receivables &4 R AL IR
Monetary liabilities EXEE

Trade payables ERE SRR

Other payables HthERAR
Borrowings &%

Total (decrease)/increase AR (ED) /B

Profit represents consolidated profit post
tax; equity represents total equity, including
non-controlling interests.

Other payables include payables for purchase
of property, plant and equipment, customer
deposits and employee deposits as stated in
Note 24.

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

3. UBERERE)

3.1

Carrying
amount

i

879,005
1,109,794
1,123,913

584,361

(3,678,585)
(611,311)
(8,355,004)

BT RLR

Hx (&)

(@) TEER(E)

(i) BREIMEHE(E)
Foreign exchange risk
HNERIR
-10% +10%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
B @E wN Em

15,356 15356 (15,356

) (15356

24768 24768 (24768  (24,769)
0773 7Y QII) (13N
22 (%) (%)

292

(32459) (32459) 32450 32,450
(11456) (11456) 11456 11456
(768,650) (768,650) 768,650 768,650

(744412) (T44412) 744412 744,412

6 45 e 2
R R
At BEkFEH
i -

H th T BRR B IE
BEYWX BEK
B2 A BR K
BERELReREBIR
& (B HIEE24) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, long-
term bank deposits, trade and notes receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan receivables
and amounts due from related parties represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets. The Group does not
have significant credit risks arising from off-balance
sheet items. The Group’s credit policy for the
sales of products is mainly delivery either on cash
or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with
maturity dates within six months. For bank and
financial institutions, the Group has policies that
deposits are placed with reputable banks. Credit
quality of financial assets is further disclosed in
Notes 13, 19 and 42(c) respectively.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
together with adequate banking facilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_Z-—-F+-A=1TBILFE

3. UBERERE)

31 BHBRBRREZEE)

(b)

(c)

FERR

ANEB I HEE KEFNE
Rk - HERRSEE
Y- BHRITES K
HIRITIE R - BB SR
RREE  BERHEME
WRBRFK - FEUR BT 3k R e Uk
Ba s 7 BORR BREE A
SENEREELRREER
% 77 T A B = BB 7K o
AEBEWEAEEAGBE
SNBEEANEREER
R AEEERBEENRE
ERRTEARKEE S
S 2l B B 7 7S 8 A AR SR
TERAEZR %S -
HRIBITT RS BEE - K
SENBIRERBERFR
REEFEEMNET  2@ME
ENEEE RS RIENT
13+ 1970142(c) N —

o
TEE S R

AEBNRSE S ARE
BREFKARREMASE
B URBHRITEE
RRE RS o

TREAKEEBEEN
O - MEEBREEHE
HIE B RISREARR - 2R
BED2MEANHRA
Al e RPAWENSHEELD
ERRFTRRERE - 8
K128 B ARIERRIRREE -
RAFREEIKN » ZFH
BERHRESRE
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<<///// Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & $t8t R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXRRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BiBEBREZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () HREBESERE)

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1year 2years 5years 5years Total
15R 1225 2E5% 5%HE CH

At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=F
+=A=+-A

The Group r&EE
Borrowings B 3,435,497 2,994,541 1,289,421 - 7,719,459
Interests payable on ETEM TS ()

borrowings () 356,756 247,954 174,613 - 779,323
Trade payables ERESER 3,521,390 - - - 3,521,390
Other payables Hity R 514,884 - - 26129 541,013
Amounts due to related parties  FE{ EaEs T 181,716 - 37,404 51,859 270,979
Interests payable on amounts JE < R 5 FUB

due to related parties (i) BRI FIE () 24,685 - - - 24,685
Guarantee for bank borrowings A5 = HEVETER

of a third party AR 8,197 12,960 - - 21,157

8,043,125 3,255,455 1,501,438 77,988 12,878,006

The Company KAF
Borrowings Bk 621,820 2,969,541 1,289,421 - 4,880,782
Interests payable on TR FIE ()

borrowings () 338,523 246,603 174,613 - 759,739
Trade payables ENESER 9,211 - - - 9,211

969,554 3,216,144 1,464,034 - 5,649,732

I ]| 44 China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T-—=F+_A=t—HIEE

»

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXERMREE(E)
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBABERE)
(¢) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) RBESE(Z)
Between  Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1year 2years Syears  5years Total
15 1226 2E5F 5FpE CE
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—&
t=A=+-A
The Group b 3|
Borrowings N 3,853,809 125,000 4,376,105 - 8,355,004
Interests payable on fER TS ()
borrowings (i) 384,753 346,375 423,469 - 1,154,597
Trade payables ERE SRR 3,678,585 - = - 3678585
Other payables E RS 677,428 - - 26129 703557
Amounts due to related parties JE BB 7R 54,046 - 37,404 51,859 143,309
Interests payable on amounts JE 1S % 50 0R
due to related parties () HERFIE () 3,118 3,118 - - 6,236
Finance lease liability BEREAR 115,007 - - - 115,007
Interests payable on finance PEMERE
lease liability (i RIS () 7,327 - - - 1,327
Guarantee for bank borrowings BEZHNRTET
of athird party HERR - 30019 - - 30019
8,774,163 504,512 4,836,978 77,988 14,193,641
The Company YO
Borrowings fg# 1,178,028 - 4,376,105 - 5,554,133
Interests payable on fERENFIS()
borrowings (i) 339,488 336816 421,216 - 1,097,520
Trade payables ERE SRR 160,975 - = - 160,975
1,678,491 336,816 4,797,321 - 6,812,628
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
\M%E%Eﬂﬁ\ B EBIEUARETTAEM)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

U)

(i)

The interest on borrowings is calculated
based on borrowings held as at 31
December 2013 and 2012 without taking
into account extension or refinancing of the
borrowings in future. Floating-rate interest is
estimated using current interest rate as at 31
December 2013 and 2012 respectively.

The interest on finance lease is calculated
based on remaining balance of finance lease
liability and the interest rate implicit in the
lease as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders

and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—-F+-A=T—HLLFE

BRRERE (&)
3.1 BBEBREZEE)

3.2

(c) RBELEKE(Z)
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EMAE TR B R
BEHEBEBENBRE

BRI EEHE -

EeREE

AEENESEEBRE 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
IS BEANARE T T RER)

(B =B -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided
by the total capitalisation. Total debt includes current
and non-current borrowings, finance lease obligations
and borrowings from related parties. Total capitalisation
includes non-current borrowings, non-current portion
of finance lease obligations and borrowings from
related parties and equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

Total debt BIAMRER
Total capitalisation BER
Debt-to-capital ratio fEEEE AL R

As at 31 December 2013, the ratio declined due to the
decrease of borrowings.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-ZT-—=F+-A=t—HILFE

BE—=

3. UBERERE)

3.2

3.3

EeRBER (&)

AEBEEREBEREEALL X
EREANRR - BHEEANL
RDBEEBFERABRER - (&
FRBEBRRDRFERDE
%’K - BB S AYE R RRE T &
oo MERBREIERBER

mﬁléﬁfﬁ‘;ﬁ(#‘&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%’&ﬁ’]
B E KRB AN AR

SRAE AR

2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
7,990,052 8,611,239
13,564,429 18,632,137
58.90% 63.17%
RZZE—=F+=RA=+—8 "
HRETORD LR T
A EEME

TREBGHEEEZDMIZARE
EifE=mMemT A - REKR
RELT :

s KHEEEXREBERART
BHECREHE) (F—
) e

e RBREERE—HRHRE
Hh - BESNB BRI HE
BB (ANEHE) sk # (A
REERE)BAER (5
&) o

o WHREBABERMBER
MEBENEERB BN
ABF (BIRN A B = a0
ABR)(E=) »
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEERAN  MERFEIUARBTLAREN) HBE_Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and

liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2013 R-2-Z=F
+=H=+—-H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets RN EemEE
- Equity securities (Note 15) —RAES (FIFE15)
At 31 December 2012 R-BE——F
+=H=+—-H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets HIEemEE
- Equity securities (Note 15) —RAES (FIFE15)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, there
are no transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy
used in measuring the fair value of financial instruments,
and also no changes in the classification of financial
assets as a result of a change in the purpose or use of
those assets.

B |48 China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B B A PR A 7]

3.

BEREBRERE(Z)

3.3 RARhEEMHTE)
TREJINAEER-_Z—=4F
+—A=+t-BR-_ZT——%F
+—A=+—HERAKRBET
ENEERARE -

Level1 Level2 Level3 Total

& HZH E=R st

40,096 - - 40,096
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—H FZHK F=R faEt
47,675 - - 47,675

HEZZT—=FKk=-F—=F
+ZA=+—HIEFE &
TARARBEEFEMEARAR
BEERRAGELER 8
MERZEZEEERBSNIE
R e EEN S
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXERRERE(EZ)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 RAREEMHTE)

ST HKAREFELAREE

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices

(Level 1)

The Group’s trading fund investments, classified
as level 1 financial assets, are the fund investment
agreements entered into by the Group and Harvest
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (the “Harvest Fund”)
whereby the Group is expecting to earn short-term
gain from the funds. The fair values of the trading
funds are determined based on the quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date (Note 30).

The Group’s trading derivative investments,
classified as level 1 financial assets, are the iron

(F—%)

rEBEEESRE (D
BRE-DEWMEE)
AEEESERSEERER
RAR(REES )AL
MESRE W - B
REB AT B2 E SRR
M - EEESHAQ
REETREERET
BEE (MFE30) -

AEBEERITATARE
(DERE-—REHMEE)

ore swap contracts entered into by the Group TH7N 62 [ B L hN3s 32 R 3R
and Development Bank of Singapore. The fair TRV MEREAEBHE

value of the iron ore swap is determined based on
the prices on the Singapore Exchange Ltd at the
balance sheet date (Note 30).

The Group’s equity securities investments,
classified as level 1 financial assets, are
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The fair values of
the listed securities are determined based on the
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date
(Note 15).

% HROEHNAAE
BT REE B INKE 5
RHABRARNERE
7E (FHEE30) °

AEBENRAZZRE
(DERE-—REHMEE)
TIRBERBEBER AP
BRAR ([BEPT]) EHR
LR o LTRSS
DR EBETIZEEBR®R
MEERE (HFE15) °
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

\F@%ETEEHM\ CBTRIIUARBTIAEMN) BE-T-—=FT_A=1T—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortised cost

The fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities of
the Group approximate their carrying amount as at the
balance sheet date.

As at 31 December 2013, there was no offsetting of
financial assets and liabilities in the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting judgements
and estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition as
at the balance sheet date and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Provision for properties under development and held for
sale

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development and held for sale according to their
net realisable value based on the realisability of these
properties, taking into account costs to completion
based on past experience and net sales value based
on prevailing market conditions. Provision is made
when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be realised. The
provision assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amount of a CGU
has been determined based on higher of value-in-use
and fair value less costs to sell.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group determined that
there was an impairment indication relating to two
production lines of a subsidiary which manufactures
galvanised sheets and cold rolled sheets. These
production lines were identified as CGUs separately.

The Group measured the value-in-use and fair value less
costs to sell by discounting the future estimated cash
flow deriving from the property, plant and equipment.
These calculations required the Group to estimate the
expected future cash flows from the CGUs and also to
apply a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows (Note 7).

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_Z-—-F+-A=1TBILFE

4. BREHGERARE)
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HEMENERE DA ENA
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FTEIRAREARITH I H
EFENFEZEDENRE
8- BHRBRIKREER REE
EEIR M F A RB LR
TEH B - S EBREAERH
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W% BEkRERE

BEEEABERTEEMHRED
BREREENETE T AKE
B AEBERISRENE2.10
Pl B & St R IR E I % R
FERRENRE REELE
R ESEDRIEERE
BEAAEERHEEKARE
BB = EEE

RZE—=F+=ZRA=+—
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AEEEBEREYE BE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt &8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN - AESEIUARE T RER)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©)

Useful life of the property, plant and equipment

Useful life is the period over which an asset is expected
to be available for use by an entity. The depreciable
amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis
over its useful life (Note 2.6).

The following factors are considered in determining the
useful life of an asset:

(i) Expected usage of the asset

(i)  Expected physical wear and tear

(iy ~ Technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset

(iv)  Legal or similar limits on the use of the asset

The useful life of an asset is reviewed at each financial
year-end and, if expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change will be accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with HKAS 8
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B B A PR A 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BrmBEERIN  AESEINARETTRER)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREEAMN FESEINARETIREN) BE-_T-=F+_A=1+—HILFE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

®)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of a financial asset is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow.

Impairment of loans, receivables and prepayments

The Group follows the accounting policy stated in Note
2.12 and assessed loans, receivables and prepayments
for impairment whenever there is objective evidence
that the present value of estimated future cash flows
measurable decreases and is lower than the carrying
amount of the loans, receivables and prepayments. The
process for estimating the amount of an impairment loss
results either in a single amount or in a range of possible
amounts. In the latter case, the Group recognises
an impairment loss equal to the best estimate within
the range taking into account all relevant information
available before the financial statements are issued
about conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(h)

Impairment of the Group’s assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to
determine whether the Group’s assets are impaired.
As stated in HKAS 36, the net asset value of an
entity that exceeds its market capitalisation is an
impairment indicator which would require an estimate
of the recoverable amount to be performed. As at 31
December 2013, the Group’s market capitalisation
amounted to RMB 3,664 million approximately, which
is lower than the Group’s net assets value of RMB
9,711 million. The Group shall assess whether its assets
are impaired. This assessment requires significant
judgments and estimations. In making these judgments
and estimations, the Group evaluates and considers
both qualitative and quantitative factors that will affect
the value-in-use of an asset or a CGU such as the
extent of the difference between the net assets value
and market capitalisation, composition of the Group’s
assets, results and timing of previous impairment tests.

The Group has performed the impairment test according
to HKAS 36 and determines that except for the property,
plant and equipment, no other asset or CGU have been
impaired. The impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment is analysed in Note 7.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt &8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BREEEAN - EREHUARBTTAEN) BE-T—=F+-_A=+—HILFE
5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION-GROUP 5.
(@) Sales

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sales of steel products, trading of steel products and

iron ore and real estate business. Sales recognised for

the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 were as

follows:

Gross sales less discounts,
returns and sales taxes
— Strips and strip products
— H-section steel products
— Rebar
— Cold rolled sheets and

galvanised sheets

— Billets
—Iron ore
— Real estate
— Others

SHE AT
R R ER

— R R RS
—HEBER

— B

— R ELIRRAEEHIR

— R
—#EREO
—EHE
—Hfth
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

HERERSHER -FKH

(@)

REBFENREEEREEH
HEM WEAEMREERE
IUREHEZER BEZZT
—=Fk=ZZT—=-F+=A
=t —HILESFEE BRI
EREMT

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
11,098,625 12,266,457
10,068,657 11,554,233
2,461,710 2,521,714
1,561,753 2,352,008
3,960,533 6,170,019
3,050,802 596,688
112,886 322,919
201,971 338,320
32,516,937 36,122,358




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BrmBEERIN  AESEINARETTRER)

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION-GROUP
(continued)

(b)

Segment information

The chief decision-maker has been identified as the
management committee, which comprises all executive
directors and top management. The chief decision-
maker reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources.

Based on these reports, the chief decision-maker
considers the business from a business perspective.
From a business perspective, the chief decision-maker
assesses the performance of the iron and steel and the
real estate segments.

(i) Iron and steel — Manufacture and sale of iron and
steel products and trading of steel products and
iron ore; and

(i)  Real estate — Development and sale of properties.

The chief decision-maker assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and operating profit. This measurement is consistent
with that in the annual financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_Z-—=F+-"F=1—HIFE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(continued)

(b)

Segment information (continued)

The segment information provided to the chief decision-

maker for the reportable segments for the year was as

follows:

Segment revenue

Segment operating profit
Finance income - net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other income statement items

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Capital expenditure

Segment revenue

Segment operating profit
Finance (costs)/income — net
Share of result of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other income statement items

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Capital expenditure

AEURA

A EELER
FBIA— 58

BRFR1SBEAT A
FISHER

FRiEHN

HitFBRER
FrEREH
0% BERRXERE

NGB

2EURA

A EEEER

B3 (R A) A — 8
il YNCTE S
BRER1SBLAT A
FrEHER

FRRT

HitFIBRER
FrEREH
WE - BENRRERE

BARX

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

5. WEHERIBEH-F&EEH(E)

b) DEEFR(E)
AEFERBEDRREETERER
RARDEER 250 -

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE-Z-=F+-A=t—HLEE

Iron and steel Real estate Total
i FEiE @t
32,404,051 112,886 32,516,937
242,421 3,368 245,789
1,465 2,087 3,552
249,341
(186,313)

63,028

1,049,152 653 1,049,805
(79,053) - (79,053)
1,246,803 727 1,247,530

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-Z-——FT-A=1T—HIt¥E

Iron and steel Real estate Total
i) B “@at
35,799,439 322,919 36,122,358
619,928 72,819 692,747
(354,692) 698 (353,994)
(12,697) - (12,697)
326,056

(179,579)

146,477

947,369 576 947,945
(3,600) - (3,600
1,630,169 279 1,630,448




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
IS BEANARE T T RER)

(B =B -

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-ZT-—=F+-A=t—HILFE

BE—=

5. WHEHERIBEH-F&EEH(E)

(continued)

(o)  Segment information (continued) () DEER(E)
Segment assets are those operating assets that are DEBEETIDBARELLE
employed by a segment in its operating activities. FMEEEE - 9Ep ﬁ??ﬂ[ﬁfﬁ
Segment assets are determined after deducting related NEEBBRIPEEREHZE
allowance that is reported as direct offsets in the FMEREZA R ETE - “*Bé?
balance sheet. Segment assets consist primarily of FTEEEAE - K i (FE B

leasehold land and land use rights, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, intangible assets,
long-term bank deposits, inventories, trade receivables,
notes receivable, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted
bank balances and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities are those operating liabilities that
result from the operating activities of a segment.
Segment liabilities consist primarily of other long-term
payables, deferred revenue, amounts due to related
parties, trade payables and accruals, advances and
other current liabilities.

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2013 were as follows:

®ME- BELREE RE
ME - BLEE  RPRTRHE
R FE BRESKRNR &
WRiE - BNKE - RERE
i, & UK BR 5K - Ui R B U5 AR
B XRBIBTEBERE SR
ReEEY -

DEBET DR E BB
BYMKERE - DHAEBEE
ZERBEMBREEMNRK  EL
WA - FETRRESE T 5RIE ~ BT
BIERFANTARER - B
FRALEMRBAE -

R=E—=F+=A=+—A
M HAERBEMT :

Iron and steel Real estate Total

ik EitiE @t

Total assets HEE 21,900,245 984,921 22,885,166
Segment assets for BEDBHHHEE

reportable segments 22,885,166

Unallocated: KoHE

Deferred income tax assets BEFEHERE 285,894

Available-for-sale financial assets AELESREE 149,701

Loan receivables ElEZ 363,232

Prepaid current income tax B E HEEH 66,607

Total assets per balance shest EEBBRANBEE 23,750,600
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERIDEH-XEEH(E)
(continued)
(o)  Segment information (continued) (b) DEERE(E)
Iron and steel Real estate Total
W EitiE ast
Total liabilities Ay =T 5,651,884 565,311 6,217,195
Segment liabilties for REDHHNAHAE
reportable segments 6,217,195
Unallocated: RO®:
Current income tax liabilities SHIFTERAE 66,930
Current borrowings mEE 3,435,497
Non-current borrowings IEREED 4,283,962
Dividends payable RS 36,114
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEABRANBEE 14,039,698
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December NR-_EBE——F+_-_A=+—H
2012 were as follows: Mo EEERBERT
Iron and steel Real estate Total
B FiE 15t
Total assets BEE 23,395,618 531,988 23,927,606
Segment assets for HED D EEE
reportable segments 23,927,606
Unallocated: KoE
Deferred income tax assets BEFEHERE 201,090
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 157,280
Loan receivables EWED 379,700
Prepaid current income tax B E SR 86,307
Total assets per balance sheet BEBERNNEERE 24,751,983
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

5.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILEFE

SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERIDEH-KEEH(E)
(continued)
(o)  Segment information (continued) () DEEFRE(E)
Iron and steel Real estate Total
i) Rz @5t
Total liabilities oy =T 6,518,649 265,425 6,784,074
Segment liabilties for REDPOHHAE
reportable segments 6,784,074
Unallocated: ROE:
Current income tax liabilities SHMEHEE 53,314
Current borrowings mENfE 3,853,899
Non-current borrowings FEREER 4,501,105
Dividends payable ERRE 4,575
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEBBRANBEEE 15,196,967
LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS - 6. MHELHWRIHFRAE-—KER

GROUP

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent the prepayment for the operating lease, the net book
value of which is analysed as follows:

At 1 January
Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights (Note 31)

At 31 December

The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are all located
in the PRC and the remaining lease period is between 30 years

to 45 years.

REBERE 30 N 3 (E A
SIEREEERNFIR - REREF

BN T:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
®n—A—H 133,723 137,128
TRE i+
{5 PR 4E (P9E31) (3,405) (3,405)
Rt+—A=+—8 130,318 133,723
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group

At 1 January 2012

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2012

Opening net book amount
Additions

Tranfer from CIP
Disposals (Note 39)
Depreciation (Note 31)
Impairment (Notes 29)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2012
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2013

Opening net book amount

Additions

Tranfer from CIP

Procurement of finance leased
assets (Note 26)

Disposals (Note 39)

Depreciation (Note 31)

Impairment (Note 29)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2013
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment

Net book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T—=F+-A=t—HIFE

7. YE- - BERSRE
REE
Furniture Leasehold Finance
and improve- leased
Buildings Machinery  fixtures  Vehicles ~ ments CIP machinery Total
FEVLES HEHE
BT BERE BOBE A& i HRIR e &t
R=Z-—£-F-F 2834624 7527023 101048 120788 1,337 1515060 800,000 12,899,880
AR
ZiihE (690,385 (3142023  (55,851) (67444  (1,075) - (304646) (4.261424)
A (0545  (B0.267)  (891) (85) - (161270, - (43059)
KHFAE 2123604 4304733 44306 53259 22 1353790 495,354 8395398
HZ-3--%1-R
=t-HLEE
EREEE 2123694 4304733 44306 53259 22 1353790 495,354 8395398
il 180169 628126 4171 24,121 - 79737 - 1,630,324
ERIEEA 28192 986258 5205 % - (1,289,711) = =
in & (Ff3k39) - (362 [24%)  (960) - [3468) - 3844
i (P 31) (131,112 (00699 (11389 (0511)  (59) - (9%5 (3709
G (HE29) = = = = - (8600 - (3600)
EREEEE 2420943 5238062 39884 55945 207 869530 415399 9,039970
R-E--E+-A=+-A 3262984 0140194 106720 141054 1337 873,130 800000 14325419
AR
ESi (821.496) (3842278) (65,945 (85024  (1,130) - (384601) (5,200474)
e (0545)  (59.854)  (891) (85) - (3600 - (e49m)
KHFAE 2420943 5238062 39884 55945 207 869530 415399 9,039970
BE-2--E1Cf
=t-HLEE
EREEE 2420043 5238062 30884 55945 207 869530 415399 9,039970
il 142,048 454214 4398 12,884 - 633777 - 1,047,321
ERIREA 230,800 649416 2530 3208 - (885,954) - -
FEEHEEE (Hiko0)
- 363,039 - - - - (363,039) -
it (FE39) (62 (282 (49 (174 = = - (2817
W& (Hst) (155,618) (807,042  (10,635)  (19,806) (55) - (52,360) (1,045,516)
G (HE29) (10479) (68032 (542 = = = - (19,089
EREEFE 2627432 5820425 3558 50457 152 617,353 - 9,160,405
R=B-ZE+ZA=1-H
A 3635493 11,042211 112821 151527 1,337 617,353 - 15,560,742
ZiiE (077,087) (5,084900) (75,802 (100985)  (1,185) - - (6,239,909)
e (31,024) (127,886)  (1,439) (85) - - - (160,428)
SHFE 2627432 5820425 3558 50457 152 617,353 - 9,160,405
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(MRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group (continued)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated
income statements as follows:

HEMRA
TTERE M

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 69 million (2012: RMB 58
million) were capitalised in the cost of property, plant and
equipment at an annual average capitalisation rate of 7.37%
(2012: 7.16%) approximately (Note 33).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Directors noted
indications that certain property, plant and equipment,
including CIP were subject to impairment.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of RMB 3.6 million for certain of the CIP
relating to a galvanised sheets production line which is still
under construction, based on the recoverable amount of the
CIP (Note 29).

M3 BERRE(E)

REE (&)

ERE M AER PR ER X 40
T

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F

1,017,747 918,682
27,769 25,127
1,045,516 943,709

HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLF
B BEERAHAREE,9008T (=
T——F : AR¥E5,8008 L) BILF
EFHERNEHR7.37% (T —=
F:716%) ERNbtRYE  BEXR
BABERK AN (BT5ES3) ©

R-ZF—=FR=ZF-—ZF+=A
=t+—R - EEIRIAETRETE
TH%  BERSE BREERTRE
FRTTERIME ©

RZE——F+=-A=+—H &K
Ef— K REEGNE TEET
BIZERESEERARKE608
TOHRE E1E (MiEE29) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, provision for impairment of RMB 79
million was made for two production lines of a subsidiary for
the manufacturing of galvanised and cold rolled sheets as a
result of not fully utilised production capacity (Note 29).

The impairment provision amount was determined based
on the recoverable amount of CGUs (cash-generating units)
determined based on fair value less costs to sell calculations.
These calculations use post-tax discounted cash flow
projections based on five-year financial budgets approved by
management and being extrapolated by using the estimated
growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the galvanised sheets and cold rolled
sheets business with which the CGUs operate.

The key assumptions used for the fair value less costs to sell
calculations as at 31 December 2013 were as follows:

2.14%-4.03%
3.80%
10.50%

Gross margin
Growth rate
Discount rate

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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RZZE—=F+—A=+—H8 " @1
WEFEHFAES  Ef—FHRBEA
A B (R A EE SR SRR SR BLAR MY AL EE
43 (PfiTsE29) 1E A R HE 7,900 BT A9
B -

BERBSBEIDRREAABERG
ERAFENRSELENCREE
HBM) 2 AIRESEETE - ZFat
HERTHREARASRERD - B
KEEERBMLAN D FUBER
RERBHEREXER - BEX TS
HBH S E LS BA K ENEFR &L
SRR RAFIERE

el 2.14%-4.03%
ERE 3.80%
IR = 10.50%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. YE- - BERRKEE)
The Company AN A
Furniture and
fixtures Vehicles Total

NS AE #@at
At 1 January 2012 R=Z-—f-H-H
Cost BAR 812 2,764 3,576
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (698) (2,038) (2,736)
Net book amount EEFE 114 726 840
Year ended 31 December 2012 #HZ-FE-——F+=F

=t—HLEEFE
Opening net book amount FEYRERE 114 726 840
Additions NE 83 - 83
Disposal HE @) - @)
Depreciation neE (36) (229) (259)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 157 503 660
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—5+-A=+-H
Cost [N 716 2,764 3,480
Accumulated depreciation Z:HIE (559) (2,261) (2,820)
Net book amount REFE 157 503 660
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—-ZE—-=F1+_#
=t+—HLEFE

Opening net book amount FHRMFE 157 503 660
Additions NE 5 223 228
Depreciation e (29) (135) (164)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 133 591 724
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=£+-A=1-H
Cost R 721 2,987 3,708
Accumulated depreciation 2IE (588) (2,396) (2,984)
Net book amount EEFE 133 591 724
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEERAN  MERFEIUARBTLAREN) HE_Z—=F+_A=t+—HILFE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 8. REWX-FKE£H
The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net WEYEMNAPE - ZEEEFED
book value are analysed as follows: Hran e
At 1 January 2012 R=B—=-%-H—H
Cost (D% 21,985
Accumulated depreciation E-SiEn-= (6,001)
Net book amount AREDFE 15,984
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE—E——H+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHAREFE 15,984
Depreciation (Note 31) e (FisE31) (806)
Closing net book amount FRAREFE 15,178
At 31 December 2012 R=B-—=-H+=ZA=+—8
Cost DN 21,985
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (6,807)
Net book amount AREDFE 15,178
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE—E—=5+=-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 15,178
Depreciation (Note 31) & (H=E31) (806)
Closing net book amount FRAREFE 14,372
At 31 December 2013 R=Z-=F+=H=+—H
Cost DN 21,985
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (7,613)
Net book amount AREDFE 14,372
(@ Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment @ MREZXRARKREVERERD
properties ik )
2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

Rental income (Note 30) THBWA (Fi5E30) 2,363 2,903
Direct operating expenses from ELXRSBARNYER

property that generated rental HELERX

income (806) (806)

1,557 2,097
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no RNR—_E—=%F+-_A=+—
significant contractual obligations for future repairs and H NREBWELBEEER
maintenance (2012: nil). REELEEREAERE(ZE
—_FfE) -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP (continued) 8. REWME-AXKEE(EZ)
(@ Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment @ REZRARKREMEERD
properties (continued) SR (&)
As at 31 December 2013, the Directors estimated R-E—=F+—-_F=+—
that the fair value of the investment properties was B E=REESKEEIRTSE
approximately RMB 74.1 million based on the prices in KB E IR EMEN D R B
the active market (2012: RMB 68.6 million). BHARB74H0B (=

——F: AR¥6,860&7T) °

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 9. EREE-A£H
Software Goodwill Total
B e et
At 1 January 2012 R=-Z2——%—HF—H
Cost AR 63 16,165 16,228
Accumulated amortisation ST MORE
and impairment 31) (7,667) (7,698)
Net book amount BRMEFE 32 8,498 8,530
Year ended 31 BE———F
December 2012 +=ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount )8R [EF{E 32 8,498 8,530
Additions NE 124 - 124
Amortisation (Note 31) B (FI3E31) (25) = (25)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 131 8,498 8,629
At 31 December 2012 N-E——%#+=-A=+—H
Cost R 187 16,165 16,352
Accumulated amortisation ZEHEEE NORE
and impairment (56) (7,667) (7,723)
Net book amount BREVFE 131 8,498 8,629
Year ended 31 BE-—E—=H
December 2013 +=ZA=+—HILEE
Opening net book amount FYEEEE 131 8,498 8,629
Additions INE 209 - 209
Amortisation (Note 31) B (FI3E31) (78) = (78)
Closing net book amount FEREMFE 262 8,498 8,760
At 31 December 2013 R-B—=H+=A=+—H
Cost D% 396 16,165 16,561
Accumulated amortisation ST NMORE
and impairment (134) (7,667) (7,801)
Net book amount BREFE 262 8,498 8,760
As at 31 December 2013, the Directors of the Group RZZBE—=F+ZA=+—0 " 4%
considered that the goodwill was not impaired. EEERAEENERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

10.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_Z-—=F+-"F=1—HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(@  Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted investments, at cost
Capital contribution relating to

share-based payment

FELMRE - ARA

b P g S
BRZEE

The capital contribution relating to share-based payment

relates to share options granted by the Company to

employees of subsidiaries undertakings in the Group.

Refer to Note 22 for further details on the Group’s share

options scheme.

The subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Name

R

Gold Genesis Development
Limited (“Gold Genesis”)

Gold Genesis Development
Limited ([ Gold Genesis])

Good Lucky Enterprises
Limited (“Good Lucky’)

Good Lucky Enterprises
Limited ([ Good Lucky])

First Glory Services
Limited (‘First Glory’)

First Glory Services Limited
([First Glory])

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBAR AH

British Virgin Islands
("BVI)

21 February 2008

ZERAREE
(HE&ERER]

i & ey s

BVI

21 February 2008
ABGERES
k- ey

BVI

16 October 2003
ER4RRIS
It R

Legal status

HEERER

Limited liability
company

Limited liabilfty
company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company
BREEAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELES
A

100%
(Directy held)

100%
(EEHE)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(E%HE)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(ERHE)

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

10. MBERARRE-ALQTF

@ MEBARKRE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
311,443 311,443
291,256 278,123
602,699 589,566
AEEEBRESHEHEE
BEHEARNBRTHERRE
BHERIEESR - BEAEEH
BIREGTEINE—FFHE F
2HMi5E 22 o
RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—H
MR -
Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital  Principal activities
EEARARKRE EERE  EEER
USS1 US$50,000  Investment holding
E 50000%T  REER
USst US$50,000  Investment holding
E0 50000%T  REER
USs2 US$50,000  Investment holding
%1 0000 REER
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10.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

Accordpower Investments
Limited (*Accordpower’)

YHRERRAR
(EE1)

Fulhero Investments
Limited (‘Fullhero’)

RERERRAT
([£8])

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Company Limited
(*Jinxi Limited’)

Mt ERREE AR AR AT
([msHE )

Foshan Jin X Jin Lan Cold
Rolled Sheet Company
Limited (*Jinxi Jinlan’)

BlzReRAR
BRAA
([2med))

Origntal Fullhero Leasing Co.,
Ltd. (‘Fullhero Leasing’)

RAREHERRAA
([#ERE])

Hebei Jinxi Section Steel
Company Limited
(*Jinxi Section Stee!’)

ML ERRRER A
(TEFER )

Jinxi Hong Kong Trading
Company Limited
(‘HK Trading’)
ERESELAERAR
(TEFEEA)

Place and date
of incorporation

AMAL AR A H

BVI

30 November 2004
ABEARES
ZZEMET—A=1H

BVI
3 May 2005
REGARES
“RTRERA=H

PRC
24 December 1999

HE
“MANE
TZAZfEA

PRC
26 December 2003

e

-3

tZAZ 1R
PRC
23 September 2005
i
“ETREAACTER

PRC
30 May 2008

hE
“EZ\fRA=TA

Hong Kong
27 Qctober 2008

%
“FRNFHATHE

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable

Legal status to the Group
FRERESR

EETEER BA
Limited liabilty 100%
company (Directly held)
BREAAT 100%
(E%HE)

Limited liabilty 100%
company (Directly held)
EREMRA 100%
(B%HE)

Joint stock company 97.6%
with imited fiabilty  (Indlirectly held)
RABREALT 97.6%
(FEHE)

Limited fiabifty 80.28%
company (Indlrectly held)
EREMRA 80.28%
(FEHE)

Limited fiabifty 100%
company (Indlrectly held)
EREMAA 100%
(RlEHE)

Limited liabilty 97.6%
company (Indlrectly held)
EREMRA 97.6%
(F%EE)

Limited liabilty 97.6%
company (Indlrectly helo)
ERERAR 97.6%
(REHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
=FTZA=t—RILFE

T — T
BE_—=

10. MBARRE-ARQTE(F)

(@)

Issued
and fully
paid capital

ERTRARER
Us§2

ESH

US$2

ESH

RMB228,640,000

ARK
208,640,0007C

US$55,150,000

55,160,000% 7

US$65,000,000

65,000,000 %7

RMB350,000,000

ARH
350,000,0007C

HK$38,770,501

38,770,501 T

Authorised
capital

ERRA
US$50,000

500007

US$50,000

50,000%7

RMB228,640,000

ARE
208,640,000

US$55,150,000

55,150,000% ¢

US$65,000,000

65,000,000% 7

RMB350,000,000
ARH
350,000,007

HK$80,000,000

80,000,007

MEARIRE (&)

Principal activities

IERH

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

RELR

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

LELEEREED

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

LELEERRED

Leasing and financial leasing

GEEL

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

TERHEREER

Import and export of goods

iufi) 3
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10.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
PRAESEIUARE T REA)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

Suifenhe City Jinyin Trading
Co,, Ltd. (Jinyin Trading’)

BANmERRHRRAR
(M2HE5)

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Zhengda lron
and Steel Co., Ltd,
(‘Zhengda Iron and Steel’)
Mt ERRE SRS
BRAF
([TmE])

Tangshan Fengrun
Qu Tong Yuan Trading
Company Limited
(Tong Yuan Trading’)
BUTEEEREAE
BRAT
([@EEEl)

Hebei Jinxi Boyuan Real
Estate Co,, Ltd.
(‘Boyuan Real Estate’)

MtEEREEYE
REERAR
([EEREE))

Clear Precision Limited
(‘Clear Precision”)

REARAR
([l

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBAR AH

PRC

24 September 2008
G
“2%)\FhAZ1EA

PRC
19 December 2008

o
“EE\F
tZAthA

PRC
22 May 2009

e
“EENE
il oy =

PRC
17 December 2009

e
“EENE
tZA+tH

BVI
22 July 2010
REEERES

“3-%%
tA=f-H

Legal status

HEERER

Limited liability
company
BREAAT

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company
BRELAT

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AREELRR
A

97.6%
(Inclrectly held)
97.6%
(FEHE)

69.3%
(Indlrectly held)

69.3%
(REHE)

69.3%
(Inclrectly held)

69.3%
(REHE)

58.56%
(Inclrectly held)

68.56%
(B&H%)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(E#HE)

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [H 4 A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

10. MBARRKRE-FARQR(E)

(@)

Issued
and fully
paid capital

BRTRAERE

RMB10,000,000

ARE
10,000,0007¢

RMB50,000,000

ARE
50,000,000

RMB100,000

ARE
100,000 7

RMB100,000,000

ARE
100,000,000 70

US$2

ES

MEARIRE (&)

Authorised
capital

EERA

RMB10,000,000

ARE
10,000,000z

RMB50,000,000

ARE
50,000,000

RMB100,000

ARE
10,0007

RMB100,000,000

ARE
100,000,000

US850,000

50000%7

Principal activities

IERE

Import and export of
goods and technology

i NENRAN

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

TERHE
HEER

Purchase and sale of
ferrous metal and coke

HERECR
RER

Development and sales
of real estate

ZESE
FHE

Investment holding

RAZR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 # Rk 3% Mt 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 10. MIBATRE —KRAT (£&)
(continued)
(@  Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ KBRAKE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR
£ AMRLLERAH EETRER Bt EBREORERRE EERE  TEXH
Beiing Jinxi Investment PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Investment holding
Holding Co., Ltd. 26 August 2010 company (Indlrectly helo)
(‘Beiing Jini Investment’)
IREERERRARAR A EREFAT 97.6% ARE ARE  REER
([rrzERE)) T2 (FEsE) 100,000,0007c  100,000,0007
NAZt7H
Origntal Evertrust Finance PRC Limited liabilty 98.20%  US$200,000,000 US$200,000,000  Financial leasing and leasing
Leasing Co., Ltd. 27 September 2010 company (Indlrectly helo)
(‘Oriental Evertrust’) (Note (i)
ROERRARERRAR  HH BREFAR 98.20% 200000000 200000000 RBAHERME
(TRA TR (M) Z3-%f (F#EE) 3 S
hAZT+E
Origntal Green Energy- PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000  Environmental Protection
Saving Environmental 20 October 2010 company (Indlrectly held) Engineering
Protection Engineering
Co., Ltd. (‘Oriental Green”)
RAGRERRIE e BREMRA 97.6% N ARE  BEREIR
BRAR([FH%58) 5% (FEsE) 50,000,0007z 50,000,007
+A=tH
Hebei Jinshun Energy- PRC Limited liability 97.6%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Research and development
Saving Technology 17 November 2010 company (Indirectly held) on recycling and energy-
Development Co., Ltd. saving technology and
(*Jinshun Energy-Saving’) other recycling busingss
Bl 75 U GlET EREEAT 97.6% AEE AR®  HEERREGVERE
BRAR ([ BkR |) i S &3 (REHA) 1000000007 10000000070  REMEEEH
t-AttA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

10.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

Beiing Jinxi Boyuan
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(‘Beiing Real Estate)
IRERERER
ERAR(RREhE])

China Oriental Singapore
Pte. Ltd. (‘China Oriental
Singapore’)

China Oriental Singapore
Pte. Ltd. ([China Oriental
Singapore )

Hebe Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Dafang Heavy
Industry Science and
Technology Co., Limited
(*Jinxi Dafang’) (Note (1)

MbERAEEEANET
HRARAT
(TEEAALD (M)

Jinxi International Trade
Co,, Ltd. (Jinxi
International Trade")

ERERESERAA
(TEEERES])

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBAR AH

PRC
18 November 2010

Singapore
29 November 2010

g

“3-%F

t-A=thB

PRC
27 November 2003

i
i e i

PRC

28 March 2011

i

i s

Legal status

HEERER

Limited liability
company

BREFAR

Limited fiability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AREELRR
A

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(REHE)

100%
(Indlrectly helo)

100%
(B&H%)

45.75%
(Indlrectly held)

45.75%
(&%)

97.6%
(Inclrectly held)

97.6%
(RE#A)

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [H 4 A FR 2 7]
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10. MBARRKRE-FARQR(E)

(@)

Issued
and fully
paid capital

BRTRAERE

RMB100,000,000

AR%
100,000,000 70

US$10,000,000

10,000,000% 7

RMBY93,098,162

ARH
93,098,162

RMB100,000,000

ARH
100,000,000

MEARIRE (&)

Authorised
capital

EERA

RMB100,000,000

ARE
100,000,000

Not applicable

RMB93,098,162

ARE
93,098, 16272

RMB100,000,000

ARK
100,000,007

Principal activities

IERE

Development and sales
of real estate

RERHERLE

Trading of iron ore and
related products

REARDLEBER

Manufacture and sales of
casting products and
equipment maintenance

EERHEREER
i

International trading
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10.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILEFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 10. MIBATRE —KRAT (£&)
(continued)
(@  Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ KBRAKE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR
£ AMRLLERAH EETRER Al EERARHERA EERE  TEXH
Tangshan Fengnan Qu Yun PRC Limited liabilty 97.6% RMB5,000,000  RMB5,000,000  Purchase and sale of
Da Trading Co., Ltd. 1 June 2011 company (Indirectly held) steel products
(Yun Da Trading’)
BUTERREEHEERLT PE BREMRA 97.6% N ARE  EMEREE
([EEmE)) ZE—%xA-R (FEsE) 5,000,0007¢ 5,000,007
Hebei Caofeidian Jinxing PRC Limited liabilty 98.0% USD34,000,000  USD34,000,000  Motor vehicle scrap and
Resource Development 1 July 2011 company (Indirectly held) crush demolition solution
Co., Ltd. (‘Caofeidian
Jinxing’)
MIELARRERAY el BREEAA 980%  4000000%T 34000000%7 HBEHREA
ERAA(ERm2R]) —E-—FtA-A (FERH) BUEEAE
Bejing Jinxi LongXiang PRC Limited liabilty 97.6%  RMB10,000,000 RMB 10,000,000  Publication
Cutture Development 4 May 2012 company (Indlrectly helo)
Co., Ltd. (‘LongXiang
Culture”)
TrEmEAU R GilE? EREMRA 97.6% ARE ARE  iRE
ERAR “3-CFRAMA (REHA) 10,000,000 100000007
h4d)
Tianjin Oriental Huitong PRC Limited liability 9.1%  RMB 100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Provision of loans
Microcredt Co., Ltd. 29 June 2012 company (Indlrectly held)
(‘Oriental Huitong’)
RERAEREEHR GilET EREEAT 98.1% N ARE  RUEER
BRAT ZE-CERAZTAR (REHA) 100,000,000 100,000,007
([®AER])
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 10. MIBATRE —ARAT(£E)
(continued)
(@  Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @@ MBRAAKE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR
£ ARRLLERAH EEETRERN Bt BREARERRE EERE  TEXH
Tianjin Jinxi Logistics Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB5,000,000  RMB5,000,000  Provision of agency services
(*Jinxi Logistics”) 31 July 2012 company (Indlrectly helo) for import/export
REEEMRERAA el EREEAT 97.6% N A% RESELORERS
(@) ZE-ZEtA=1-A (FEHE) 5,000,000 70 5,000,000
Qianxi Xinhaiyuan Trade PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVMB 2,000,000  RMB2,000,000  Sales of mining machinery
Co., Ltd. (*Xinhaiyuan’) 24 Qctober 2012 company (Indirectly held) accessories
ERERERAEARAR  1E EREEAT 97.6% NG ARE  HERBRARS
(&858 ZE-CETAZTEA (REHA) 20000007 2,000,007
Tianjin Juli Trade Co., Ltd. PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB 20,000,000 RMB 20,000,000  Interational Tracing
(*Juli Trade”) 25 Qctober 2012 company (Indlrectly helo)
RERNESERAA i BREAR 97.6% NG A% ERES
([FHE5)) ZE-ZETAZTAR (FEHE) 20,000,000 20,000,007
Suzhou Jinxi Boyuan PRC Limited liability 58.56%  RMB 130,000,000 RMB 130,000,000  Development and sales
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 23 January 2013 company (Indlrectly helo) of real estate
(*Suzhou Boyuan’)
BN ZERERHERE hE EREFAT 58.56% AR® ARE  BHERERHE
ERAA(TEMEE]) ZE-=5-AZ1=H (FEHE) 130,000,0007c  130,000,0007C
Beijing Jinxi Boyuan Project PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB 1,000,000  RMB 1,000,000  Construction Project
Management Co., Ltd. 12 July 2013 company (Indlrectly held) management
(‘Beiing Boyuan Project
Management’)
IREERREEERERAR R EREFAT 97.6% AR® AR TREREE
([rrEEBEER)) ZE-=EtATCA (FEHE) 1,000,0007¢ 1,000,0007
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY
(continued)

(@)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The English name of certain companies referred in this
financial statements represent management’s best effort
at translating the Chinese names of these companies as
no English names have been registered.

(i) Although the equity holdings of the Group in Jinxi
Dafang is below 51%, the Directors are of the
review that the Group has control over Jinxi Dafang
given that majority of the directors of Jinxi Dafang
are appointed by the Group by virtue of the article
of association of Jinxi Dafang.

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2013, pursuant
to the equity transfer agreement approved
by the relevant state government authorities,
Jinxi Limited, a 97.6% owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 74% equity interest in Oriental
Evertrust (previously a 100% owned subsidiary of
the Group) at a cash consideration of US$ 148
million. The companies remain as subsidiaries of
the Company subsequent to the transfer.

Material non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2013 and for the year ended
31 December 2013, there were no significant non-
controlling interests of the subsidiaries in the Group.

BE-_ZT-—=F+-B=1—HIFE

10. MBARRE-ARQTE(F)

MEARIRE (&)

ENY B iU = i RN ES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

11.

LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

Loans to subsidiaries [ SYE=R/NGTNE E/4

The loans to subsidiaries form part of the Company’s net
investment in the PRC subsidiaries.

The loans to Jinxi Limited amounting to US$ 106.7 million
(equivalent to RMB 650.5 million) are unsecured, have a
repayment term of 20 years, and bear interest at a rate of 8%
per annum. The Directors have resolved that these loans will
not be settled upon maturity and regarded these loans as part
of the Company’s net investment in Jinxi Limited.

The loans to Jinxi Jinlan amounting to US$ 51.0 million
(equivalent to RMB 310.9 million) are unsecured, have a
repayment term of 7 years, and bear interest at a rate of 7%
per annum.

The rest of the loans to subsidiaries amounting to RMB
3,270.2 million are unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed
terms of repayment.

All the loans to subsidiaries are eliminated at upon
consolidation and there was no significant restriction as at 31
December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, there was no significant credit risk
arising from loans to subsidiaries.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7

11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 # Rk 3% Mt 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILEFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12. E@IA(ZRER) -FEERER

AND COMPANY Al
The Group REE
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables Financial assets Total
ERR AHHE
A SREE @5t
Assets as per consolidated AHEEEBRATINEE

balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial At E & E (M 15)

assets (Note 15) - 149,701 149,701
Trade and notes receivables [ENE SRR (i 17)

(Note 17) 4,559,856 - 4,559,856
Deposits and other receivables e REAEREER

(Note 18) (KsE18) 497,508 - 497,508
Amounts due from related parties R Uk A 7 70 0R (BTRE 42(c))

(Note 42(c) 4,996 - 4,99
Loan receivables (Note 19) FEWE T (ftzE19) 363,232 - 363,232
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) R #1581 T4 (T 20) 1,616,022 - 1,616,022
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) & RIEL B (Hi20) 968,132 - 968,132
Long-term bank deposits (Note 20)  EE3R1717:2% (Ff3:20) 52,000 = 52,000
Total @zt 8,061,746 149,701 8,211,447
As at 31 December 2012 WZE——F+-fA=+—H
Avallable-for-sale financial e RERE (FiF15)

assets (Note 15) - 157,280 157,280
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17)  FEINE SERZ R Z % (fizE17) 6,826,649 = 6,826,649
Deposits and other receivables Re REMEWRERE

(Note 18) (FizE18) 605,665 - 605,665
Amounts due from related parties e L AR 7 700 (BT RE 42(c))

(Note 42(c)) 90,107 - 90,107
Loan receivables (Note 19) EWEZ (HizE19) 379,700 - 379,700
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) SR #1587 7458 (FfizE20) 1,100,794 - 1,100,794
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) B4 RIESZEY (K3 20) 879,005 = 879,005
Total 4t 9,890,920 157,280 10,048,200
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12, @RI A (RER) - FKERER

AND COMPANY (continued) (&)
The Group (continued) REE(E)
Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
RBERATEZ
SHEE
Liabilities as per consolidated EHEERBERITNER
balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+-A=1—H
Trade payables (Note 23) BT 8 S8R50 (Fi3E23) 3,521,390
Other payables (Note 24) H it AR (P 24) 460,437
Borrowings (Note 25) fa R (FisE 25) 7,719,459
Other long-term payables (Note 26) Hin R (FiE26) 26,129
Amounts due to related parties (Note 42(c)) JE (R T 500 (M e 42(c)) 270,979
Total et 11,998,394
As at 31 December 2012 RZZE——&E+=-A=1—H
Trade payables (Note 23) FERE S (M3 23) 3,678,585
Other payables (Note 24) H ot ERTARR (FiE24) 611,311
Borrowings (Note 25) B (FizE25) 8,355,004
Other long-term payables (Note 26) H = BRI 3 (FieE 26) 141,136
Amounts due to related parties (Note 42(c)) {5 BB 7 R (FiE 42(c)) 143,309
Total 4=t 12,929,345
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AND COMPANY (continued)

The Company

Assets as per company

balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013
Available-for-sale financial

assets (Note 15)
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17)
Deposits and other receivables

(Note 18)
Restricted bank balances (Note 20)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20)

Total

As at 31 December 2012
Avallable-for-sale financial

assets (Note 15)
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17)
Deposits and other receivables

(Note 18)
Restricted bank balances (Note 20)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20)

Total

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESREIRARBETTREN)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP

NARERERMTEE

RZE—=F+-A=1—H
AftHESHEE (K 15)

BB SRR (M 17)
e REMEKERR
(FizE18)
XIRHISRT T84 (PTEE20)
Re kRS EEM (ME20)

st

RZE——F+-FA=+—H
AftHESREE (F:15)

ERBSEFRFE (M 17)
%G R E A RSN (MiEE18)

RRHIRITHEER (£ 20)
Be LR FEY (K 20)

@t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE_ZT—=F+-_A=1T—HILFE

12. @ETHE(RER) - XEERAA
(&)
PN

Available-

Loans and for-sale
receivables Financial assets Total

BRR A{HE
FEWERR: tREE @5t
- 40,096 40,096
2,183,580 - 2,183,580
1,292 - 1,292
39,325 - 39,325
41,433 - 41,433
2,265,630 40,096 2,305,726
- 47,675 47,675
2,736,279 - 2,736,279
1,531 - 1,531
201,685 - 201,685
39,866 - 39,866
2,979,361 47,675 3,027,036
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP
AND COMPANY (continued)

The Company (continued)

Liabilities as per company balance sheet ATEEAERMTAE

As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A=+—H
Trade payables (Note 23) FERTE 5 BR3 (B3 23)
Borrowings (Note 25) fa R (HisE 25)

Total Bt

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-A=+—H
Trade payables (Note 23) JERE SR (FizE23)
Borrowings (Note 25) e (HizE25)

Total st

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due
nor impaired can be assessed by types of the financial assets
and by reference to historical information about counterparty
default rates. The Group categorised the trade, notes
receivables and loan receivables as follows:

o Group 1 — Bank acceptance notes
° Group 2 — Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables

due from customers with no defaults in the past

o Group 3 — Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables
due from customers with some defaults in the past

I | S0 China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7
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amortised cost
REBERATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 # Rk 3% Mt 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILEFE

13.

CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables

Group 1 F—57
Group 2 FH
Group 3 E=48

The credit quality of ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’,
‘Deposits and other receivables’ and ‘Amounts due from
related parties’ of the Group is disclosed in Notes 15, 18 and
42(c) respectively.

The Group categorises cash in banks as follows:

° Group 1 — Major international banks

o Group 2 - Listed banks in the PRC

o Group 3 — Subsidiary of listed banks and other banks in
the PRC

The Directors considered the credit risks in respect of cash in
banks and bank deposits with financial institution are relatively
minimum as each counter party either bears a high credit rating
or is state-owned bank and large local banks in the PRC.

Cash in banks and bank deposits

13. TREENEEMRR (&)

FEWE B - R RE R EWE R

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F

3,449,103 5,702,736
1,473,986 1,603,613

4,923,089 7,206,349

REB[AJHEEERHEE]  [KRe
R EH b FEUS AR ZR ] & [ e W BAESE 75 3K
H|EERRS RIRKEE15 - 18 K&
42(c) #: 55 o

AREBREFITRESBAOT ¢
s FEH-TEERET
s FEH-PELEMRT

s F-R-PELWRITHEH
B MEMIRTT

BRENBREEENEH AT
BRITRPEEMARRT  MEF
RRTFHRERMEBNRTRE LR
THEHREERRRE -

BTHS RRITER

Group Company
# EING

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——-F —ZEB—=H —T——fF
Group 1 F—48 216,737 352,178 43,001 187,748
Group 2 E-48 2,347,753 1,670,143 37,754 53,774
Group 3 F=4 65,332 55,506 - —
2,629,822 1,977,827 80,755 241,622
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

14. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND HELD

FOR SALE - GROUP

Properties under development comprise:  ZEFRYEEIE

— Construction costs — BN

— Land use rights — T HbfE A

— Interests capitalised —BEARMEFE
Completed properties held for sale FELHEE T Y

The properties under development and held for sale are all
located in the PRC. The related land use rights are on lease of
40 to 70 years.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 28 million (2012: RMB 7
million) were capitalised into the cost of properties under
development at an annual average capitalisation rate of 9.46%
(2012: 6.29%) approximately.

Properties under development comprised:  ZEEFYIEBLE

Expected to be completed and TEEIR 12 B A AT T

available for sale within 12 months Ea[ftH e

Expected to be completed and available TERER A 12 18 B LA%R
for sale after more than 12 months TLNAHHE

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

14, BRPREHEVNER T KH

2013 2012
—E—=F T4

290,061 140,828
428,477 136,268

31,282 5,847
749,820 282,943
130,748 105,070
880,568 388,013

ERPRFELENYEDLR S
° MR L E MEHEMRA0ET0
f'fo

HE_Z—=F+-A=+—HItF
B BERAHARE2,8008T(=
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2013 2012
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323,762 =
426,058 282,943
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS -
GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group

Unlisted equity interests (a)

Listed equity interests (b)

Less: provision for impairment (a)
Net FE

EHEss (D)
Add: fair value losses previously
credited to equity (Note 22)
Less: provision for impairment (b)
Add/(less): fair value gains/(losses)

credited/(debited) to
equity (Note 22)
Net FE
Total RET

@)

The Group’s unlisted equity interests mainly comprised
an investment amounted to RMB 188 million in a 51%
equity interest in Qianxi County Jinjin Mine Co., Ltd.
(“Jinjin Mine”), and an investment amounted to RMB
95 million in a 10% equity interest in Caofeidian Port
Company Limited. The investee companies are both

operating in the PRC.

As the above investments do not have any quoted
market price in an active market, the range of reasonable
fair value estimate is so significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, the Directors are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be reliably measured. Therefore, these

investments are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

FE LR ()
W ORER R ()

15.

I SERIET A= 2 AR
BEEEE (MeE22)
B RERE (o)
m/sCR) = 5T A ($08R)
a2z A EEKE
(B18) (FizE22)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-2-=H#+-A=+-ALFE

BEr_—=

IHHEESHEE - FEBRELD

=
rEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
297,705 297,705
(188,100) (188,100)
109,605 109,605
47,675 58,371
3,892 -
(23,845) -
12,374 (10,696)
40,096 47,675
149,701 157,280

AEEMELTREEEDRE
AARY1.88 BT ERNESB
AGEeBEEAERAR(ES
¥ ) B51%RERIAARE
9,500 B LR BEMGE LELE
BOBRADAIA10%HE ° 3%
FZREENREIINPEEE -

R Ll R B R E BT 5 &
EATERE AABEEAE
EEtNEEEEER  mMY&
R EEEES EED
- MEER/EAAEBE
EAAEAE At ZFER
BRI ERESIR(NE) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

BE-F-=AT-A=T-ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Regarding the investment in Jinjin Mine, the major asset
of Jinjin Mine is the unlicensed mining rights of an iron
mine in Qianxi County. Since December 2008, Jinxi
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, holding the 51%
equity interest in Jinjin Mine, entered into cooperation
agreements (the “Cooperation Agreements”) with other
parties, pursuant to which Jinxi Limited leased the mining
rights to the contracting parties and conveyed to the
contracting parties all the voting rights on the financial
and operating policies of Jinjin Mine.

The contracting parties were exclusively entitled to the
profit or loss and net assets accumulated during the lease
periods in return for paying lease fees to Jinxi Limited. The
contracting parties were also responsible for preserving
and increasing the value of the net assets of Jinjin Mine at
the end of lease periods. The lease fees were determined
based on the local iron powder market price and are
subject to adjustments quarterly.

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEBREUARE T LREN)

(B =B -

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

(continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group is not able
to exercise any significant influence on Jinjin Mine
and therefore the investment in Jinjin Mine has been
recognised as available-for-sale financial assets.

The investment in Jinjin Mine has been fully provided for
impairment by the Directors of the Company since 31
December 2011 given that most of the lease fee income
had been long past due and not received, and that the
recoverability of investment from the mining rights has
become increasingly uncertain as the licence of mining
rights is unlikely to be obtained.

The Group’s listed equity interest comprised an
investment in 600,000,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 4.47% shareholding, of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited, a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

During the six months ended 30 June 2013, there was
a significant decline in the fair value of securities, which
indicated that the cost of the investment may not be
fully recovered. An impairment provision of RMB 24
million was provided by the Directors for impairment
of available-for-sale financial assets as at 30 June
2013 (Note 29). Thereafter, the fair value of securities
increased during the second half year of 2013. Fair value
gains of RMB 12 million were credited to equity (Note
22).

The fair value of the listed equity interest was determined
on the basis of its quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date.

15.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

bz — 2=

HE-T——F+-A=1+—HLFE

IHHESRHEE -FAKEARERD
B (#&)

EM(E)

(@)

(%)

EERR A% IjtTﬁEﬁ/%
CBEETREMEATE
It B R $i%¥%&§
RARLESREE -

ENRBHEEERRAT R
BB RAKE - BZERE
REIR K B AT Uo 00 1 R PR R T
AR M H TR - i
ARREEE_T——F1_H
=t —BEEREEEROE
FHREZFRERE -

AEENETESBERE
600,000,000 A% 3 3@A% + {28 M
RSB AERAR (—HE
EEBMERIMBR AR ER
ETRRE]) £ 4.47% RRHE o

%ﬁﬁ*ffzﬁﬁﬂ:+a
EANEAR - AR EEN
Kig —Fﬁﬁﬁ&g\ﬂ’\&ﬁﬂi$§27r e
2HWE - R -TE—=FXA
ZtH EECEYAHEES
BEEED AR 2,400 BTHY
ARG (HE29) - Hig - &
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<<///// Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & $t8t R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - 15. AHHESREE - AEEEAA
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) 7 (&)
The Company PN
2013 2012
—E2—= —E——F
Listed equity interest kR 47,675 58,371
Add: fair value losses previously 0 SeRTEF AR
credited to equity ZAREEERE 3,892 =
Less: impairment provision B ORERE (23,845) -
Add/(less): fair value gains/(losses) moCR) = 5T A (FARR)
credited/(debited) to equity Rz AR EEKS
(B#E) 12,374 (10,696)
Net FEE 40,096 47,675
16. INVENTORIES - GROUP 16. FE-ZXKH
2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

Raw materials and materials in-transit B R R EETE 2,304,221 2,239,405
Work-in-progress RS 378,046 259,445
Finished goods ZURK S 1,007,700 693,708

3,689,967 3,192,558

As at 31 December 2013, inventories with a net book value RZZ2E—=F+"A=+—8 "' K@\
of RMB 152 million (2012: RMB 122 million) were pledged as FEARB12BTL(ZE—Z4F:
security for the Group’s notes payable (Note 23). AREA22ETT) MFEE AL S

B SRR VBT (KaE23)

As at 31 December 2013, inventories with a net book value of R-ZE—=F+"A=+—H " @
RMB 131 million (2012: nil) were pledged as security for the FEARB1IEBL(ZE—Z=4F:
Group’s bank borrowings (Note 25). T)NGFEEAAEEMIBITERIE

IR (MI5E25) °

As at 31 December 2013, inventories with a net book value of RZZB—=F+ZA=+—0 " KHE

approximately RMB 40.5 million (2012: nil) were withheld by FEHOARKE4L40608L(Z2—=

and in custody of a court (Note 24). F D)W FERERINE REE (M
F£24) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16.

17.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

INVENTORIES - GROUP (continued)

The cost of inventories recognised in cost of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2013, amounted to RMB 31,415 million

(2012: RMB 34,720 million).

The Group recognised a loss of RMB 28 million (Note 31) for
the year ended 31 December 2013, in respect of the write-
down of inventories to their net realisable values. During the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recognised a gain
of RMB 108 million in respect of the reversal of provisions
made on inventories in the previous year. These amounts have

been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated income

statement.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND

COMPANY

The Group

Non-current
Long-term trade receivables (a)

Current
Trade receivables
Long-term trade receivables
— current portion (a)
Less: impairment provision for
trade receivables (Note 31)

Trade receivables — net
Notes receivable (b)

Total of trade and notes receivables,
net of provision

FRE
RHARKE SR ()

wE

FE W SRR

RHIEKE 5K
— BB (a)

W EUCE SRR
IR (E A (BREST)

FE W E 5 Bk — 58
eI (b)

e E BB M R IE
#ER - R

16.

17.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-ZT-—=F+-A=t—HILFE

BE—=

FE-A£8H(E)

HE_Z—=F+"HA=1T—HILF
& REERAFERNTFTERA A
ARBBZ1415BIL(ZE—=F: A
R¥347.20 1% 7z)

BHE-ZT—=F+-A=+—HILHF
E - AEEE®RAAREK280&T
A8 AT B MR 2 B R #3R FE R E
B(HIsE31) s REBEZZT——F+=
A=+—HLEFER  *EBERR
ARKE1.08 BT AEARERTFE
EEMEEREBEN K - ZZ 28D
ReHAER [SEEMA] AARR -

EREZERARRE - FAKERAR
NG

REE
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET—_F
- 576,155
685,005 550,827
435,555 -
(9,807) (3,069)
1,110,753 547,758
3,449,103 5,702,736
4,559,856 6,250,494
4,559,856 6,826,649
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREEBAMN MESEINARETIREN) BE_T—=F+_A=1T—HILFE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

The long-term trade receivables as at 31 December
2012 amounting to RMB 576 million represented
receivables due from a third party for the provision
of construction services. The trade receivables are
repayable within two years and bear interest at a rate of
6.3% per annum. During the year ended 31 December
2013, trade receivables amounting to approximately
RMB 140 million had been repaid by the third party
and the remaining balance will be due for repayment in
October 2014,

As at 31 December 2013, notes receivable were all bank
acceptance notes. Out of total balance, approximately
RMB 219 million (2012: RMB 853 million) and RMB
1,079 million (2012: RMB 1,347 million) were pledged
as security for the Group’s notes payable (Note 23) and
borrowings (Note 25), respectively.

The settlement of the notes receivable were guaranteed
by banks with maturity dates within six months and the
credit risks of the notes receivable were considered low.

The fair values of trade receivables approximated their carrying

amounts, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The fair values of trade receivables were within level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy.

Except for the trade receivables as mentioned in note (a)

above, the credit policy usually adopted by the Group for the

sales of products to customers is to deliver goods either upon

receipt in cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with

the maturity dates within six months.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2013

17. BRESRAERREE -AKERK

DE(E)
EM(E)

@ RZTE——-F+HA=+—8"
ARES7T6ETHRBAEKE
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R BIEY BRI TR HESE - 48
HREFH - ARAREBENEE
(Bt5E23) Rfa sk (FizE25) A
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FEU iRm0 B HI B AN A BA
A RAERRITERRERER
RS -

RrENFELTEKN - BREE SR
TR BELUEREE -

BB ZEAN DA BEELAEE
EARE—MA -

B ESCHEE () Pt 2 FE W E 5 BR K
Sh REEHITHEMBEEER
B BER/ANKIR SR BEENR
18 A LA B8R T K B R A B P 32
NEY -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(MRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

17.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the ageing analysis of the
gross amount of trade, notes receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAR
4-6 months 4ZE6MEA
7-12 months 7E=1218 A
Over 1 year 1FEM E

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables amounting to RMB
403 million (2012: RMB 214 million) were secured by letters of
credit issued by third party customers, and those amounting
to RMB 436 million (2012: RMB 576 million) were secured by
the pledge of property, plant and equipment of a third-party
customer.

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of RMB 147 million
(2012: RMB 212 million) were past due, of which amounting to
RMB 10 million (2012: RMB 3 million) were fully impaired. The
remaining balances of these receivables were past due but not
impaired which related to a number of independent customers
with no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAMA

BREZRAREE - FAKERAE
DR (&)

REE (#Z)
RZE—=ZFR_F——F+=A1
=+—H8  EBRESERNEEEE
BRI ATLAT :

2013 2012
—EB—=F -4

2,329,917 3,638,113
1,754,991 3,254,352
49,200 37,253
435,555 =
4,569,663 6,829,718

R-ZE—=F+=—A=+—H U%E
SHFRFHANGEREERTNE
WEZERFRABAREL403EIL(ZE
——F: AR¥2141870)  TiA—
BE=ZFEFPHME  BERZBIE
BEHNEKREZRERAARK436E
T(ZE—ZF : AR¥ES7618T) ©

RZE—=%+=ZA=+—H"' A
REA147TRT(ZT——F: ARK
212187 MEWE S REKE @ -
HAARE1,0008BL(ZF—=4F:
AR08 ) NEKRE SEHRE R
BR(E - ZZ KRR EEE B
BREE  PREBARISBHRE
RSB R o

ZERWE ZRANREDIITT

2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
146,564 211,914
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

>

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 17. ERESRIREE -FEBRE

I |90

COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and notes

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

DR (&)

EM(E)

AEBERWE ZEREZENREE

TIA TSGR SEAL -

2013 2012
—E2—= —E——F

RMB AREE 4,161,223 6,552,346
uss$ = 408,440 277,372
4,569,663 6,829,718

Movements on the Group’s allowance for impairment of trade

7 S I 55 B SR BB 2 B

receivables are as follow: T
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_fF
At 1 January m—A—H 3,069 3,607
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment B, (BE)

(Note 31) (fF7E31) 6,738 (538)
At 31 December Nt+-=HA=+—H 9,807 3,069
The Company /N

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

Trade receivables from third parties ERE=FE SRR 72,473 162,345
Trade receivables from subsidiaries FEUR B AT E ZEEK 2,111,107 2,573,934
2,183,580 2,736,279
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEFN  METBINARET TR

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18.
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group

Non-current IERE

Prepayments for purchase of property, BEVE  BE MR E
plant and equipment (a) K FE(IFRIE (a)

Receivables from operating lease (b) BT B R FEIGRIE (D)

Less: impairment provision of prepayments, i : TE{T30IE « S R EM
deposits and other receivables FEUBR R Z R B

Current TED

Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEFENENRE

Deposits and other receivables e &HEH M ERERK

Receivables from operating lease, LT E R W RIE -
current portion (o) mENER S (b)

Prepaid expense ENER

Less: impairment provision of prepayments, & : TE{T30IE « S R EM
deposits and other receivables FEU R 2 R B

The fair values of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
approximated their carrying amounts, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The fair values of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
were within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

B) BE-T-=Ft_A=t—HILFE

BARE - BEREMBYERR -
REBERADT

rEE

2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
234,235 456,058

- 77,5633
(234,235) (77,533)

- 456,058
1,330,241 1,208,632
497,508 605,665

- 32,617

13,918 23,621
(41,897) (82,613)
1,799,770 1,787,922

1,799,770 2,243,980

RFRHOFELTEKX - FAMFKIE
we MEMBUERTN A BEIU
HERME(E

BNHRIA - e REMRURRH R
REBEEARBEERFE _MRA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEERAN  MERFEIUARBTLAREN) HE_Z—=F+_A=t+—HILFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

Details of certain prepayment, deposits and other receivables
are set out below:

(@ The prepayments for purchase of property, plant and
equipment represented an outstanding debt receivable
from Tangshan Fengrun Hengfeng Iron and Steel
Company Limited (“Hengfeng Iron and Steel”), a third
party, amounting to approximately RMB 234 million as
at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB 456 million). Back in
November 2011 to December 2012, Zhengda Iron and
Steel, a subsidiary of the Company, and Hengfeng Iron
and Steel entered into various letters of intent, pursuant
to which the Group has the intention to acquire part of
the assets for steel production from Hengfeng Iron and
Steel, and the prepayments of approximately RMB 457
million will form part of the consideration for the intended
acquisition. On 29 November 2013, Zhengda Iron and
Steel and Hengfeng Iron and Steel entered into the
subject purchase and sale agreement to purchase the
assets from Hengfeng Iron and Steel at a consideration
of approximately RMB 223 million. The consideration
was determined at arm’s length negotiations with
reference to the appraised net value of the assets to be
acquired. The remaining balance of the prepayments
amounting to RMB 234 million had been fully provided
for impairment by the Directors of the Company as at
31 December 2013 given that Hengfeng Iron and Steel
was in significant financial difficulty and had defaulted the
payment of the remaining balance.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7

18. ANRIE - RERHEtEUERNK -
FEBERADR (&)

EM(E)

EFEGHE - B REMBRER
HRERFINT ¢

(@)

R=ZZE—=F+=ZF=+—
H - BEWE BERRED
ERFRIERERELTEERER
18 &8 i85 A R A R( 18 2
#H1) (B=AF)HWAREERKE
BHUARE234BL(ZE—=
& ARE45618T) - BPE
—F—Ft+—AE=-F—=
FrZAHME AAFRMBA
&) 1F 2 i 38 BB W i i B 5T A
FERE Bt A&BEE
1) 122 ) 920 5 B R O ) 6 A
WE D EE - MIEMRELHA
R #4578 70 % 1 5K 5T 2l
BRREZEFRHD - R=ZF
—=fF+—A-t+hB Iz
o 25 B 18 2 8 S8 5T 32 4 15 2 5
HEBEEENEREHZ  RE
HARME22318BTT - ZRETY
K2ELTEMBEEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Pursuant to various agreements entered into in 2011,
Jinxi Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, paid
considerations totalling approximately RMB 228 million
and obtained 51% equity interests in each of five
companies and the mining rights of Qianxi Gaojiadian
Iron Mine (the “Gaojiadian Mining Rights”). In January
2011, pursuant to a cooperation agreement entered into
with a third-party individual (the “Consignee”), from 1
March 2011 to 28 February 2017 (the “Grant Period”),
Jinxi Limited conveyed to the Consignee all the voting
rights relating to the financial and operating policies of
the five companies, Tangshan Jinxi Mining Company
Limited (“Tangshan Jinxi Mining”), another subsidiary
of the Company, together with the Gaojiadian Mining
Rights. The Consignee was exclusively entitled to the
profit and net assets accumulated by the six companies
and the Gaojiadian Mining Rights during the Grant
Period. In return, the Consignee paid cash consideration
of RMB 33 million annually during the Grant Period and
a deposit of RMB 10 million which would offset the last
payment in 2017.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group had effectively
disposed of its equity interests in the six companies and
the mining rights of Gaojiadian in return for a long-term
lease fee receivable from the Consignee.

18.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-2-=H#+-A=+-ALFE

BEr_—=

BARE - BEREMBYERR -
FEBERADR (E)

REE ()
@ (&)

BB ——F5] LG T -

ARIMBAREREE X HRER
HOARE2 28 BILNEIBER A A
Z51% BERBEARRIEEE (SR
JE BRI ) FRIEE - RZT
—F—f REBEF=FBIATLT
(IZFEADTIMEERZ B2
— F=A—AEE_ZT—tF_A
ZHNRBIE(ETHRELD - E=A#HE
BEZARAR - BT EAEESR
AE([EWEARBE]  ARAZS
—HEWB AR KBS REEREKR
FIERERERRREEENREER
FRZEA c RETHMB  STEABX
ZHEHZARARRBREEHER
B RFEE - STEARETHES
FXNEEREARK3300E TR
e AR¥E1,000&8 T (BRER=Z
—tEFEERE AT IEREIR -

BEERB ARBHEERZARA
B RO BRHE B = BRU5 SR ) SRR A IR X
AXFETWREREKEEERTE
B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Accordingly, receivables from operating leases were
recognised in 2011. These receivables had been fully
provided for impairment by the Directors of the Company
as at 31 December 2012 given that the Consignee was
in significant financial difficulty and had defaulted in
payment.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
receivables from operating leases were derecognised
pursuant to the termination agreement entered into
between Jinxi Limited and the Consignee.

Thereafter, Jinxi limited entered into several cooperation
agreements with other third-party individuals. Pursuant
to the cooperation agreements, all the voting rights
relating to the financial and operating policies of the six
companies together with the mining rights of Gaojiadian
were conveyed to these third-party individuals from 2013
10 2019, in return for cash payments of RMB 20 million
annually. The Directors consider that the collectability
of these of cash payments is subject to significant
uncertainty since the collectability is dependent on
the financial position of the third-party individuals.
Accordingly, the receivables from the operating leases
amounting to RMB 100 million have not been recognised
as at 31 December 2013.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—-F+-A=T—HLLFE

18. ANRIE - RERHEtEUERNK -
FEBERADR (&)

EM(E)

(@

(%)

BHit ER T ——FHRL
EHERWGR - EXXHET
EREAMBREEDER
R R-FE—-——%F+_A
=t+t—B XRAAEFRZF
FEWRRET IR 2 BB AR

REBEE-_FT—=F+=A4
=+—BLEFEA - BEZER
i 8] B = 5E 77 7] S B0 4R LE
ORI TR S S R
17 o

Hig ROMESEEMGE=77
BIYALTRINETAIERG -
REZEAEHBHE R_F
—=ZFE-T-NF ZARK
NEIMP G REERRHAE
RERE RS RIS HE R E
RYZEE=TBUALTAR
BRSMREFARE2,0008
T BEERRBASNFHH AN
BIEBURRNZFE = BILA
TEMBRR  BEFEEEAT
ARZE Bl R=F—=
FT-A=t—RHILHEER
RE1ETHREEER KR

=
A °
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@  (continued)

Movement on the Group’s impairment provision of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as

follows:

At 1 January n—A—H

Provision for impairment (Note 31) BB (M1FE31)

Derecognition of receivables HIFERREHER
from operating lease FEW IR

At 31 December R+=ZH—H

As at 31 December 2013, the impairment provision of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables composed
of the impairment provision of RMB 21 million (2012:
RMB 29 million) for certain advance payments for
purchase of raw materials, the impairment provision
of RMB 21 million (2012: RMB 21 million) for certain
advance payments for mining rights of iron ore and the
impairment provision of RMB 234 million (2012: nil) for
certain advance payments for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment.

18. ANRIE - RERHEtBEWER -
FEBERADR (E)

REE ()
@ (&)

AEBEBEMNRE R REM
FEYSRF AR E R BRI T

2013 2012
== —E—_F
(160,146) (21,305)
(226,136) (138,841)
110,150 -
(276,132) (160,146)

R=ZZE—=F+=-A=+—
H- BERHRE- Re REME
WEERZ BEREBRIEREE
BEMEHE FTESREDAR
¥o1008 T (ZE—=F: A
R#2,900& 7T ) KR B B -
HEEHEAEENE TEN
HIEHAR®21008 (==
——F: AR¥2100870) &
BERERTKEDE  KE
BEHETEMRELEAR
234 T (ZE——F: T)
BRI ERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-_Z—=F+-_HA=1T—HILHFHE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Company

Prepayments for purchase of inventories
Deposits and other receivables

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES - GROUP

Non-Current
Long-term loan receivable (a)

Current
Long-term loan receivable
— current portion (a)
Loan receivables (b)
Less: impairment provision (c) (Note 39)

Total loan receivables

18. AMNRIE - RERHEtEWERNK -

REBRAAT (&)
AT
2013 2012
—E—= T ——F
BEGFENTENTIA 247 1,029
e R E A fEUER TR 1,292 1,531
1,539 2,560
19. EWER—X£E
2013 2012
—E—= T ——F
IR B
REIEWE K (@) - 300,000
#E
REEWER
—REED (@) 300,000 -
FEWE T (b) 104,500 80,000
B ORUEREE (o) (MIFE39) (41,268) (300)
363,232 79,700
W E 4Rz 363,232 379,700

The Group provided loans to third parties. The details of the

loans are set out below:

(@ The entrusted long-term loan receivable of RMB 300
million (2012: RMB 300 million) is secured by a pledge of
certain property, plant and equipment of the borrower,

bears interest at a rate of 12% per annum and will be

repaid in full in July 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BRREEBEN ESEINARETIREN) BE_T—=F+_A=1t—HIFE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

(b)

Among the current loan receivables totalling RMB
104.5 million (2012: RMB 80 million) as at 31 December
2013, RMB 85 million comprised various loans of
individual amount ranging from RMB 3 million to RMB
40 million (2012: RMB 10 million to RMB 50 million),
which were secured by the pledged of property, plant
and equipment of the borrowers or guarantees of the
borrowers or other parties and interest bearing at rates
ranging from 19.8% to 24% (2012: 16.8% to 20%) per
annum. The remaining balance of RMB 20 million of the
current loan receivables were unsecured and bearing
interest at a rate of 20% per annum.

As at 31 December 2013, RMB 40 million loan
receivables from third parties were past due, of which
RMB 20 million are guaranteed by third parties and RMB
20 million are secured by trade receivables of borrowers
and a third party. These loan receivables have been fully
provided for impairment by the Directors of the Company
given that the borrowers were in significant financial
difficulty and had defaulted in a scheduled payment
subsequently and there was significant uncertainty of
recovering the loan receivables.

The fair values of loan receivables approximated their carrying

amounts, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The fair values of loan receivables were within level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy.

19. BUWER-FKE(E)

b) R-TBE—=F+_F=+—
B A5t ARE1.045L(=
T——%F: AR¥S8,00087T)
MRBERERT AR
8,500 BT BIEZHER & B8
SENTAREI00ETEAR
B4,000B T (ZF—ZF: A
R # 1,000 8 7t = A K # 5,000
B8L) HERARERAD
BERAEMTODE  BE
REBEERER  REREN
F19.8% E24% (= F — =4
16.8% £20%) 7T B o AR
2,000 & 7T 897t Eh FE UL & SRR RE
FEAR BRFEFIZ20% 512 °

© MZBE—=F+=-A=+—
B AR% 4,000 8T fEW S
=HERNREBEE AL HF
AR 2,000 & THE =i
EREARE 20008 THEER
AR—BBE=ZFHERE SR
FIERER - EREBRAEES
BEAMBR#EREERBEED
EBXGTE - BREIEKERT
EEATHMEZE - AAAE
ERZERWEREELEE
BB -

AFBENFELTEK - BRERH
RABEIAEREE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
BANK BALANCES AND LONG - TERM BANK
DEPOSITS - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group

Non-current IERE

Long-term bank deposits (a) REASRITIF 30 (@)
Current RE

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY
Restricted bank balances ZIR BRI TR RR

As at 31 December 2013, long-term bank deposits and
restricted bank balances composed of the following:

(@ Long-term bank deposits will be due in two years;

(o)  Approximately RMB 748.4 million (2012: RMB 334.9
million) were pledged as security for issuing notes
payable of the Group (Note 23);

()  Approximately US$ 8.8 million (equivalent to RMB 53.2
million) (2012: US$ 39.4 million (equivalent to RMB 247.7
million)) and RMB 7.3 million (2012: RMB 4.1 million)
were pledged as security for issuing letters of credit of
the Group; and

(d) Approximately RMB 773.9 million (2012: RMB 500.4
million) were pledged as security for current borrowings
of the Group (Note 25); and

(e) Approximately RMB 33.2 million (2012: RMB 22.8
million) of cash in bank were withheld by and in custody
of the courts (Note 24).

I | 98 China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7

20.

ReRBE2EEY  ZREBTE
HBERRABRITER - EEERER
=

AR

2013 2012
—E—=F T4

52,000 =
968,132 879,005
1,616,022 1,109,794
2,636,154 1,988,799

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H ' &H
RITHEREZRBITERBE T
B8

(@) FRHRITERENMFRIIE

b)) HARET7484ET(ZZE—=
F: AR¥3.3491(87T) B AR
BREEEMNER(HEE23)m
IR

© #esoEET(HER AR
53208 L) (ZF— 4
BUOEBEETL(HERARK
2.4771870)) RARKE 7308 T
ZT—=F : AR¥41087T)
BERRAAAREBEAZMER
&
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILEFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 20. BELRSEEY  ZRFBTE
BANK BALANCES AND LONG - TERM BANK HRERHBRITER-—TEERED
DEPOSITS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) 7 (4#E)

The Group (continued) REE(E)
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents, RBeME2EFEY  XERHIRITER
restricted bank balances and long-term bank deposits are %ﬁ\ﬁﬁﬂﬁ\ﬁﬁﬁ?&ﬁ’ﬂﬁ%@@ﬁ%?@lrﬁ
denominated in the following currencies: HRELL :

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

Long-term bank deposits RHIBRITEX
RMB AR 52,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents HERASEEYUR
and restricted bank balances ZIRFIRITEER
RMB AR 2,292,199 1,587,559
Us$ £ 287,989 389,637
HK$ BT 3,911 11,603
EUR BT 55 -
2,636,154 1,988,799
The Company AAHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Cash and cash equivalents He RIRSEEY 41,433 39,866
Restricted bank balances SR BIERITAEER 39,325 201,685
80,758 241,551
As at 31 December 2013, restricted bank balances amounted RZE—=%+=ZRA=+—H %
to approximately US$ 6.5 milion (RMB 39.3 million equivalent) 6508 ET(HBENARKES,9308T)
(2012: US$ 32.1 million (RMB 201.7 million equivalent)) were —E——F: 32108 T (HER
pledged as security for issuing letters of credit. AR®E2.017187T)) KPR HI$RIT 45

HERFHAEREMmEM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

21. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM - GROUP AND 21. BARZRE-AREBERAEAT
COMPANY
Amount
X}
Number
of shares Ordinary Share
(thousands) shares premium Total
RBHE
(i) EER B RE Mgt
As at 1 January 2012 R=Z-—-F—-H—-H 2,929,725 311,715 2,190,291 2,502,006
Employee share option scheme: EERERETE
- issuance of shares —RDET 700 57 796 853
As at 31 December 2012 R=ZB-——F+=-fF=+—-H 2,930,425 311,772 2,191,087 2,502,859
Employee share option scheme: BEERETE
— issuance of shares —RpEeT 1,000 81 1,044 1,125
As at 31 December 2013 R-B-=8+-A=+-H 2,931,425 311,853 2,192,131 2,503,984
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the total number of RZE—=FRk-_FT——F+=-A8
authorised ordinary shares of the Company is 5,000,000,000 =t—H ARRETEBEREES
shares with a par value of HK$ 0.1. 5,000,000,000 f& &A% EIE 0.1 7 T &Y
& o

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [H 4 A FR 2 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-2-=H#+-A=+-ALFE

BEr_—=

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group

Balance at 1 January 2012

Profit appropriation
Employee share option scheme

- Value of employee service (Note 32)

Fair value losses on available-for-
sale financial assets (Note 15)
Changes in ownership interests in a
subsidiary without change of control

Balance at 31 December 2012

Profit appropriation
Employee share option scheme

- Value of employee service (Note 32)

Transfer of fair value losses
previously taken to reserve to
income statement upon impairment
of avalable-for-sale financial assets
Fair value gains on available-for-
sale financial assets (Note 15)
Changes in ownership interests in a
subsidliary without change of control

Balance at 31 December 2013

22, Hitf#E - AKEREQT

rEE
Available-
for-sale
Merger ~ Capital Statutory financial
reserve  surplus  reserve  Options  assets Total
AHHE
it EROE ieRE  BRE SREE i
(a) (b) (c)
RZB-Z£-A-HNEH (99 19144 1,036,740 308,198 6,804 1370,87
RNAE - - 7239 - - 7239
[EBEREHE
-[EERBHER (E32) - - - 72205 - 1225
ML ESRAED
N1 BIEEE (i 15) - - - - (10,69  (10,69)
EPSBEHIENERT
SERMBATNAARES - (10,299) - - - (10,299)
R=E-—F+-A=t-AMEs (99 8849 1,109,099 380423 (3,892 1,493,880
RHAE - - 46643 - - 46643
[EBEREHE
-[EERBHER (Es2) - - - 32588 - 2588
R E SREERER
R ABENALER
BigEsfEx
- - - - 382 38%
IHHESRAE
MR EEYE (3 15) - - - - 12314 12374
ErGEEIRENERT
EENHBARNMEEER - 2153 - - - 15y
R=B-=F+ZA=t+- Bl (99 6,696 1,155,742 413011 12,374 1,587,224
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

I ERIAUARE T ITREA)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—-F+-A=T—HLLFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the

difference between the nominal value of the shares of

the subsidiaries that had been acquired and the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefore pursuant to the Reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

(i)

(i)

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries
of the Group registered in the PRC, before
distributing the net profit of each year, these PRC
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their
statutory net profit for the year after offsetting any
prior year’s losses as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations to the statutory surplus
reserve fund. When the balance of such reserve
reaches 50% of the share capital, any further
appropriation is optional.

The statutory surplus reserve fund can be utilised
to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares. However, such statutory surplus reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the entity’s share capital after such issuance.

Discretionary reserves

The appropriation of discretionary reserve fund
is proposed by Board of the PRC subsidiaries,
and approved by the shareholder’s meeting. The
discretionary reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or increase share capital.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7

22,

Hitpfd e — A EBRADQE (F)

EM(E)

(@)

BBt

AEEWE GHEBIED WEH
BRrREOOHEERREES
RBEBREMETHARRRR
EEREHE

RTEREE

(i)

(ii)

EERBREE

RIBF BDER R AR E A
B E THER
AIMAMERAR  BF
oIk F i MR - % E
B A RIRET B &%
AR EEHEEFNER
& ABEFEAE ¥
HH) 10% 25 E B
e EEAMEEEHR
PRARH)50% A 1E - AEE
BB ERILZFERE -

AERBHEBE S AR
EEEFNERHETA
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ZERBBANRD26% -
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EBHE RN RTIE
FENBAANEE R
B WAEBEARNH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

T — T
BE_—=

For the year ended 31 December 2013
=FTZA=t—RILFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 22, Hfvf#E —AEBERAQT (EZ)
(continued)
The Group (continued) NEE(4Z)
(©)  Employee share option scheme € |EEBERETE

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain
share options were granted to selected directors
and employees as follows. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the

options in cash. ERHER
Number
of share
options in an Exercises
Date of grant aggregate price
THEE
HK$ per share
o ill=! BREAYAE BRET
30 June 2006 —EERFRA=TH 24,200,000 1.76
26 October 2007 ZETHETAZTRH 89,700,000 5.24
24 February 2009 “TEAF B -+WHE 21,200,000 1.39
11 May 2009 “ETNERAT—H 6,600,000 1.50
29 December 2009 —EENF+ZRA=thH 148,780,000 2.84
20 December 2010 —E-ZTF+-H-+H 6,000,000 3.00
24 December 2010 —E-ZTHF+_-A=+WAH 47,100,000 3.18
14 January 2011 —Z——%—A+mA 800,000 3.20
27 April 2011 —Z——FPNA=1+tH 9,800,000 3.08
30 March 2012 —E——_H#=A=+H 75,370,000 2.03
30 May 2012 —E——FHA=+H 9,800,000 2.03
Note 1: The share options are exercisable in different BiaE1. ZEER

periods ranging from February 2009 to December
2020, and with different vesting requirements.

—TE-F

—=—=

TATHE -

Annual Report 2013 —F—=4F4EH

REARREZRSZIER
TIRKENEEREEDE
BTaTERE AEELE
AR BRIk EEBRENE

£

Exercisable
period

AT

Ten years from
date of grant
BBt F
Ten years from
date of grant
BT BT
Note 1

BEE 1

Note 1

BT 1

Note 1

Bt 1

Note 1

BEE 1

Note 1

BT 1

Note 1

Bt 1

Note 1

BEE 1

Note 1

BT 1

Note 1

Bt 1

BRZZETNF_RZE
F+ = ATRHEM AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BEZZ—=F+-_A=1T—HILFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 22, HitifEE - AKERAQT(E)

(continued)

The Group (continued) REE(E)

(c) Employee share option scheme (continued) € EEBKRETEI(E)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding HE-_ZT—=F+_-_A=+—
during the year ended 31 December 2013 and their BIEFEA - BARITEHER
related weighted average exercise prices were as HEHE MEMERBINEFHITE
follows: BT :

2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F

Average Average
exercise Number exercise Number
price per of options price per of options
share in HK$ (thousands) share in HK$  (thousands)

BRIRGH BRI
FTEE BREZHE THTEE BRERE
(BT) (F14) (A7T) (F3)
At 1 January Rn—H—H 2.57 309,016 2.76 230,150
Granted B2 - - 2.03 85,170
Exercised B171% 1.39 (1,000) 1.50 (700)
Lapsed EESY 2.19 (9,396) 2.40 (5,604)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2.59 298,620 2.57 309,016

Option exercised in 2013 resulted in 1,000,000 shares
(2012: 700,000 shares) being issued at a weighted
average price of HK$ 1.39 each, which resulted
in increase of share capital and premium by HK$
1,390,000 (equivalent to RMB 1,125,000) (Note 21).

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [H 4 A FR 2 7]

RZE—=FBITENERE
ZmiEFHESRKR139E T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2013

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

The Group (continued)

(©

Employee share option scheme (continued)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILEFE

22, HftfRE-FEEREQR (&)

EM(E)

(©)

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2013 and

2012 have the expiry dates and exercise prices as

follows:

Expiry date
i 5 B HA

23 February 2019
10 May 2019

28 December 2019
16 May 2016

19 December 2020
13 January 2021
27 March 2021

19 December 2020
19 December 2020

Exercise price

TEE

HKS$ per share

SREBT

—ET-hF-_HA-+=H 1.39
—E-NFhATH 1.50
—E-NF+=A=+N\H 2.84
ZE—RFRATH 3.00
—E-TF+ A+ NH 3.18
—E-—%—/[+=H 3.20
- —4F=H=++tH 3.08
—ECTF+ A+ NH 2.03
—E-TF+Z A+ A 2.03

B BRI 8l (/)

R-F-—Z=FR-_FT—_F
TZA=+T—HRERITENE
PR fEm B A R T BT

Number of options

(thousands)

BREHE (T4)
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
18,500 20,500
2,000 4,600
141,650 141,650
6,000 6,000
40,100 43,136
800 800
9,800 9,800
69,970 72,730
9,800 9,800
298,620 309,016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

>

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 22, HitifEE - AKERAQT(E)
(continued)
The Company AAT
Available-for-

sale financial Accumulated

23.

E 2006

Options assets losses Total
e
BhRE SREE ZitER @t
Balance at 1 January 2012 RZE-—5-B-RihEe 308,198 6,804 (429,500) (114,498)
Loss for the year FREE (148,960) (148,960)
Employee share option scheme (BB EIETE
- Value of employee service (Note 32) (B S FREHIB(E (Mi532) 72,225 = - 72,225
Fair value losses on available-for- A ESREENAL
sale financial assets (Note 15) BEEE (ME15) - (10,696) (10,696)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-E-—£+-8
=t+-AmEe 380,423 (8,892 (578,460) (201,929)
Loss for the year FRER = = (213,894) (213,894)
Employee share option scheme EEBIETE
- Value of employee service (Note 32)  — (BB RISHI(E(E (M 32) 32,588 - 32,588
Transfer of fair value losses previously — REJAHES RS ERIER S
taken to reserve to income statement  SLATE AR EH AL EE
upon impairment of avallable-for- BREZTER
sale financial assets - 3,892 3,892
Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale AEHESREENDS
financial assets (Note 15) BEkKzE (M 15) - 12,374 12,374
Balance at 31 December 2013 N-E-=£+_A
S d=life 3 413,011 12,374 (792,354) (366,969)

TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group

Account payables
Notes payable

&1 BR K
e R

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [H 4 A FR 2 7]

23. BNEZRR-—FARERALQT

REE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
2,279,265 2,235,577
1,242,125 1,443,008
3,521,390 3,678,585




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

The Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, all notes payable represented bank
acceptance notes, of which RMB 219 million (2012: RMB
747 million) were secured by certain notes receivable (Note
17), RMB 833 million (2012: RMB 557 million) were secured
by certain restricted bank balances (Note 20), and RMB
190 million (2012: RMB 139 million) were secured by certain
inventories (Note 16) and certain restricted bank balances
(Note 20).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAR
4-6 months 4ZE6MEA
7-9 months 7E9E A
10-12 months 1021218 A
Over 1 year 18 E

23. BNEZRTN - FAKERALQTF

(&)

EM(E)

R_E—=F+—A=1+—8 " Ak
NEERIBITELIES - ERaENE
TR (MFE17) AEE A R
219EBTL(ZT——5F : ARKT7A7(E
TL) BYIRTTAGLIES « A TR HIER
s (i 20) B AR 8.331%
TL(ZE—=F : AR¥S5571870) MR
THEAES  ARABTFEE(KFE16)
e TR HIRTTAE A (FfT7E20) A AT
WARB1DET(ZE—ZF: AR
& 1.30187T) RUSRT T CH [ESE -

RZE—=FR_FT——F+=_A1
=+—H8 ' ENESERNERDT
R

2013 2012
—EB—=F T4

2,656,282 2,380,585
696,399 1,230,563

77,508 15,545
28,260 11,584
62,941 40,308

3,521,390 3,678,585
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<<///// Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & $t8t R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY 23. ENHESRAHX —FTEERAEAATA
(continued) (%)
The Group (continued) REE(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are REERNESERANVEEEIAT
denominated in the following currencies: 5| EHE ARG
2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
RVB AR 3,224,435 3,354,395
us$ ET 296,555 324,190
EUR BT 400 -

3,521,390 3,678,585

The Company ARAHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_fF
Accounts payable FER IR 9,211 160,974
24, ACCRUALS, ADVANCES AND OTHER CURRENT 24, BREA BUREBERHMAEE
LIABILITIES - GROUP AND COMPANY BE-AEBERKAT
The Group &
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
Advances from customers TEW R FFRIE 1,106,232 1,500,458
Payables for purchase of property, BEME  BEK
plant and equipment BRI FERTBR IR 255,119 300,985
Deposits from customers BRE%R® 172,279 283,084
Value-added tax payable and FEIIB(ERR R EoAh
other taxes payables FE TR IR 54,148 44,474
Provisions for legal claims RERIEREE 73,532 22,754
Accrual of interest expense TERRMNEER 131,285 84,074
Accrual for iron ore importing expenses TEREEAEOEA 135,658 134,993
Salary, pension and other social EFE  BRek
welfare payables Hipt =z H| 123,552 124,268
Others Hih 289,218 278,661

2,341,023 2,773,751
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

24, ACCRUALS, ADVANCES AND OTHER CURRENT
LIABILITIES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

The provisions for legal claims were related to the below
litigation cases of the subsidiaries of the Company:

(@ In November 2013, a third party customer filed a
lawsuit against a subsidiary of the Company, alleging
that the subsidiary has breached certain terms of sale
and purchase agreement. Under the request of the
customer, certain inventories (Note 16) and certain bank
deposits (Note 20) were withheld by and in custody of
the court as security to be used to settle the loss claim
amounting to RMB 50.8 million by the customer if the
court ruled the allegation had merits.

(b) In August 2012, a bank filed a lawsuit against a
subsidiary of the Company and other defendants,
alleging that the subsidiary has breached certain terms
of an agreement. Under the request of the bank, certain
bank deposits (Note 20) were withheld by and in custody
of the court as security to be used to settle the loss claim
amounting to RMB 36 million by the bank if the court
ruled the allegation had merits.

The provision charge amounting to RMB 50.7 million
(2012: RMB 22.8 million) is recognised in profit or loss
within ‘Other (losses)/gains-net’. In the opinion of the
Directors, after taking into consideration the appropriate
legal advice, the outcome of these legal claims will not
give rise to any significant loss beyond the amounts
provided as at 31 December 2013.

BE-_ZT-—=F+-B=1—HIFE

24, FARER AURERAGREE

E_

FEERADR (&)

EM(E)

RZE—=F+—H  —8F
= HRFHEARNT — BB
ARRHHFD - EEZMEA
AEREEMENS TIEK-
BIEZEFEX - 5T7FE (K
#E16) kA THRITFER(HIEE20)
WA REEE - B %R
HERBEE  SRARERE
BZEPREARKS50808T
REE -

R-ZZE——FN\A  —KRT
AR A — R E R E K EAM
WER AR FEEZHEA
AERBHENE T HRK - RIE
ZERITER - ETRITHFER
(M5E20) BOERR B REEE
BfERHERRAE &
REREBZRBITREAR
3,600 & TTHIEIE ©

ARE50708T(ZF— =4 :
AR®22808T) EE S T
RiEmEP T HM(EE) K
w35 PR c KEREE
FEREERE BEBERRN-Z
—=F+-_A=+—H8 %%
ERRENBRETSS| BME
HEREZINNERIERIEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

24,

25.

I ERIAUARE T ITREA)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_T-—=F+-A=1+—HLFE

ACCRUALS, ADVANCES AND OTHER CURRENT 24.
LIABILITIES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Company

Accrual of interest expense
Salary, pension and other social

BRENEER
ENFE  BRE Rk

welfare payables Hibt 25
Others EHAh
BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 25.
The Group
Non-current IERE

Bank borrowings, unsecured (a) EIRIRITER (@)

Senior Notes (b) BRI (b)
Current RE

Bank borrowings (a) RITIER ()

Secured i
Unsecured it

Other borrowings, unsecured (c)

Total borrowings

HABAE R — IR (o)

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [H 4 A FR 2 7]

RREA AREFRERAMR
BEE-AEERAQE(E)

ARAHE
2013 2012
—E2—= —E——F
100,412 105,578
2,073 7,764
11,358 9,915
113,843 123,257
ER—AREERAQTF
REE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_fF
25,000 125,000
4,258,962 4,376,105
4,283,962 4,501,105
1,837,126 1,727,260
1,533,371 2,061,639
3,370,497 3,788,899
65,000 65,000
3,435,497 3,853,899
7,719,459 8,355,004




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
IS BEANARE T T RER)

(B =B -

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

The secured bank borrowings as at 31 December 2013,
comprised RMB 676 million (2012: RMB 462 million),
RMB 1,030 million (2012: RMB 1,265 million) and RMB
131 million (2012: nil) secured by certain restricted bank
balances (Note 20), notes receivable (Note 17) and
inventories (Note 16) of the Group, respectively.

On 18 August 2010, the Group issued US$ 550 million
senior notes (the “2015 Senior Notes”), which bears
interest at 8% per annum and payable semi-annually, to
finance its potential acquisitions and investments, capital
expenditure projects and working capital requirements.
The principal of the 2015 Senior Notes is wholly
repayable on 18 August 2015.

On 17 November 2010, the Group issued US$ 300
million senior notes (the “2017 Senior Notes”), which
bears interest at 7% per annum and payable semi-
annually, to refinance its outstanding short-term
debts. The principal of the 2017 Senior Notes is wholly
repayable on 17 November 2017.

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-2—=FEt-A=t—ALER
25. ER-AEERAQT(E)
&M (E)
@ R-F-—=F+=A=+-

H-  BEEFRITERRED
NARES7T6E (=T —=
F: AR®4621E7T) AR
1030 T (ZZTE——5F: A
R#12.65187T) R A R#1.31
Brn(ZZ——F : T)NEE
BE T 2R 6l R 17 4 & (P &
20) * EWEE (17 RIFE
(HirE16) B o

R-Z-FF/\A+N\R £&E
B EIT550RETNELRRE
ZZ2—hFEBRREE]) KA
FHEB%HEREBFFEEE
& NEPEEERERRE
EASHIEEREEESHEL -

—hFEERBRNASAR
“ZEZ-AFN\A+N\B2HE
g o

W-F-FE+-A+tA

REBEITIR/ETHE
AEBR(-ZFE—tHEBEER

#1)  ERIE 7% B REE
G BEE - AR
FEROEINES - —F L
FEAEBRNESAR T
—t+—AHEARHEE

Annual Report 2013 —F—=4F4EH

>

2]1] I



>

I 22

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(B =AE=AMN

I ERIAUARE T ITREA)

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(b)

(continued)

On 14 November 2012, the Group repurchased US$
87.24 million of the 2017 senior notes and US$ 59.82
million of the 2015 Senior Notes, resulted in a gain of
RMB 76.561 million (Note 29).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Han
Jingyuan (“Mr. Han”), the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and Wellbeing Holdings Limited
(“Wellbeing Holdings”) and Eastland International Trading
Limited (“Eastland”), companies beneficially owned by
Mr. Han, bought and sold Senior Notes. The movements
of the Senior Notes held by Mr. Han and his two
companies during the year ended 31 December 2013
were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—-F+-A=T—HLLFE

25.

Mr. Han
BEA

950
(950)

(H =k

amA—Zlﬂﬁﬁziﬁ’D\ﬁ(é%)

&

(b)

M (%)
(&)

RZE——F+—H+WEA -
ANEBHED S 724 BETH — &
—EFEAEZER5,982 8%
M-T—RFELEE  EF
R¥7,656.1 BT (FizE29) I

N

B

REE-—T—=F+—"A=+—
BILEER - NRARIEERERE
REFEWITERBELEE(E
T EBBEEEERERN
i [ 2 7]lWellbeing Holdings
Limited ([Wellbeing Holdings |)
M Eastland International Trading
Limited ([Eastland]) B &E %=
B-REE_T—=F+_AH
=+—HIEFER @ BEERE
MERFRBEHNELERIBENES)
s

Wellbeing
Holdings
Wellbeing Eastland Total
Holdings Eastland &5t
US$'000
S
6,500 4,500 11,000
- - 950
(6,500) (4,500) (11,950)

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——FE+=A=1+-H
Bought BA
Sold Bl
As at 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+=A=1+—H

The other unsecured borrowings represent a borrowing
from a local county government amounting to RMB 65
million (2012: RMB 65 million) which has no fixed term of
repayment. Interest is charged at the RMB bank deposit
rate for 1 year fixed deposit.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 # Rk 3% Mt 5+ <//////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILEFE

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) 25. EBR-FEERALQT(E)

The Group (continued) KEE(E)
(d) As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group’s d RZE—=Fk_F—=F
borrowings were repayable as follows: +-—A=+—H AEEKNE

HRENHHR T

Other borrowings

Bank borrowings and Senior Notes

RITIER HitfERRBERE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—=2—= —T——F =—ZT-—= —E—_F
Within 1 year 1R 3,370,497 3,788,899 65,000 65,000
Between 1 and 2 years 1&E24F 25,000 125,000 2,969,541 -
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE54F - - 1,289,421 4,376,105

3,395,497 3,913,899 4,323,962 4,441,105

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as REEBRNERFZNT !
follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
RMB HK$ Us$ RMB HK$ Us$
ARY BT EYH ARHEE BT e
Bank borrowings RITER 6.10-7.65% - 117-390% 6.94-7.65% - 1.52-4.25%
Other borrowings HifER 3.60% - - 3.60% - -
Senior Notes BRZE - - 7.00-8.00% - - 7.00-8.00%
The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximated mEERRNEE BMERmELMUER
their fair values as at the balance sheet date. nfEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

HE-_Z-—=F+-"F=1—HIFE

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current bank
borrowings and Senior Notes are as follows:

25, fER-FEEREQF(E)

EE(E)

FERBRITERRELZBENREE
RAfEELT

Carrying amount Fair value

BRE{E AREE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F ZE—f =—ZE-= &
S BITHE 25000 125000 23,203 110,652
Senior Notes BRER 4258962 4,376,105 4,100,512 4,506,540
4,283,962 4,501,105 4,123,715 4,617,192

The fair values of current borrowings approximated their
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
The fair values of non-current bank borrowings are based on
discounted cash flow approach using the prevailing market
rates of interest available to the Group for financial institution
with substantially the same terms and characteristics at the
respective balance sheet dates. The fair values of Senior Notes
are based on quoted market price.

Except the fair values of Senior Notes are within level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy. The fair values of other borrowings are
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of the
borrowings amounting to RMB 7,438 million (2012: RMB
7,687 million) and RMB 281 million (2012: RMB 668 million)
were denominated in US$ and RMB respectively.

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

ABIRFEIN  RBERNRA
EBEAUERKREE - IFRBDIRITER
AR BEEAAKERNSEE K
REFBABARN S REERIRTT
MSNERRBESREEFTREE - &
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BREAZRBNAREEBRAAEE
BRE—RAZIN  EMERNAR
BEEAABEERE -_MA -
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BEEARKTAZETL(ZE——F:
AR 76.8718T) R AR 2.81 8T
(ZZT—=F : AR¥6.681ET) W&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 # Rk 3% Mt 5+ </////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILEFE

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) 25. EBR-FEERALQT(E)
The Group (continued) KEE(E)

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to interest-rate NEERITEIAERNRESES &

changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: BHREFEBBEWOT
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
6 months or less 6 & AR 3,072,112 3,234,004
6-12 months 6ZE 121 A 298,385 554,895
More than 12 months @12 1E A 25,000 125,000
3,395,497 3,913,899
The Company /N
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
Non-current FERE
Senior Notes BrEEE 4,258,962 4,376,105
Current B
Bank borrowings— RITER—
Secured [BE:iw - 788,759
Unsecured i 621,820 389,269
621,820 1,178,028
Total borrowings g 4,880,782 5,554,133
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP

Non-current IERED

Other payables HAbFERBRR
Current B

Finance lease obligations BhE T EAE
Total other long-term payables Hih R EAE 45

In July 2008, Jinxi Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an asset sale and leaseback agreement with certain
financial institutions. The sales proceeds of the relevant
property, plant and equipment were RMB 800 million. The
lease term was 60 months and the lease payments were
adjusted annually and reset according to the benchmark
interest rate announced by the People’s Bank of China. Jinxi
Limited was entitled to purchase the related assets at a cost of
RMB 100 at the end of the lease. In August 2008, Jinxi Limited
entered into a guarantee agreement with another financial
institution. Pursuant to the agreement, this financial institution
granted a guarantee of RMB 800 million in favour of Jinxi
Limited for the above finance lease arrangement.

In August 2013, the sale and lease agreement was mature and
Jinxi Limited purchased the related assets at a cost of RMB
100.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 Fl i B A PR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2013

26. HttRHENR-AEH

2013 2012
—E2—= —E——F
26,129 26,129

- 115,007

26,129 141,136

RZZZENFLA - 2AME(REE
BT BETEREIBIILE
EERERRE - BEYE - BE R
R HEMGERERARKEB.00E
Joo HEAANTEAR  HENREF
BETHBWREBEREARRITAA
i BENEEHRTE - REHIAER
o R FMEA EAK A AR 100
THEEHAEE - RZZEZNFEN
A ERMEES —REmEEBEI
—HERGE - REZ® - Ze®
B DRt B E LB AR T E
A AR 8.00BTTER -

R-ZF—=F\f  ERHELH=EE
2l BOFPAEE AR AR 1007T
BEEBEE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILEFE

27. DEFERRED REVENUE - GROUP 27. ERIEWA —XEH

Deferred

government

grant

EFEBATF

Rk

At 1 January 2012 NZE——F—H—H 38,020

Addition N 15,050
Credited to the consolidated NEHRERANTER

income statement (6,777)

At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-_A=+—H 47,293

Addition NE 16,325
Credited to the consolidated RABFIER AR

income statement (5,944)

At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-A=+—H 57,674
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

28.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there

is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to income taxed levied by the same taxation authority on either

the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is

an interaction to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset

amounts are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered
after more than 12 months
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered
within 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities:
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
after more than 12 months
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
within 12 months

Deferred tax assets — net

EEHRAEE
— R 128 B &K [E
HIRIER A& B
— R 128 A Ak E
HYIRIER A E B

EETRRIE -
— R 12 E B &S 8H
HIRER AR &
—#R12EA R
HHRERIARE

EETHIRE E — 55

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:

At 1 January
Credited to the consolidated
income statement (Note 34)

At 31 December

n—A—H
REHFER
FEBR (F95E34)

R+t=—A=+—8

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2013

EEFEH —AKH

EERRBHAEERRSRARARE
EHZ BIRBBINITHE - WREIRT
PSR B R — BB % BRI E
B TRAERNERBMBWZAERE
B - A Ry AR R A SR
A - RERAEREERAGSE
i o MIHE T

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F

227,122 117,263
108,160 127,151
335,282 244,414
(43,324) (37,260)
(6,064) (6,064)
(49,388) (43,324)
285,894 201,090

BEIEFTISTAR B R E ST

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F

201,090 192,694
84,804 8,396
285,894 201,090
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 28. EEMEBHR-AKE(Z)

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences under
the liability method using the tax rate and the tax base that is
consistent with the expected manner of recovery or settlement
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

EERTERA B EAN TR = &g
EHE—_T-—=F+_A=1+—HIt
FREBEHKREIREE X BT E
MR ETE o

FREERAAERABORAA
e 7 — BB PO 85 0 5 84) B0

balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows: R
Deferred tax assets: EETIBEE ¢
Temporary  Impairment
difference  provision of
arising from  assets and
expense  provisionof  Unrealised
Taxlosses  recognition  legal claims gains Total
EREAN EENERER HARER
WEEE ENMEE AERERE 6 st
At 1 January 2012 W-E——%—f—H 7,578 82,107 134,910 6,179 230,774
(Charged)/credited to the REHFIER (R)/ 2k
consolidated income statement (256) 11,098 (31,731) 34,529 13,640
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-A=1+—H 7,322 98,205 103,179 40,708 244,414
(Charged)/credited to the REHFIER (0R)/ 2k
consolidated income statement (5,736) 1577 85,863 9,164 90,868
At 31 December 2013 RZB-=F+-A=1-H 1,686 94,782 189,042 49,872 335,282
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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>

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 28. EEFFEBH —AXKE®E(E)

The Directors are of opinion that accumulated tax losses EE75 —RHHNBATARES.28

E 220

of RMB 328 million (2012: RMB 213 million), of which
approximately RMB 22 million has expired of a subsidiary are
unlikely to be utilised before the losses expired, therefore no
deferred tax assets were recognised in this regard.

The Directors are of opinion that the accumulated tax losses
of RMB 257 million (2012: RMB 220 million) of the Company
are unlikely to be utilised before the losses expired, therefore
no deferred tax assets were recognised in the Company in this
regard.

Br(ZZT—=F : AR®2.1318T)
B 25 HIEEE (AR ARK 2,200
S 0B Em) R EEE R AT T AR
BEtRE A - B - WEM L ERET
MIBEEE ©

EERAE ARARARKE257E T
(Z2—=F : AR¥220BT)HMER
ST T8 5 18 1A 5 18 B M AT A8 T K AT A
WERA - Bt - ANA R EL I ER
BETHIBEE o

Deferred tax liabilities: BRETHIARE :
Fair value Capitalised

Gains interest Total

ARBEEKE ER{EFIE a3t

At 1 January 2012 WZZE——F—HA—H (6,799) (31,281) (38,080)
Credit/(charged) to the & HRIEREER/(INk)

consolidated income statement 358 (5,602) (5,244)

At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=1+—8H (6,441) (36,883) (43,324)
Credit/(charged) to the & RIEREER (k)

consolidated income statement 358 (6,422) (6,064)

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=1+—H (6,083) (43,305) (49,388)

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB 403 million (2012: RMB
387 million) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax and other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries in PRC amounting to RMB
4,025 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB 3,867
million). The Directors are of the view that the Group will not
distribute the unremitted earnings in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 # Rk 3% M 5+ <</////

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

29. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS-NET

Gains of raw materials and by-products

Government grants
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment (Note 7)
Provision for legal claims (Note 24)
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of an
associate (a)
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains-net
(Note 35)
Gain on repurchase of Senior Notes

Gain on written-off of long aging payables
Impairment of available-for-sale financial

assets (Note 15)
Others

Total other (losses)/gains-net

BE-_ZT-—=F+-B=1+—HIFE

29. Hfth(f518), s — 8

R Bl G s
RS
Y - BB Rk
BB (MFE7)
ERRERE (MiEE24)
HEWE - BEREZEZ
Wezs
PE—EBEQRZ
Wz (a)
PN (E18) e —
FEE (M17E35)
BEIE SRR 2 W
i R AR AR I 5 3R 2 W s
At ESmEERE
(Mg=E15)
Hth

Hith (B18) M FEAF

During the year ended 31 December 2013, pursuant (a)

to an agreement entered into between Jinxi Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, and a third-party individual,
Jinxi Limited sold all its 35% equity interest in Qianxi

County Zhongxing Iron Mine Co., Ltd. The Group’s

net book value of the investment was zero as the

accumulated loss exceeding the investment cost

attributable to Jinxi Limited. The consideration of RMB

50 million had been received before 31 December 2013.

2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
2,368 67,476
61,904 19,205
(79,053) (3,600)
(50,778) (22,754)
2,634 2,434
50,000 -
(33,631) 969
- 76,561
- 21,398
(23,845) -
1,862 2,460
(68,539) 164,149

RBE_ZE-—=Z1+=A
=+t—HLEFEEA: BEARQ
CIGIEMANGID: ik F = R
=HFBEIATEI W
AMENEENBEARS EE
EBMRARI35%MHE - A&
EZERENREFELS
Ut 75 B3 7 R 5T /S 18 78 460 )2 7 4
HEMIRERKA - AR 5,000
ETHREERZ=ZZE—=F
+ZA=+—HAKER
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

\F@%Ei‘éﬂﬂﬁ\\ CETRIINARBTIAEMN) BE-T—=FT_A=1T—HILFE

30. OTHER INCOME 30. HflA

Rental income arising from investment KEMEFTES
properties (Note 8) mEES WA (FizEs)

Income from other operating leases B EBlE 2 WA

Investment income from financial RAnEEFEEEZS)
assets at fair value through profit FSTABRRZSREE
or loss (a) 2 EWE (@)

Others HAh

Total A&t

(@)  As at 31 December 2013, all of the trading funds and the
trading derivatives have been settled and during the year
ended 31 December 2013, the realised gains of investment
income amounted to RMB 6 million and RMB 44 million

respectively.

31. EXPENSES BY NATURE 31.
Employee benefit expense (Note 32) EERFIFE (fEs2)
Changes in inventories of finished goods N mRERR

and work in progress NEEES)
Raw materials used PR RV
Cost of properties sold HEMERA
Utilities R
Amortisation of leasehold land and HELH R
land use rights (Note 6) RS (fisEe)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 7) #1% « i R R EHE (H13E7)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) & AR ()
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 8) REMERE (f:E8)
Operating lease expenses in respect of land use rights & +3t{F AENLLEHBEER
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment ERE SESREBE/
of trade receivables (Note 17) () (KizE17)
Impairment provision of prepayments, BEFE ke REMERRR
deposits and other receivables (Note 18) ZRERE (Kt 18)

Impairment provision of loan receivables (Note 19) M E T R ERE (HF19)
Provision for/(reversal of) write-down of inventories REEEMBZTERFEL

to net realisable value (Note 16) Bfe/ (B0 (M5 16)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENE 2
Rental Fee HEE
Others Hft
Total A&t

China Oriental Group Company Limited 7[5 5 5 48 [ ¥ i FR 2 7]

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F

2,363 2,903
27,580 20,0383
50,419 =
10,556 13,022
90,918 35,958

R=ZF—=F+=—A=+—H"Fr
EESCEERTETIAEECRR
B BRBE=_ZT—=%+=A
=+—HIEFER  BERAKE
B0 W 5 R A AR 600 & T &
AREE4,4008 7T °

B E 25X

2013 2012
—E-=F —TF
971,986 1,039,827
(456,800) (20,924)
28,324,999 31,167,528
95,569 162,062
1,497,502 1,733,981
3,405 3,405
1,045,516 943,709
78 25

806 806

3,458 3,640
6,738 (538)
226,136 138,841
40,968 300
28,180 (108,439)
5,281 5,922
192,490 264,546
307,215 295,027
32,293,527 36,629,718




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-2- = +-A=+-ALFE

BEr_—=

32. EERAMAX

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) E Sk A (B FEESEE)

— Salaries and welfare
— Pension costs — defined

—Fre RiEhl

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group that
are incorporated in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan organised by the
relevant provincial government. For the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group is required to
make monthly defined contributions to these plans at
rates from 10% to 20%, with the base of their total salary
subject to a certain ceiling.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees or retirees other than the payments disclosed
in the above note.

— BB — ERHK

contribution plans (a) =&l (a)

— Share options granted to —-BTEE 6BBATL
directors, eligible persons & B R
and employees (Note 22) (FfFzE22)

2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
782,512 817,629
156,886 149,973
32,588 72,225
971,986 1,039,827

RIS — E R E

palll;

2N £ B A FP B a1 A 2 B0 B B
AEMEEZ2EFGHEEBNA
BHTHEERARERKS
o HEZ—=ZFK=_F
——®+-_RA=+—H1tHF
E ASEREEFLE
10% £ 20% & A R 55T E{E
HERER - EXET LRAT
MR o

B DA L B & P 45 B8 B9 SRIR D -
AEBYEAREBIERARAL
AR E Ris T H MR KR
BHWEMBEE -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-_T—=F+_A=t—HLFE

>

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 32. EERAMEX(E)

(b)  Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments ) ZESKEAEREMS

BE_Z—=ZFR-_ZF——F
+—A=t—HILFE &&=

The emoluments of every director for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012, on a named basis, are set

N 0?4

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 32 B A FR 2 7]

out as below: HIBN & (LA A2E) &5 -
Fair value of Pension
employee costs -
Salaries share defined
and options  contribution
Name of director Fees allowances Bonus granted plans Total
BRiES RHERA -
BRED b e
ESpg e HERRW *A MMEE it fazt
2013 ZE-cF
Mr. Han Jingyuan () BRI 652 3,355 - 1,702 12 5,721
M. Znu Jun X Eff 614 590 - 22 12 1,458
M. Shen Xiaoling MER LA 314 655 - 22 12 1,223
Mr. Han Li (i) g N 314 517 - 242 12 1,085
M. Znu Hao X ERE 314 393 - 22 12 961
Mr. Ondra Otradovec (vi Ondra Otradovec £ (vi) 169 - - 186 - 355
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar % 314 - - 186 - 500
Mr. Liu Lei (v g ZEEN) 203 - - 186 - 389
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francls & XF%4 314 - - 214 - 528
Mr. Yu Tung Ho (vi) RETESA (i) 104 - - 186 - 290
Mr. Wang Tianyi i) TREREN) 314 - - 186 - 500
M. Zhou Guoping () AR 314 - = = - 314
3,940 5,510 - 3814 60 13,324
2012 I
Mr. Han Jingyuan () BRI 666 6,372 - 8,571 11 15,620
Mr. Zhu Jun x BnE 624 1,337 - 1,712 11 3,684
Mr. Shen Xiaoling TERTE 324 1,351 = 1,712 11 3398
M. Znu Hao X ERE 34 405 - 1,712 10 2451
Mr. Han Li () & NN 352 316 - 12330 11 2,009
Mr. Muktesh Mukheriesfii Muktesh Mukheriee 72 (i) "7 - - 1,712 7 1,836
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec %55 324 - - 1317 - 1,641
Mr. Viiay Kumar Bhatnagar Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 4 324 = = 1,023 = 1,347
Mr. Liu Lei 8 &k 444 17 - 1,405 2 1,968
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francls & X544 324 - - 1514 = 1838
Mr. Yu Tung Ho RIEERE 324 = = 1317 = 1641
Mr. Wang Tianyi (i) TRERE) 29 - - 1,023 - 1,315
Mr. Gao Qingju ) BREELE() 3 - - 293 - 326
Mr. Zhou Guoping (i) BT () a - - - - 27
4499 9,898 - 24,641 63 39,101
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(continued)

M

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Mr. Han Jingyuan is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Mr. Han Li, Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping
were appointed as the director of the Company
on 7 February 2012, 7 February 2012 and 1
December 2012 respectively.

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee resigned as the director of
the Company on 11 May 2012.

Mr. Gao Qingju resigned as the director of the
Company on 6 February 2012.

Mr. Liu Lei resigned as the director of the Company
on 31 July 2013.

Mr. Ondra Otradovec resigned as the director of
the Company on 15 July 2013.

Mr. Yu Tung Ho resigned as the director of the
Company on 30 April 2013.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2013

and 2012. The emoluments of the independent non-

executive directors of the Company during the year are
approximately RMB 1.6 million (2012: RMB 5.1 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2013

T — T
BE_—=

=FTA=t—RILFE

32. EERABEXZ(Z)

b) ZEZ=hSHEEEME(E)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BYERLEET/ANRAE
F]ITE °

BhHEE TREBEER
BEFEEDRR -Z
——#%#-HtH - =%
——F#_AtAEK=F
——F+- A —HEZRE
BARRRES o

Muktesh Mukherjee %t 4
R-ZE——FHHA+—H
BIARRES -

SEREEN_T—_F
“ARHBEARARAE
=

BZrEN_T—=F1+
A=t—HBREARAE
%O

Ondra Otradovec 4R
—E—=F+A+HHE
FEERRRES -

REUERER_T—=4F
MA=t+HBEARAE
=

BEZ—=FK=-F—=-F
+T_A=+—HILFE  HE
T = NE KR E RE T [ B
& FRN - TN FARANE
VHRTEEFNMENARE
160B (=T ——F : AR¥
510&7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  ESEIUARE T RER)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

(@

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—=-F+-A=T—HILLFE

32. EERAEX(E)

hEER=HMAL

NEENEEAMNZ S5 B A
+HEEONN(ZE——4F: 10
)EE HMEBER EXHD
WMAHRZEY e KFEFEAN - ZHFT
HEp—((ZE——4F: —f1)
S ATHBSINT

2013 2012
—E—=f T4

791 564

- 311
220 1,270
1,011 2,145

Five highest paid individuals (@)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest

in the Group for the year include four (2012: four)

directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis

presented above. The emoluments of the remaining one

(2012: one) highest paid individual for the year are as

follows:

Salaries and allowances e KRR

Bonus TEAL

Fair value of employee share B RS ERE
options granted HWAREE

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,

no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of

the directors or the five highest paid individuals as

inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as

compensation for loss of office.

The remuneration of the five highest paid individuals for

the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 fell within

the following bands:

RMB 1,000,001 to RMB 3,000,000 AK#1,000,001 TEAR
(approximately HK$ 1,252,349 3,000,000 7T (471,262,349
to HK$ 3,757,044) WITE 3,757,044 7T)

RMB 3,000,001 to RMB 4,000,000 AR# 3,000,001 TE AR
(approximately HK$ 3,757,045 4,000,000 7T (493,757,045
to HK$ 5,009,393) AT 2 5,009,393 57T )

RMB 4,000,001 to RMB 10,000,000 AR#4,000,001 TEARH
(approximately HK$ 5,009,394 10,000,000 7T, (495,009,394
to HK$ 12,523,482) ITLE 12,523,482 5 7T)

RMB 10,000,001 to RMB 17,000,000 AR#10,000,001 TEARE
(approximately HK$ 12,523,483 17,000,000 7T (49 12,523,483

to HK$ 21,289,919)

BITE 21,289,919557T)

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7

BEZ—=FK-_F—=-F
+-_A=+—HBIEFE K&
EERTMNESRAMN RS
FMALINETAME - BB
IIAZR A Bl SR AN A A A 7] B
RN S e ABEBR A o

BE_ZT=-FRk-FT—=F
tTZA=+—BIEFE  Bf
RRFMALOMENTFUT
#E :

Number of individuals

AE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

33.

34.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Interest expenses
— borrowings
— amounts due to related parties
— discount of notes receivable
— finance lease liabilities
Net foreign exchange gains
on borrowings (Note 35)

Finance costs
Less: amounts capitalised
as qualifying assets

Total finance costs (Note 39)

Interest income
— bank deposits
— trade receivables
— prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
— amounts due from related parties
— loan receivables

Total finance income (Note 39)

Finance income/(costs) — net

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax
— PRC enterprise
income tax (the “EIT”)
— Singapore profit tax

Deferred income tax (Note 28)

33.

HEEM

— g%

— AN AR 73 5R0R
L ESE T

fEFRHIE 3% U am
(PffzE£35)

LUR TN

B ABEMEEEMNME
T

BT RR AN 48 EE (FfHFE39)

FBUA
—RITIFK
—EKE SRR
—TBNEA - Be R
HoAth UL R TR
— FEUR AR 7T 5RO
—EUWER

fArs i A48 58 (MiEE39)
WA (RA) — %8

34.

& RSB
— AR FER
(T 2FREHL)
— F RSB

EIEFTSH (FRE28)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_Z-—-F+-A=1TBILFE

8 TV PN ST RS

2013 2012

—=2—= —T——4F
(470,407) (514,364)
(17,279) (8,117)
(302) (16,112)
(7,327) (37,697)

217,072 7,264
(278,243) (564,026)

96,517 64,853
(181,726) (499,173)

39,224 35,828

35,185 36,298

50,689 21,868

5,255 7,991

54,925 43,194

185,278 145,179
3,552 (353,994)

FREBiER

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

269,360 182,220

1,757 5,755
271,117 187,975
(84,804) (8,396)
186,313 179,579
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  ESEIUARE T RER)

34.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of
Bermuda income tax.

The subsidiaries directly held by the Company were
incorporated in BVI with limited liability under the International
Business Companies Act Chapter 291 and, accordingly, are
exempted from payment of BVI income tax.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided since the
subsidiaries incorporated or traded in Hong Kong do not have
assessable profits during the year (2012: nil).

China Oriental Singapore has been awarded the “Global
Trader Programme” (“GTP”) status for 2 years 9 months with
effect from 1 April 2011. Income from qualifying transactions
will be taxed at the concessionary corporate tax rate of 10%,
subject to China Oriental Singapore meeting certain terms
and conditions as stated in the letter issued by International
Enterprise Singapore.

The PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory profit of
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the
PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments on certain
income and expense items, which are not assessable or
deductible for income tax purposes.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—=-F+-A=T—HILLFE

34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

34.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Effective from 1 January 2008, the subsidiaries incorporated
in the PRC are required to determine and pay the EIT in
accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the “New EIT Law”) as approved
by the National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007 and the
Detailed Implementation Regulations of the Corporate Income
Tax Law (the “DIR”) as approved by the State Council on 6
December 2007. In accordance with the New EIT Law and
DIR, the EIT rate applicable to the subsidiaries incorporated in
the PRC will be 25% for those with original applicable EIT rates
higher than 25%, or gradually increased to 25% in a 5-year
period from 2008 to 2012 for those with original applicable EIT
rates lower than 25%. The preferential policy of exemption or
deduction shall be effective from 1 January 2008, even if the
subsidiaries were still in a cumulative tax loss position.

Jinxi Jinlan was qualified as a foreign investment production
enterprise and was established in a coastal economic
development zone. Approved by local tax authority on 14
December 2007, Jinxi Jinlan was entitled to a two-year full
exemption followed by a three-year 50% tax deduction,
commencing from 1 January 2008. The effective tax rate of
Jinxi Jinlan for the year ended 31 December 2013 was 25%
(2012: 12.5%)).

34.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

TS —

BE-_ZT-=F1+-A=t—HLHFE

BB (&)

H-ZETNF-—A—BE LETH
MK BARRRR _TTL
F=ZA+TRBE2EAKRSELENTD
EARHKMBECEMEDUE (T
FRBED R_ETLF+ AR
BE& AN B EMRETUEAE RA
AI(TERAR]) - SHEXBRMERAT
B - KB EEMBEOE R B A
A - 72 BIFE B SZ B MY B A R A0 IR
FHEANEERSHRBEERRN25%
AITHAR25% : HAMRFBEROEE
FEHMRERN26% AIE_ZF
NEE-T——FNRFAR FF L
FHE25% ° BRI R 2 BEERK

“ZENF-A-BRER Bt
%M B A R RETHIREER
Mo

EHRCEAEIEREEEEDEN
B WREBREBERERERK - &
WAERERER _ETLF+ A +T
BHE  EFESHEE_ZTN\F—A
—HE ZEMFHBEREREE=
FE0%BBEER - BHE_T—=

+ZA=t+—HIEFE  ZREHEAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(Br=HE=AMN

34.

P ERAUARE T ITRER)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Jinxi Dafang
was recognised as a High Technology Enterprise by the
Administration of the Recognition of High-tech Enterprises of
Hebei Province, the PRC. Under the New EIT Law of the PRC,
as a High Technology Enterprise, Jinxi Dafang was entitled to
preferential corporate tax rate of 15% (2012: 25%).

Other than above-mentioned entities, all other subsidiaries of
the Group incorporated in the PRC are subject to the tax rate
of 256% in year 2013 (2012: 25%).

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average applicable tax rate of 27.35% (2012: 25.51%) to
respective profits of the consolidated entities for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 as follows:

Profit before taxation B B T8

Taxation calculated at
statutory tax rate

Effect of change in the tax rate R L
Tax losses for which no deferred R TR IE P
income tax asset was recognised BEMNTIEE

Withholding tax of interest

and dividend income ZFEH
Effect of non-deductible expenses AT HUR B FHY

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7

B

B

[
T

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—=-F+-A=T—HILLFE

34.

BAEREEHTIR

RARBHNB RABB YA

FEHER (&)

HE_Z—=F+"HA=1T—HILF
B EAARNAREBERETILE SR
M1 FRTE B B BF A K 3R T = #T BT
2 o BRBHEFEEMETE - 2
BAFEREFRMEE - =H15%
(ZZT—=F : 25%) ZBBBEFME
MR o

Br Al E RSN - REBEFTAHMRF
EAMEIAHBARNR T —=4F
MR B 25% (ZFB— 4 : 25%) o

REERBAGANOHEBRBE T
—=FRkZF-——F+-H=+—H
I FEEHERNR T ERAMER
B ANHE LG R & 27.835% ( —F — =
F:2551%) T EMIEmMBTENER
DRI

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_fF
249,341 326,056
68,195 83,178
939 -

69,101 53,349
24,743 15,096
23,335 27,956
186,313 179,579




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

35.

36.

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES) - 35.
GROUP

The exchange differences credited in the consolidated income
statement are included as follows:

Other (losses)/gains — net (Note 29) Hih (E518) /Uhies — 558

(Fff5E29)

Finance costs — net (Note 33)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a
loss of approximately RMB 213,894,000 (2012: loss of RMB
148,960,000) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

BATSR A — %R (M1 33)

36.

5L (5 HR) T —
AKE

RApRIBRNCEZE L2205
o

2013 2012
—EB—=F T4

(33,631) 969
217,072 7,264
183,441 8,233

DTSR EBEER

BHE_T—=F+-A=+—HItF
B ARBIERFEERE N B
SARR B BEHRERAEENARE
213,894,0007L (= — =4 : FIEA
R #148,960,0007T) °

Annual Report 2013 —F—=4F4EH

»

23] I



>

I 032

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BREEEAN FESEIUARBTLREN) BE-Z—=F+-_A=T—HILFE
37. EARNINGS PER SHARE 37.
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousands)

B BT ERRAIE
FHB(FR)

Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7

NNGCIL: S S E-y bl

FREN RS (BRARET)

FRWE
K
BRERNRETIRBEARBEDFH

EREG MR AFAEHTTE BB
IR EMAtHE -

2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
101,609 126,062
2,931,178 2,930,194
0.03 0.04
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Kz

37.

38.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Diluted (continued)

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue used in calculating
basic earnings per share (thousands)

Adjustments for options (thousands)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares and potential ordinary shares
issued as the denominator in calculating
diluted earnings per share (thousands)

Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share)

DIVIDENDS

At a meeting held on 21 March 2014, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the

year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil).

At a meeting held on 22 August 2013, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any interim dividend in respect of
the six months ended 30 June 2013 (2012: nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-2- = +-A=+-ALFE

BEr_—=

37. BRWE (&)

W (&)

2013
—E—=F —E——F

AR B E EIEREN

101,609 126,062
AR ETREAR K

BB BT MR InE

2 (FhR) 2,931,178 2,930,194
TR (FAR) 117 6,730
STEERMERERER

AEMBEHTLER

BT T m R e

T8 (FRR) 2,931,295 2,936,924
BRHENE (BRARET) 0.03 0.04

38. RE

R-E—ME=A -+ —BETHE
Zf BEERTESHEE=-Z—=
F+ZA=t+—HLFERMNERER
HRE(ZE—=F :F) -

M-—Z-=F\A=+=RBTHE
HE EERTRERBE_T-=
&3 A=+ B A E A IR 8

R (ZE——F : &) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

>

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

I )34

(BREEEAN - ERBEHNARBTTAEN) BE-_T—=F+-A=+—HILFE
39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30. BEELXMES
(@  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated @ KBREARMNEEEELENES
from operations is as follows: SOEEIGEONNE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Profit before income tax BR TS B A& A 249,341 326,056
Adjustments for: FEEESE
Amortisation of leasehold land FEE b F2 A Hh 50 PR A 8
and land use rights (Notes 6, 31) (Ffzx6 ~ 31) 3,405 3,405
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB NEREITE
equipment (Notes 7, 31) (PfzE7 ~ 31) 1,045,516 943,709
Depreciation of investment WEMFEITE
properties (Notes 8, 31) (PffizE8s ~ 31) 806 806
Amortisation of intangible A R
assets (Notes 9, 31) (PffzE9 ~ 31) 78 25
Gain on disposal for property, HEME - WE MEE 2 WS
plant and equipment (Note 29) (FfzE29) (2,634) (2,434)
Impairment of property, plant and YIE - B MR ERE
equipment (Notes 7, 29) (KI7E7 ~ 29) 79,053 3,600
Share of result of an associate FE(E —EHE & A R 4R - 12,697
Gain on disposal of an & — R B A A RIRY U 2R
associate (Note 29) (Ft7£29) (50,000) -
Provision for/(Reversal of) write- FEEAMBZE R EIR
down of inventories to net SFERE(BE)
realisable value (Notes 16, 31) (PftzE16 ~ 31) 28,180 (108,439)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment  fEULE 5 BE ZRE 2
of trade receivables (Notes 17, 31) BeEs (B (MEE17 ~ 31) 6,738 (538)
Impairment provision of prepayments, FENFUIE - 74 K E A EUIRR 2
deposits and other receivables ERE (M1EE18 - 31)
(Notes 18, 31) 226,136 138,841
Impairment provision of loan FEWE TR 2 BB
receivables (Notes 19, 31) (FfE19 ~ 31) 40,968 300
Impairment provision of available- A ESREERERE
for-sale financial assets (Mf3E15 ~ 29)
(Notes 15, 29) 23,845 -
Investment income from financial BAREETEBEEFHTA
assets at fair value through BRRZeRBEZRE RS
profit or loss (Note 30) (FfF5E30) (50,419) -

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BRmBEEBEIN  AESEINARETTRER)

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(@)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated

BE-_ZT-—=F+-B=1+—HIFE

30. BMEELAWNESL(E)

(@)

GRS EEEELNRS

from operations is as follows: (continued)

Foreign exchange losses/(gains)
(Notes 29, 35)

Finance income (Note 33)

Finance costs (Note 33)

Share-based payment (Notes 22, 32)

Gain on repurchase of Senior
Notes (Note 29)
Provision for legal claims
(Notes 24, 29)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
and properties under
development and held for sale
Decrease/(increase) in trade and

notes receivables, prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Increase in amount due
from related parties

Increase in restricted bank balances

Increase in deferred revenue (Note 27)

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables,
accruals, advances from customers

and other current liabilities
Decrease in trade balance due
to related parties

Cash generated from operation

fE 58518, (Ukas)
(Ff7E29 - 35)
ARSI (Fi5E33)
BARSRC AN (Bi5E 33)
RERRRE S
(MfzE22 - 32)
FEACIEE-S ol ey
(FfzE29)
RERRERME (H3E24 - 29)

FERERTREELE
(4 0),

FEWE ZRRR MR
BNFOR - BEREM
FEU RO A, (48 h0)

& Wit RSt 77 SRIRIE N

X R FIRITAEERIG 0
AEIEYASE hN (B 3E27)
FERTE SR -
BRER - AREFPFIAR
Hitmeh & & Ofd), 1
FE 15 RS 0 5 5 K RRORL

EEELNRE

BRETRIT : (&)

Major non-cash transactions:

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
endorsed bank acceptance notes to suppliers for
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB 435 million (2012: approximately
RMB 951 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
entered into the purchase and sale agreement of
certain assets for steel production at a consideration
of approximately RMB 223 million. The consideration
was offset with the prepayment made in previous years
(2012: nil).

2013 2012
=%F-= —F--F
33,631 (969)
(185,278) (145,179)
181,726 499,173
32,588 72,225
- (76,561)
50,778 22,754
(990,350) 1,512,628
1,822,598 (3,357,062)
(1,077) (3,042)
(232,761) (318,805)
10,381 9,273
(618,019) 1,117,635
(1,698) (12,485)
1,703,532 637,613
FEHFRERS

BHE_Z—=F+-_A=+—
BEFE ASERBEY
¥ BEERZBEREEESE
RITEREEZHARKA35E
T(ZE—ZF : YARK9.51

=

BT) °

BE—_ZE—=F+-_HA=+—
BIEFE  AEBEFMEEE
RIVETEEMEEHZ R
BAHARE223ET - KRB
EHBEFEEDNEMNKRE
WH(ZZE——F : T) o

Annual Report 2013 —F—=4F4EH

>

235 I



>

I 2306

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  ESEIUARE T RER)

39.

40.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(c) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of
property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount from sales and
deductions of property, plant HE KB AR
and equipment (Note 7)

Gain on disposals of property,

plant and equipment (Note 29) Wz (F95E29)
Non-cash assets received BYGERSEE
Cash proceeds from disposal of LEYE  BEX

property, plant and equipment HESBRS

Non-cash assets received mainly represented bank
acceptance notes and other receivables received from
deductions of property, plant and equipment.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS - GROUP

AEHZTTHYERTT
&R AFER

Guarantee for bank
borrowings of third parties

As at 31 December 2013, Jinxi Limited provided guarantee
for bank borrowings in favour of third parties amounted to
approximately RMB 21 million (2012: RMB 30 million). The
fair values of these financial guarantee contracts are not
significant.

The Directors are of the view that such obligation will not cause
an outflow of the Group’s resources embodying economic
benefits.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 7[5 5 5 48 [ ¥ i FR 2 7]

W% - BB K&

BREDFHE (PHRET7)
HEME - BB R&E

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—=-F+-A=T—HILLFE

39.

40.

EEEENRE ()

© RRERERA HEWE.
R Bs Ko s B PSSR 845

2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
2,317 38,443
2,634 2,434
(4,547) (40,682)

404 195

WEBHFREEETEHERY
% BB KR AR M E R IR
1T R I B At MR A

BBEREN-—FEE

2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
21,157 30,019
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—=F+_A=t—HILFE

41. COMMITMENTS - GROUP 41. FRE—KEH
(@) Capital and Properties under development @ BARNMEERAPYEZAE
commitments
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet REEARAREENERRAX
incurred is as follows: AT :
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Purchase of property, BEYE  BERRE
plant and equipment
— Contracted but not provided for —BERIAE RS 260,644 205,865
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — BISHEE R T4 238,508 65,729
499,152 271,594
Purchase of properties BERRPYE
under development 244,350 291,418
743,502 563,012
(b)  Operating lease commitments (o) KEHEFIE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses in ERTARGEKEHERTH
respect of land use rights, property, plant and equipment THERE  ME - BENME
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as BEHNEMNREREHERS B
follows: THIT -
2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

No later than one year 1FER 145,537 188,355

Later than one year and no 1AL - 5FEURN
later than five years 35,193 33,321
Later than five years 5% E 137,784 153,934
318,514 375,610
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  ESEIUARE T RER)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—-F+-A=T—HLLFE

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related

42. BEBLXS

W— T AERIERENEH S
Sk E 5 — 5 B E M S R BB IR R ES
BEAFEN  RIRREBT - MEKE
R ARES - TR R B T ©

if they are subject to common control.

(@)

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the (a)
Directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group:

Name

=1

Foshan Jin Lan Aluminium Company
Limited (“Foshan Jin Lan”)
FLeRiamER A
(T L&)

Foshan Jin Lan Nonferrous
Metals Product Co., Ltd.
(“Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals”)
HlLleHBEEeEBRmBRAR]
(TeHBEEEE])

Zhongxing Iron Mine

Skl ES

Tangshan Fengnan Qu Jinxi
Fenggang Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.
(“Jinxi Fenggang”)

& LI T o [ 3R P 2 S o 6
BRAF (HRAEEH])

Qianxi County Han’erzhuang Village
Wang Zhihong Iron Ore Mill
(“Qianxi Iron Ore Mill”)

BUEREREMEEAE
ERR (EBREEmRK])

HEZZT—=FKk=-F—=F
+_A=+—HLFE E=
RENTRAARATAEREE
Epfelice

Relationship with the Group
B BB

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan

e itk IS - &3

Foshan Jin Lan’s subsidiary

BRI BRI E AR

Jinxi Limited’s former associated company (ceased to be the
Group’s related party since 18 September 2013)

EAMEORHEAR (B2 —=FNA T+ N\BETHEAXR
SERREETT)

Chairman of the board of Jinxi Fenggang is Mr. Shen Xiaoling,
a director of the Company

ENENEEREFEAANRAEFLER L

Controlled by Mr. Wang Zhihong, a director of Boyuan Real
Estate

HREEFMAENE R T EA T AT

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # 5 4 Fl#% BA PR A 7]
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREN) HE_Z—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the (a)
Directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group: (continued)

Name

=1

Luxembourg Steel (Sichuan)
Company Limited
(“Luxembourg Steel”)

E# () MEERAERAA
(T 1)

Beijing Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (“Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment”)
ERREREREEREGRAT
(IREESKRED

Mr. Li Hejun
FEERE

Mudanjiang Ruiyuan Investment

Co., Ltd. (“Ruiyuan Investment”)

HA TR EBR AR
(MTmRRE])

The English name of certain companies referred in this
financial statements represent management’s best effort
at translating the Chinese names of these companies as
no English names have been registered.

42, BEEAERS (&)

BEZ—=FK=-F—=F
+—_A=+—HILFER" &
ERBUATRATRATAARE
E R - (&)

Relationship with the Group
EES S F 2

Controlled by the same ultimate parent company of
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG, an entity holds over 20% equity
interests in the Company

FR¥E 5 2N BB IE 20% HE 25 A9 ArcelorMittal Holdings AG &
[A — AL B A%

Controlled by Mr. Wang Zhihong, a director of Boyuan Real
Estate

MR AENE S T EAL T A

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Dafang, a subsidiary of the Group
REE—FEHRERRRAATNDEERE

Minority shareholder of Suzhou Boyuan

#FMNERNDBARR

B FE R P s TR RIHE X A
REBREBREBEET NEEBENS

WTRRZE AR EELCEME T
R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012, the Directors were of
the view that the following significant related party

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—-F+-A=T—HLLFE

42, BEAERZ (&)

b)) BAAHBERENDRE
——%+-A=+-ALFE
79 B E R AT A E A R

transactions were carried out in the normal course of ARG TIRAEEB B XL B
business of the Group: TEHEST
() Sales (i) &HE
2013 2012
—E2—= —E——F
()  Sales of goods ) SHEEY
— Jinxi Fenggang — 2 7 2 ] 1,696 201,315
— Luxembourg Steel — i - 2,140
1,696 203,455
()  Sales of utilities Iy sHEER
— Jin Lan Nonferrous —cHEELE
Metals 16,676 13,320
(i) Purchase of raw materials i) BWBEEME
2013 2012
—=2—= —T——4F
— Zhongxing Iron Mine (Note 29)  — AR B 2 ([ff5E 29) 8,136 36,740
— Qianxi Iron Ore Mill — B EE R - 10,787
— Jinxi Fenggang — R - 156
8,136 47,683

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRmFEEBEIN  AESEINARE T T RER)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012, the Directors were of
the view that the following significant related party
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business of the Group: (continued)

(iii) Key management compensation

Key management includes executive and non-
executive directors. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services
is shown below:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

Post-employment benefits EE g R A
Share-based payments BERSREST

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Directors were
of the view that the following related party balances
were attributable to the aforementioned related party
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and
dividends appropriation during the years:

Amounts due from related parties JFE UK B S 5 SR IR
Non-trade balances IEE HEER

— Jinxi Fenggang (i) — 7L ()
Trade balances B DR

— Jinxi Fenggang — 7 i

— Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals —SHEREE

As at 31 December 2013, the ageing of trade balances
due from related parties were within three months.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

TS —

BE-_T-=F1+-A=t—HLHFE

42, BEEAERZ (&)

(b)

e MEAMEHREREN

BRAGHBFBEREAPOHSE
N RBE-ZZT—=FKR=-F
——&E+-_HA=+—HBItFE
RN BERBATHE KRB
FRGTAAEEREELB
BT (F)

(i) ETEEEAEHME

ITEEBABBERITR
FRTEF - BEERS

MENSENEZEREA
ENMESWT

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
10,316 14,397
60 63
3,814 24,641
14,190 39,101

RZE—=FF=_FT—=F
+=—A=+—"H 25U
T RAEE 5 A5 £ T B i B B
R RERAEEE ZTHHK
HEEEFERNNRKREDEM
B

2013
—E—=F —E—_F

160 86,348
4,836 1,984
- 1,775
4,836 3,759
4,996 90,107

RZBE—=F+_A=+—
B EREESDESEHOE
BAE=MEAN -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42.

()

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Directors were
of the view that the following related party balances

were attributable to the aforementioned related party

transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and

dividends appropriation during the years: (continued)

Amounts due to related parties
Non-Current

Non-trade balances
Borrowing from related parties
— Mr. Li Hejun (i)
— Foshan Jin Lan (iii)

Current

Non-trade balances
Borrowing from related parties
— Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment (iv)
— Ruiyuan Investment (v)

Others
— Foshan Jin Lan
Trade balances

Trade payables
— Zhongxing Iron Mine
— Jinxi Fenggang
— Luxembourg Steel
— Qianxi Iron Ore Mill

& 1Y BABSE J7 SRR
I

B S
A 7 A K
—FEE LA (i)
— BB IL 278 (i)

ik

EE B4R
AR 5 1 2R
—REESEE (v)

—ImRIZE (v)

HAl
— RIS
B PR

eI B SRR
— R ERRESR
— PR
— [
— BT HEER

China Oriental Group Company Limited =[5 5 5 48 [# 2 i FR 2 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-—-F+-A=T—HLLFE

RBAXS (&)

()

RZE—=5R_FT—_F
+—A=+—H EFRAEMN
A 7 S ek T B Lt B
R REAEEE AR
18 & A B E AR S 5 BE
EE (&)

2013
—E—=F T4

51,859 51,859
37,404 37,404
89,263 89,263
53,333 51,965
128,000 -
181,333 51,965
383 383
= 1,242
= 1
= 453
= 2
= 1,698
270,979 143,309
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTLREN) HE_Z-—=5+_A=t+—HLFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Directors were
of the view that the following related party balances
were attributable to the aforementioned related party
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group and
dividends appropriation during the years: (continued)

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2013, Beijing
Jinxi Investment provided loan to Jinxi Fenggang,
amounted to approximately RMB 4.7 million.

As at 31 December 2013, the remaining balance
represented interests receivable.

(i)  The loan borrowed from Mr. Li Hejun was
unsecured, interest-free and had a repayable term
of 30 years.

(iiy ~ The payables owing to Foshan Jin Lan amounted
to RMB 37 million was unsecured, interest-free
and had a repayable term of 5 years.

(iv)  The loan borrowed from Jingtang Guangzhi
investment was unsecured and bore interest at a
rate of 6.00% per annum.

(vy  The loan borrowed from Ruiyuan Investment
was unsecured, of which RMB 49.1 million bore
interest at a rate of 15.00% per annum and RMB
78.9 million bore interest at a rate of 18.00% per
annum.

Except for the related party balances disclosed from (i) to
(v) above, others were unsecured, interest-free and had
no fixed term of repayment.

43. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board on 21 March 2014.

42, BEEAERZ (&)

© MRZZE—=Fk=FT—Z=F
+-—A=+—H8 E=ZRAMN
T REEE T A eR 0 A B T
X5 REAEEE TR
HRBBEFEEANRRE DB
EXE: (&)

() BE—Z—=F+=A8
=+—HLEFE E5E
R E AL MRERE
K DR AARKAT0

87T °
R—ZE—=H5+=A5
=+—H8 #EAEKF
g o

(i) FEELELERHIERR
BEA -  RERE=THF
YRR

iy FENHELESEREARE
3700B T AERA . &
ERERFERY -

vy REEERERHENE
= ) Qs = [P
6.00% 5T 8. °

V) WREERENERAE
R Eh AR 4,910
& 7T VA F E15.00% 51
B mAR7,8908 T
LA FIZR 18.00% 51 2. o

B bt () 2= (v) 352 B O RS 75 A ER
S A SEEH - RER
EEEEES -

43. H#tERRE

EEZRRN_T-WF=A-_t+—H#K
ERE TR -
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Five-year Financial Information & & & # & %l

A summary of the consolidated income statement and of the
consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the

Group for the last five financial years is as set out below:

Consolidated Income Statement

Revenue

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to :
Owners of

the Company
Non-controlling interests

Consolidated Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests

Total assets
Total liabilities
Non-controlling interests

China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 F#% BA FR A 7

LN

BR PS5t A R
FEHER
FERF
MBI
ZNNGIL: 5
rEE
JEEl 1

BEE
Bam
ISR e 5

AEBHREFTAAMBFEENE HABR
REWEE BENFFZEGEESMEH
BT -

XN

Year ended 31 December

BEt-—A=t—-HLEE

Audited
RER

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E2-=F —2——-F Z——%F ZZT-TF ZTTNF
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(ARETR) (AREFIT) (AREFRT) (AREFRT) (AREFT)
32,516,937 36,122,358 38,596,633 30,135,718 20,589,138
249,341 326,056 1,931,812 1,613,481 1,313,734
(186,313) (179,579) (514,023) (428,030) (341,293)
63,028 146,477 1,417,789 1,185,451 972,441
101,609 126,062 1,241,893 1,062,838 884,323
(38,581) 20,415 175,896 122,613 88,118

63,028 146,477 1,417,789 1,185,451 972,441

BHEE - BEEIEEH R R
As at 31 December
R+t=—HA=+—H
Audited
RER

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E2-=F —2——-Ff Z—%F ZZT-TF TTNF
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(AR®ETR) (AREFT) (AREFRT) (AREFRT) (AREFT)
23,750,600 24,751,983 22,929,993 20,742,095 15,189,137
(14,039,698) (15,196,967) (13,418,643) (12,222,321)  (7,728,387)
(519,698) (513,247) (647,730) (450,012) (291,992)

9,191,204 9,041,769 8,863,620 8,069,762 7,168,758
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